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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
ITEM 1. FINANCIALSTATEMENTS 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED,BALANGE SHEETS 

( In Ihousands, except share and per share amounts) 

Apri l 2-i, 
2011 

October 23, 
2011 

(unaudited) 
m^^^^mh^M^ -^pjS:v4;^k#^n>,rr^ssF7!^^^^i^^ 
Current a.ssels: - • _ ^^^^ 
^^Gashlami dastf eciuivalerits^^^- .:-'^3P^.:,-^?^"ifei:^^^rB^Il^l^r.- ' :d^^k&^^T^iSWP^M66T207^. .^^ iy^5}\0^ 

Marketable securities ^ 27.106 22,173 
.#Accounls.-receivab!e.'Tiet^j-j^.^.:4) '̂̂ -; g j 

Irisui'ance receivable 
i 'M^i^^^^ 'Mi^^^msM^^' . 

i % w ^ . ^ , • 
_.^8^15S 

^^^"3653 
234 

j^flricdme.laxcsrfec'eivabl e7p 1̂ '̂̂ .̂A- - ;;^: •"•I'-p -̂̂ . •V, e^ 
Deferred-income taxes 

! ' ^ ^ - 7 , ' ^ ' ^ f . ~ - , - v - : w j r . L . •'•'J!•.^^j;^''.•/,•*-;^T^;^vw.^l^'.•J^T»'Ji^••J^;^•»T^»''' e^.^Prepald,exp,enses-and'Other,asse^s^^^..;^,^#^.''̂  

* ^ S ^ E^SS ^3.3^5j^i3^SS3l86f 
12,097 . 11,573 

flSg;--^I^.^T^^?:9^5l^^^'-^-t^25BT4!1 
Total current assets i^,....„.....„,„„.. 

Rfopcrtv^an'd'equiimieri'l^rietl'^^ii^-i.^l^^j^^^^ 
Other assets: 

154^22 
Tir^'A'i"'--'-:,--

148.359 

CTlher Intangible assets, net . . . 79,783 . 82,207 
WW'-M^&^r-:.i!'^^.:-'>'C^ilb:39b^.... ^..:^^i^^'^n 8i91 If gBDeferredMn^irig-^o.sLs:^iietr'^.'?i^^ 

Restricted cash and investments 
iB.repJL4Ldep^i .̂aiidIoiher^^ ,̂ ^ ^ w W V # ^ t e F ^ 

Total assets 

12:454 12^810 
m ^ ^ i . ^ ^ ^ ^ r m m i s f 5#:r;^^^:^r2p749i 

'1.725:832 $ l,733,i 
^a^^^:i->:-^;^iIiIABII^ITIES^VND'ST6GKH0IiDERSME0UI?!V\^^^:?:^^^''^r^:^?^^ - '̂̂ m^-'̂ .¥-m^J^^^m^&-:^^K32"^ 
Current liabilities: . ^ ; . ^ 
^^\'Gurte^it'-rnatunH^s?of-]ong^tem 

Accounts payable ,- 26,510 26,013 

Payroll and relaled-
fcV^:;fPrd>ertS^and"xiher4a.xest.-'^'^.:r^^-'^->^£i»."^^ 

Interest 
%^^:^^ -^^^ -^^ 

41,353 44.187 

^6TiSII^^M9l8n3 
3^PrQgressiye:jackpots,aiidrsiot;crul^aw^dsSg^l^ 

Otheî  

^ _ _ 8,610 10^02 
rr::rf^wmim^Km^M'm.\-5\^07m-'mm^\M'6i 

- 32,378 32,332 
q^'^dlal-ciinent.liabilities'fiag^j-^^^^fP':^:^^^-:::^:^^"^ ^->..im^.-;:tM^i $i^.BlJ4:655a^^l^^J^153:878 

1,179,530 1,187.221 Long-tenn debt, less current maturities 
DefcrT&dUrit:c» t̂axesy^X ^ -::̂ m v i ^ ^ 
Other accmed habilities 
.ti>"lHer'lonlT^iennfliaIJiIJ0es^^j^^'^-'<:i.^^'^''^^.'i 
Stockholders' equity: ^ 

^^ :^m^ : . •:m/''.^^S2rm)-^:rM .-^'^Mrsn 
36,305 

Rre"ferre5^l5ck.-Sr0 libar vai ue: >21Q00T0"QQ .slfaTc'siaiiih^zefl.-morie. i l^ued^;^- ^MAMW- i m ^ ^^?t '!-: v g ^ ,v<:;ar?-^ ^ m ^ ^ A 
Common stock, S.Ol parValue: 60.000,000 shares authorized; shares issued: 42,066,148 • • 

at October 23,2011 and 42063,569 at April 24,2011 ' 421 _ __'^^l _ 
EGjll jBlcpmmqnllocR^^^ 

Additional paid-in capital i _. 249:342 254,013 
^RetaIKFdTeamiI^gg^^^.^^-'-t^fg^^:^^j!3fe^y.-:^^^^ 

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income ^ . (1,360) (2,235) 
mm^^M^. i ' ' ^^^: j^M^^^^r^mm y^^Kieg^;^r-nflH:^^G47:7i-sC^:^giS7^^355i294f 
Treasurystock3.0S3,867sharesatOctober23,2011 and3841,283:alAprif24,2011 ' ' (37,143) (46,266) 

^-^TSiii^iockKoiddi^veauit^^^: ;>%in-^^-';Hf^-i?'«^i';^^^^^>;?^^^sa^ r 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equiiy $ 1,725,832 $ 1.733,888 

See noies to the condensed consolidated financial statements. 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED SI ATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

Three Months Kntled Six Monllis Ended 

Revenue5:,^^r^^p'g?^^?-,'-^f^^-^^-^.-aij^'- •••̂ . .m f̂-ff̂ -

October 23, 
2011 

Ociobcr 24, 
2010 

October 23,. 
2011 

October 24. 
2010 

'^mm't^mi^^Mmi- T-^:^-; % iMm^-:̂ . Tm^mr^' 
Casino $ 256,02 I S ^^^-^Q S 509 057 S 513,802 

ERobms^^ni^i^-^^^^>ft a^ : - ;^ i^^-^- ;? - i ; ? fe^^^ ; :^? ; .^^ lKi l4SQ^^iS .^^ ' ^ ^ ^ . ^ X ; 5 2 ^ 
Food, beverage, pari-muluel and other ._ 33,715 :33,997 66,853 68,088 

^irisfraiceT'ecbv'enesfe^-.-:^.^-.-^ ' ;-^ '! '^-^:-^ 
Gross.revenues 300,307 299,280 597.425 603;414 

r(52l3'6)"^^4:- 'M(^^29)M::^§^(ToW^'7)i:pg^'^n(ao^? •^ff^lLesspromoiionahallowances-fMat-'^fiSI^Jii 
Net revenues 

\UM^Ji^ Qoerating.exnensesr.n^^.-:i^^iA^afr.:^Kffi^.^,a^^->-..^ 
Casino 

TGaimng^taxesF^.^^rfe.^W3i:^tf->?^^.r.-;^.'V:W>^r^: 
Rooms 

247.471 246:651 493,278 498,572 
— ' . i ^ ' • , — 

t i ? ^ 
41.869 

^ ^ 
79, 

m s iii„i,-,,T,.-^Kti-

|Fq^"Ht)everage:-1 parifrriu l u elfand'ofi^^g^^^jfl 
Marine and facilities ivianiic anuiauiiiLici 16.211 15.347 31)725 
•'Klark'ehn^a^d^dmimsh^ve^J^.t^.Ml^.'^^ 
Corporate arid development 9.35̂ 5 10,940' 2i;656 
fDefeiatiori^ah'd^amoHl^aSl••'^.'^^^/:^.-m;^••---^:^^ 

Jp.lgi.op^.r^li.'jg expenses 
Qiieraf ing^incc^t^^^^^fe^^j^r^?^^^^. ,^ 

Interest expense 

228.394 

J2L877}_ 

226:315. 456,983 457.950 
20 :^336^ ' ' ^ I^V36- :295^^Sl?^C40I622l 

(23.410) (43,702) .(4L2P5)_ 
lnleratlincQmer.*%':^S^'^'i^1gte.^^^:r:':^.-.tJ^.C:T^.^^il^^^^^ 
Derivatiye income (expense) ' 260 (743) _29 (2.230) 

Loss from conlinuing operalions before incometaxes • (2,347) ' (3,350) (6.939) . (7,872) 

^ mt5Ti^M^mm-i9f^m^m3mm mcomeita j^benefi t 
Loss^from continuing gpet^lions 
Iricome %6'ni?discdnii rmed'Opera tiô ^̂ ^ 

Net loss 

(1.457) 157) (̂1.813) ^ - . ^ . }̂î ^̂ ^ .-^^.^^ '̂̂ '̂IS 

(1.457) $: (1.019) $ (3.780) $_ (3,674) 
^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ; ! v ^ ^ ^ ^ 5 ^ - : ^ j r - i i ^ ^ y T J 

Loss per commbn share-basic arid dilutive; 
^Eos^f i^^cdmir iui^l i^eraf idt is ;^ : : :^^^^^^^ 

Income from di.sconhnuetl operations, net of income 
taxes - - '_ 003 - _ ^ ^ 0.03 

eNetJloss-->am^.JV?^v^'^f-fef£K^^-'?jii:^^^ 

î ŷ el glited ̂ average! basic^tmres y^̂ ^ 
Weighted average diluted shares 

lS;53M9l 
38,753,049 

See notes to the condensed consolidaled financiai statements. 
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^ 2 F Z 8 3 T 7 T 6 E ^ ^ T 5 j 5 r 0 9 9 ^ ^ ^ 3 2 r 6 i : 5 [ 8 T 5 i 
32,783.726 38,515.099 32.615.815 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(In Ihousands, except share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

.Shares of 
Common 

Slock 
Common 

Stock 

Additionul 
Paid-in 
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings 

Accum. 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 
<L"») 

Total 
TrcBsurj' Stockholders' 

Stock _ Equitv 
BalaFcemi)rif24^20r^l^t;^"r=^^^?'ir42-:063!-569',E;'S^42 iMSfSSjljO 13M$ii 03°:095^S^li!;7<f-2:-235)?^S^f46.-266)lS^^309i028:3 
Net loss — — " —; (3,780).. — — (3,780) 

^ • ^ . ; ; 

Unrealized gain on iriteresi rate cap 
contracts net of income tax 
provision of $23 

-?S"36^ :?-^^ fe : ' - - . ^^^S36 

39 39 
^mn^eliensive'ldss^V'̂ ^^ .̂S :̂̂ . : r ^ ^ : ' h ^ : m ^ ' ' ^ i ^ r i ^ ^ ^ : ^ m ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

13 
S-lI^in!i^M(2;9i)5)l 

— 13 

Issuance of restricted slock from 
treasury stock — 

tdQckiCpnipensationlexDense.̂ ^fe^^a-a .̂-- .^^-^.;^T:^w^^k:L.-T=:^f 
Balance, October 23,2011 

— (9,123) — : . — 9.123 — 
\439MMm^m^.j :m^A^'^^^iM^:r :^ .mm:m 

42.066.148 S 421 $.249,342. S 99.315' • S (r:360) $. (37.143) $ 310.575 

See notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

Six Months Ended 
October 23. 

2011 
October 24, 

2010 

Netloss^^ ^ _ $ (̂ -"̂ S^L. ? ^^-^^S^'^'^^^ 
^Just^^tsIt^reran^v^Tne^ 

Depi-eciation arid amortizatlori ...^„.,.,.. ..,,.„.,_...- 43,334 45,112 
E^̂ ^Amortî ioirofrdefeFred.financirig^̂ ^ -• M--^g^.t:^v".'^^^^^v!i-v2T909;-^'' - l?^i:.-J-:6429 

Amcmization of debt discount .™...™...,_...,™._..._™™_™.™.,____.._._̂  (102) — 
^DefmeHIiricQnie^taxes^.:£^i^^-- - ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ m ^ ^ t M ^ J^M^^^mS^f^^3i;:^•m^^t^<2.505)r^^ImmT{3r537^^ 

Stock compensation expense ] 4;439 4.466 
«t^.>.«-j^j230a Loss jgain) on disposal ofassels 

6hangeslinipperaring:assexs.̂ aridiliam 

l̂ f-AccQuills''receiva'̂ le'!̂ •̂•--̂ ^̂ :̂iâ ĝ  
Insurance receivable .(L?24) 

^^:1ric^)l^tax^reeeivableV.i^b-'^^a^:l^^^^^^^^ 
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ^ (1,'273) (2,065) 
'Accduntspayablerand^accmed;liabllitip"iP^!^ 

Net cash provided by operafing activities ^ 33.205 48,732 

Investing activities: 
Rurchasetoi"! propertyl'and teg ui prrient-^'^ip^^fe^ 
Netcash paid for acqiiisltlon, net ofcash acquired 
RestnHedrcash Wdlm^slirients^ .̂ -':;^^7^^m:^'^^i-^^.\k'^^^:j:':immii^'^i^^m^>m.^imm^^. \̂ X^ l̂ 07.̂ ^^ '•^^JM$[97f6'6t 

mM.^^^iL^!(•3mT6^) [:^'^m(25Tmi\ 

Financing activities: 
Frinci^PwngmS^frdebt'-^^^^ • ̂ "^^m^^?. "^ 
Net (repayments) bdrrowinas dn line of credit_ 
l;ayInentlOf!defer^ed;financ^ng•:costSa ,̂.4^^ ît. 
Proceeds frdm exercise of stock options 
Nefcash;(tised;in)iproyided;byifinariclng actiyities 

(34,219) (111.653) 

^ ^ t : ^ ^ m ^ ^ ^ . ^ , ^ ^ ^ ' ^ r k ( 2 i 5 7 6 t . ' ' ^ ^ ^ m m 
(5,000) ,/?-^^-'L 

: 13 3 
^52i03_9j 

^ 

Effect^(JfTQfeign:cij'rrcncy.Txchlin|-^-rate'si'5riica^ 

i>J"erdecreasciin^HFHiirdL^h^Hui^ 
Cash and cash equivalenls. begmriing of period .......,„ 75,178 68,069 
Ca'shram.cashTqujyalentsitendip^ 

See notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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ISLE OF GAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

I, Nature of Operations 

lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in February 1990. Except where otherwise noted, the words 
"we," "us." "our" and similar terms, as well as "Company." refer to Isle ofCapri Gasinos, Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. We are a 
developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and relaled lodging and entertainment facilities In markets throughout the 
United States. Our wholly owned subsidiaries own and operate fourteen casino gaming faciiifies in the Uniled States located in Black 
Hawk, Colorado; Lake Charies, Louisiana; Lula, Biloxi, Natchez and.Viclcsburg, Mississippi; Kansas Gity, Camlhersville and 
Boonville, Missouri; Bettendorf, Davenport. Waterloo and Marquette, Iowa; and Pompano Beach. Florida. 

2. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the mles and regulafions ofthe Securities 
and Exchange Comriiissiori ("SEC");and in accordance with accounfing principles generally,accepted in the United States ofAmerica 
for Inlerim financial reporting. Accordingly, certain inforination and note disclosures normally included in financial statements 
prepared In conformity with accounfing principles generally accepied In the United States have been condensed oromitted. The 
accompanying interim consolidated financial slalements have been prepared without aiidit. The results for interim periods are not 
necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for ariy-other interim period or for the fiill year, these condensed consolidaled 
financial statements should be read in conjunclion with the cdnsoiidated financial statements andnotes thereto'included in our Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 24, 2011 as fijed.with theSEC and all of our.dther filings, including Current Reports on 
Form S-K, filed with the SEC after such date and through the date ofthis report, which are available on the SEC's website at 
www.sec.govor our website at www.islecorp.com. 

Our fiscal year ends on the lasl Sunday in April. Periodically, this system necessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal 2012 is a 53-week year, 
vvhich commenced on April 25, 2011. with the fourth quarter having. 14 weeks. Fiscal 2011 was a 52-week year, which commenced 
on April 26, 2010. 

The condensed consolidaled financial statements include our accounts and those ofour subsidiaries. All significant intercompany 
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certairi reclassifications have been made to prior period financiai 
statements to conform to the current period presentation. We view eachproperty as an operatirig segment and all such operating 
segments have been aggregated into one reporting segment. 

3. New Accounting Pronouncements 

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, ("FASB") issued Updale No. 2011-08, "Tesfing Goodwill for 
Impairmenl," which amends Accounting Slandards Godificatlon350'"Irilanglbles —Goodwill and Other." This update permits 
entifies lo make a qualitative assessment of whether a reporting unit's fair value Is, more likely than not. less than Its carrying amount. 
If an enfity concludes it is not more likely than not that the fair value ofa reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, the entity is 
not required to perform the two-step impairment lest for thatTepprtlng.unit. The update is'effectlve for annual.and interim goodwill 
impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning afier:December-^J5,.2011, wilheariy adoption permitted. We do not expeci the 
adoption to materially affect our consolidated financial statements. 

In June 2011, the FASB issued Update No. 2011-05, "Compi-ehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income," 
which allows for the presentation oftotal comprehensive income, ihepomponents of net iricoine. and the components of other, 
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive 
statements. In addition, the guidance eliminates the option of presenting the components of other comprehensive income aspart ofthe 
slatement of changes in 

http://www.sec.govor
http://www.islecorp.com


stockholders' equity. This guidance Is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011. While 
the adoption vylll impact where vve disclose the components of other comprehensive incoine In our consolidated financial statements. 
we do not expeci the adopiion to have a material impact on ihosc consolidated financiai statements. 

4. Flooding 

Flooding along the Mississippi River caused five ofour properties to close for portions ofthe six months ended October 23. 2011. A 
summary ofthe clo.sure dales and subsequent reopening Is as follows: 

Closin" Date RcopcninH Date 
Number Days 

Closed 

Davenport.'̂ lowa rxm W^pri\mt:i9M 
Caruthersville, Missouri May. 1, 20n_ 
nuilMtliiiM^^^I2^^^SZ!^EIlS^iM3.?f20 
i^atchez'̂ Misslssi p p i ^ ^ 
Vicksburg, Mississippi ^^^^m^mmmmmi May ll ,20ri 

)wm^mmsmm^m^v^ May 13, 2011 ' 12 
ti3une,o;r20M^- :-.--gm?&- ,-;̂ -)L-̂ 3T̂ -;g 3- .̂̂ t.̂ t) 
Sepiember 2, 2011 91(B) 

May.27, 2011 
I T ' ^ H a P T I S ^ 

16 

(A) Six days of closure in the first quarter of fiscal 2012. 
(B) The second casino barge reopened ori'Seplember 2. 2011 after flood damage was remediated. 

Operafions were impacted beyond the number of days closed as business levels fluctuated before actual closure and for extended 
periods of time after reopening. We maintain insurance coverage'subject to various deductibles for both property damage and business 
inlerrnption. We have recorded a receivable of $8,158 at October 23̂  2011 representing direct reimbursable costs aiidproperty damage 
net ofthe irisurance policy deductibles. During Ihe three months entled October 23, 201 l,lwe recognized Sill of revenue as partial 
settlement ofour business intermption claim relaled to our Davenportproperty. Any additional business intemiptlori claims will be 
recognized in the periods settled. 

5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consists ofthe following: 

Sei^ioTS'^mFd'erediTEacilltv^^^.tJf^Mt^.-k^^^^ 
Revolving line df credit; expires November 1, 2013, interest pa>able at least quarteriy 

at either LIBOR and/or Prime plus a margin 

October 23, 
2011 

. April 24, 
2011 

28.000 $ 33,000 

7% Seriior Subordinated Notes, interesi pavable .seml-annually'Marchl and Sepiember 1 357.275 357,275 
;'^*:.'\^MLH''-**'^-^^^^f^^>\^^fe*l^S^l^^^^! '>^M^^4^fy4'^^^--'-^:'^^k4^()A^ 

1.184.916 ; M.92.594 
Qther.^j!^^,'.;->:-^ 

I^ess;^^iri^t^manl^fiesW:^.^.^^^::.^VtM^^ 
Long-lerrii debt $ 1.179.530 ; 1,187,221 



Crcdit Facility -Our Senior Secured Credit Facility as amended ("Credit Facility") consisis ofa $300,000 revolving line ofcredit and 
a $500,000 tenn loan. The Credit Facitity is secured on a first priority basis by substantially all ofour assets and guaranieed by all of 
our significani domestic subsidiaries, 

Our net line ofcredit availability atOctober 23, 2011. as limited by our maximum leverage covenant, was approximately $145,000, 
after consideralion of $24,000 in outstanding surety bonds and letters ofcredit. We pay a commitment fee related to the unused 
portion ofthe Credit Facility of up to'0.625% which is included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidaled siatemenis of 
operations. The vveighted average efieclive inierest rate ofthe Credit Facility for the six months ended October 23, 2011 was 5.59%. 

The Credit Facility includes a number of affirmative and negative covenanls. Additionally, we must comply with certain financiai 
covenants including maintenarice ofa leverage ratio and minimum.Interest coverage ratio. The Credit Facility also restricts our ability 
to make certain investments or dislribuiions. We were in compliance with all covenants as of Oclober 23, 2011. 

7.75% Senior Notes — In March 2011, we issued $300,000 of 775% Senior Notes due 2019 at a price of 99.264% ("Senior Notes"). 
The net proceeds from the issuance were used to repay term loans-under our Credit Facility. The Senior NtJtes are guaranteed, on a 
joint and several basis, by substaritially all ofour significant domestic subsidiaries and certain other subsidiaries as described in Note 
14. All ofthe guarantor subsidiaries are wholly owned by us. The^Senior Notes are genei-alunseciiredpbligatidris and rank junior to 
all of our senior secured indebtedness and senidr to our seriior subordinated indebtedness., The'Seriior Notes are redeemable, in whole 
or in part, at ouroption at ariy time on orafter March 15, 2015, with call premiums asdefinedinthe indenture goveming the Senior 
Notes. 

7% Senior Subordinated Notes - OUT 7% Senior Subordinaied Ndteŝ are due 2014 ("Subordinated Notes") and are guaranieed, on a 
joint and several basis,.byali ofdur.sjgnificant subsidiaries and^certaiii isthe'r subsidiaries as;described in Note 14. Allof the guaranlor 
subsidiaries are wholly owned by us. The Subordinated-Notes are;gerieral unsecured obligationsjand rank junior to all of bur senior 
indebledriess. The Subordiiiaied Noles are redeemable, Iri'whole o'firi pan: at our option atiany tiine with call premlums^as defmed in 
the indenture goveming'the Subordinated Notes. 

The indenture goveming the Subordinated Notes liinits. among other things, our ability and pur restricted subsidiaries' ability to 
borrow money, make resiricted payments, use assets as security jndtherlrarisactioris, enter into transactions with •affiliates or pay 
dividends on or repurchase stock. The indenture also limits ourability to:issue and sell capital stock of siibsidiaries^ sell assets in 
excess of specified amounts or merge with or inio olher companies. 



6. Earnings Per Share 

The follovving table sels forth the compulation of basic and diiuled income (loss) pershare: 

Ihrcf MonlhN Ended Si.\ Months Ended 
October 23, 

2011 
October 24, 

2010 
October 2,1,' 

2011 
October 24. 

201O 
N u m e r a i p r l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S ^ r Z - J 

Income (loss) applicable to t:ommonshai 
^^PL^^lTOTnfcoritiriuingppefaVipns^^^^ 

Incdme from disconfinued operalions 
ai!8T3)II$l^ir^-^;'f3T78'())"i?s.^fe^:(4f4"6s)l 

,794 — • 794 

fLQ19) S (3.780) :$_ (3,674) 

Denominalor: 
^ D a i ^ n l n a t ^ f O T | l ^ i c ' l o ^ p ^ s i i ^ ^ 

Effect of dilufive securifies Empibyee slock 
options 

^Denominatonfor.diluted'tossiper'.share 

Loss from confinuing operalions • 
pncomeifrom\discontinued[operations| 

Net (0.04) 

Our basic eamings (loss) per share are computed by dividing net-loss byithe.weigHted average number of shares outsianding for the 
' period. Due to' the loss from cdntinulng operations,,stock dptioiisrepFesen 22,0fl5;and;38,074.shares, whichare potentially 
dilutive, and l,169,710:and 1,069.710 shares which;^arearili-diluliye;' were excludedTfom'the catculatidn of common shares for diluted 
(loss) per share for thethree "and six inonths ended.Octobef23,'201'f. Due to the lossTrom conlinuirig operations, stock options 
represenfirig 56,350 arid 78.908_shares, which are potcnfially dilutive; arid 1,075,210;and 975,210 shares whichare anfi-dilutive, were 
excluded from the calculalion of common shares for diluted (Idss)per sliare.for the^three and six riiorilhs ended October 24, 2010. 

7. Stock Based Compensation 

Under our amended and restated Long Tenn Incentive Plans we'have:issued restricted:stock and stock options. 

Restricted Stock—During the six monlhs ended .October 23, 20fi;'we:issued50{),995 shares of restricted stock wilh a weighted 
average grant-date fair value of $8.73 to ernplbyees.and 257,pb3;sliares^of restricted stock with a weighted average grant-date fair 
value of $5.37 to directors. Restricted slock avvarded io employees:iindenannual:long-lerm incentive grants primarily vests one-third 
on each anniversary ofthe grant date and for directors yestsTdrie"-lialf ori Jhe;gf̂ ^^ andpne-half on the first anniversary oflhe 
granl dale. Resiricted stock awarded under'our^October 2068'tenderpffer'vesletl iii.October 2011. Our esliriiate of forfeitures for 
restricted slock for employees is.lO%.-No forfeiture rate is estimated'foridlrectors. As of October 23, 2011. our unrecognized 
compensation cost for unvesied restricted slock is $4,789 .with.a-remariilng weighted average vestlngperiod of 1.4 years. 
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Stock Options- We have issued incentive stock oplions arid nonqualified stock oplions which have a maximum term of 10 yearsand 
are, generaliy. vested and exercisable in yearly installments of 20% commencing one year afler the date of grant. We currently 
estimate our aggregale forfeiture rates at 7%. As ofOctober 23, 20! 1. our unrecognized compensation-cost for unvested slock options 
was $423 with a weighted average vesiing period of 1.7 year.s. 

8. Interest Rate Derivatives 

We have entered into various interesi rate derivaiive agreements in order to manage market risk on variable rate terin loans 
oulstanding, as vvell as comply with. In part, requirements under the Credii Facility. We have Interest rale svvap agreements with an 
aggregate notional value of $100,000 with maturity dates in fiscal 2012 and 2014. We have also eritered into inierest rale cap conlracts 
with an aggregate notional value of $220,000 having maturity dates in fiscal 2012 and 2013 and paid premiums of $203 at inception." 

The fair values of derivatives included rii our consolidated balance sheet are as follows; 

-Type of Derivative Instrument Balance Sheet Location October 23,2011 
I iite rbstrfate^ap xdn t rac t s -^^^S^^Prepa i d fdeposits^ari'dfother 

April 24, 2011 

Iriterest'raie swap "contracts 
i-Ote restjrate-swapjcpntractsj 

Accrued interest 
^QthmlonsitefiTilliiHlIiti^ 

The interesi rate cap agreements meel the criteria for hedge accounting for cash fiow hedges and have been evaluated, as of -
October 23, 2011, asbeing fufiy effective. As a result; there is no impact on our consolidated .statement of operatidns from changes in 
fair value of the interest rate cap agreemenis. The loss recorded in olher comprehensive income (Idss) for our iriterest rate cap 
agreements is recorded net of deferred income tax benefits of $26 and $49 as ofOctober 23, 201 Land April 24, 2011, respectively. 
The change in unrealized gain (los.s) on our derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting .was an immaterial arriount arid $26 for the 
.three and six months erided Octdber,23, 2011, respectively. The change iriutireallzed gain (loss)'on our derivatives qualifying for 
hedge accounting-.was $25 and 54 for the three and six monlhs ended^Gclober 24; 2010. respecliveiy: 

Our interest rate swaps no longer meet the criteria for hedge effecliveriess, and therefore "changes in the fair value ofthe swaps 
subsequenl to the date of ineffeciivene.ss in February 2010, are recorded.in derivative incpnie'(expense) In the consolidated statement 
of dperations. The cuintilaliye loss recorded in other comprehensive income^loss);througli,the dale of ineffecllvenessis.being 
•amortized into derivative expense over the remaining term of tlie'in'dividuafinterest'rate swap agreements or when the underiying 
transaction is no longer expected to occur. As of October--23, 20l'l,'lhe vveighted average fixed LIBOR interest rate of our interesi rate 
swap agreements was 4.25%. 

The loss recorded in other cdmprehensive income (loss) of ourinterest rate swap agreements is recorded net of deferred income tax 
benefits of $793 andSl,295, as ofOctober 23, 2011 and April •24.2011, respecfively. 

We recorded income of $929 and $1,367 in derivative Income (expcrise) related to the change In fair value of Interest rate swap 
•conlracls during the three and six months ended Oclober 23, 20f 1, respectively. We recorded income of $2,439 andS4,863 in 
derivative income (expense) related to the change In fair valuc'of Interest rate swap contracls during the three and six months ended 
October 24, 2010, respectively. 

Additionally, during the three and six months ended October 23, 2011, we realizedderivative expense of $669 and $1,338, 
respectively,-associated with the amortization of $418,' netof taxes of $252,'and $836, net of taxes of $503, of cumulative loss 
recorded in other comprehensive incdnie (loss) fdr the interest rate swapsithrougH'the date of their ineffectiyeriess:.During the three 
and six months ended October 24,2010, vve realized derlvative.expenseof $3;182 and $7;093'associate*d\vvilh the amortization of 
$1,992, net of taxes of S 1,190 and $4;44L net oflaxes of $2,652,of cumulative loss recorded In other comprehensive income (loss) 
for the inieresi rate swaps ihrough the dale of their ineffectiveness. 
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The amount of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to interest fate swap conlracts and interest rate cap contracls 
maturing within the next twelve months was $818. net of tax of $492. as of October 23. 2011. 

9. Fair Value 

The fair value ofour Interest swap and cap conlracts are recorded using Level 3 inputs at the present value ofall expecied future cash 
flows based on the LlBOR-ba.sed .swap yield curve as ofthe date of the valuation. 

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 liabiliiies measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the three and six months 
ended October 23. 2011 and Oclober 24. 20! 0: 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
October 21 2011 October 24, 2010 October 23, 2011 .October 24, 201Q 

Financial Instruments -The estimated carrying amounts and fairvalues of our dther financial instruments are as follows: 

October 23.2011 
Carrj'ing 
Ainount 

Apri l 24, 2011 

Fma nc I al :.as_sets: 
Cash andca^egui valents^ 
JviarlKtalil^securiTiesl' '^ 

Fair Value, 
Carrying 
Ainounl Fair Value 

Restricted cash^arid Jriveslmerits 
N o t e s f r e c e i v a b l e S ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ g ^ ^ ^ t ^ ; ^ ^ ^ ? . 

'• r inanciahliabihties:^^^^ 
2S.OO0 $ 

7% Senior .subdrdiriate'd notes 
;7J'7-5%TSenior"riQtes^^W 
Other long-term debt 

25,480 $ 33.000 ; j $ . ,-. 31 350 
F5W0001^^aai505L 

357,275 

^jjjgfilpngllgnnto.tii igafions 

337:625 
•2M532" 

__3^24 

The following methods and assumptions were used-to estimate'the fair.valueof each class of financiai instmmenls for which it is 
practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and notes receivable are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their 
short-term maturities. 

Marketable securities are based upon Level 1 inpuls oblaiiiedTro'm'quoted.prices available In active markets and represent the 
amounts we would expect to receive If we sold these marketablesecuritles. 

The fair value ofour long-terin debt or other long-term obligafidns^ls estimated based onthe quoled market price ofthe underiying 
debt issue or, when a quoted market price is not available, the discounted cash (low offuture 
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paymenis utilizing curreni rates available to us fdr debt of similar remaining maiurities. Debt obligations vvilh a short remaining 
maturity are valued al Ihe carrying amounl. 

10. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

A detail of Accumulated other comprehensive income (lo.ss) Is as follows: 

October 23. 2011 April 24. 2011 
' ^.-^ss:;—"^ ' 

Interest rate swap contracts (1.317) (2.153)' 

The.amount of change In the gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive Iiicome (idss) related to derivative 
Instruments Is as follows; 

Three Months Ended Six Monlhs Ended 

Type of Derivative Instrument 

n . IncomeTaxes 

Our effective income tax rates from continuing operations for the three:and six riidnlhs ended October 23, 2011 were 37.9% and 
45.5%i, respectively. Otir effecfive incdme tax rales from continuing operations for thejhree,and six months ended October 24, 2010 
were 45.9% and 43:2%, respectively. Our eiTective rate is basedpn^statutory,:rates applied'topur Income adjusted for permanent 
differences. Olir actual'effective rate vvill fluctuate based!upon the amount ofour pretax book income.'permanent differences and 
dther ilems used in the calculatidh of our income'tax; benefit. During the six months ended;Octbber 23, 2011, the federafstatule of 
limitations expired for the o'pen tax years ending April 2006'and Aprir-2b07. 

During fiscal 2010, the IRS completed its examination of our federal inconie tax retums which relate to pur fiscal years 2007 and . 
2008. The income tax.exarriinatibn changes were subject to review'b>aheU^S. Congress Joint Commiitee on Taxation and on 
August 20, 2010 vve received notification that the review hadBeen coriipieted with no exception to the examination. As a result, 
during the three monlhs ended October 24, 2010, vve" recogiiized aiax'benefit in discorifiriued operations of $794 related ot the 
resolution df previously un'i-ecognized tax positions relatedto dur former UK dperations. 

12. Supplemental Disclosures 

Cash F/ow —For Ihesix monihsended October 23, 2011 and October.24,'2010, we made net cash payments for interest of $42,225 
and $46,372, respectively. Additionally, we made net income-tax payments of $371 duringthe six monlhs ended October 23, 2()11 and 
received net income tax-refunds S7]:'during the six rrionths ended October 24,,2010. 

For the six months ended October 23; 2011 and October 24: 2010,;the change in accrued purchases ofproperty and equipment in 
accounts payable increased by SS90 and 52,231, respectively. 

Acquisition —We cdmpleted the acquisilion of Rainbow Caslno-.Vlcksburg Partnership, LIP. ("Rainbow") located in Vicksburg, 
Mississippi on June 8, 2010 acquiring 100% ofthe partnei-ship interestsand have includedlhe 
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results of Rainbow In ourconsolidated financiai siatements subsequent to June 8, 2010. The pro forma results ofoperalions, as if the 
acquisilion of Rainbow had occurred on the first day of fiscal 2011, Is as follows: 

Oclober 24, 2010 
Si\ Monlhs 

Fnded 

l>WiU»»../A«.A^.i 

Net revenues $ 502:388. 
Ill ncoine!(lQss)i from] cdhtinui rig ;QperatiQnsibeforeiincome.ta ; 

Net income (loss) from confinuing dperations '(4,396) 
i_Basic^andidiI_u_iedllpss;p r̂sS_ha^^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ( O f l o j j 

V 

13. Commitments and Contingencies 

Development Projects—Construciion is proceeding on time and on budget for our $125,000 lsle Casino Cape Girardeau development. 
To date we have spent approxiinately $26^800 in capital expenditures, including capitalized interest, and expect the facility to be 
completed by December 2012. 

On April 14, 2011, the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort ("Nemacolin") in Farmington, Pennsylvania was selected by the Pennsylvania 
Gaming Gontrol Board for the final Category 3 resort gaming license, We had previously entered intpjan agreement with Nemacolin 
to complete the build-out of the casino space and provide manageriienl services of the casino. Wc currently estimate the project cost at 
approximately S50,()00.,The award ofthe Penn.sylvania license^ioNemacolin has been appealed to the Pennsylvania Supreme Court 
by ope oflhe olhef applicants. Subject to a successful ruling In tlie appeal, we expect lo coniplete constmction ofthe facility within 
approximately nine months after commencing construciion. 

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings—Our vvhoily owned subsidiary. Lady Luck Gaming Corporation and several joint-venture partners 
have.been defendants.in the Greek Civil Courts and the Greek ^dmlnlslrafive.Courts in similar lawsuits brought by the country of 
Greece. The actions'allege that,the defendants failed to make specified payments in connection with the ganiing license bid process for 
Pairas, Greece. Allhough it is difficult lo determine the damages being sought from the lawsuits, the acfion may seek damages up to 
•that aggregate amount plus interest from the date ofthe action. 

In the Civil Court lawsuil,;ihe Civil Court of First Inslance ruled in our favor and dismissed the lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed to 
the'Civil Appeal Court and. in 2003. the Court rejected the appeal: Greece then'appealedtd the Civil Supreme Court and, in'2007, the 
Supreme Gourt ruled that the matier was not properly, before the Civil Gourts'arid should bebefore the Administrative Court. 

I 

In the Adminislrafive Court lawsuit,,the Adminislrafive Coun of First Instance rejected the lawsuit stafing that it was not competent to 
hear the matter. Greece then appealed to the Administrative Appeal Courts .which court rejected the appeal in 2003. (Jreece.Ihen 
appealed to the Supreme. Adminislrafive Gourt, which remanded'the matter back to the Adminislrafive Appeal Court fora hearing on 
the merits. The re-hearing look place in 2006, and in 2008 the AdministrativeAppeal Court rejected Greece's appeal on procedural 
grounds. On December 22, 2008 and January 23, 2009,-Greece appealed tlie ruling to the Supreme Administrative Court. A hearing 
has tentahveiy been scheduled for Febmary 2012. 

The outcome ofthis matter Is still in doubt and cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty. We intend to continue a vigorous and 
appropriate defense to the claims asserted in "this maUer. Tlirough.Pctdber23, 2011, we have accmed an esfimaled liability Including 
interest of $12,256. Ouraccrual is based upon management's estimate of the original claim by.the plaintiffs forjost paymenis. \Ve 
continue to accme Interest ontheasserted claim. We are unable td estimate atbtal possible loss as information as to possible 
addilional claims, ifany, have not been asserted or quantlfied^by tlie'^plalntiffs at this.time. 
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We and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Riverboat Corjioration ofMississippi ("RCM"). are defendants In a lawsuit filed in the Circuit 
Coiirt of Adams Couniy. Mississippi by Sliver Land, Inc.. alleging breach of contracl.In connection with our 2006 sale of casino 
operations in Vicksburg. Mississippi, to a third.party, tn January 2011, the court ruled In favor of SilverLand and in Sepiember 2011 
the.court awarded damages of $1,979. We filed a notice of appeal in November 2011". The'outcome ofthis matter is still indoubt and 
cannot be predicted with any degree of certainly, We intend to confiriue a vigorous and appropriale defense lo the claims asserted by 
Silver Land in this matter. 

We are subject.to certain federal, state and local environmental protection, health and safety law.s, regulafions and ordinances that 
apply to businesses generally; and are subjei:t,to cleanup requirements^at certain ofour facilities as a result Ihereof. We have not made. 
and do not anficipaie making inaterial ex pencil lures, nor do we anticipate incurring delays with'respecl to environmental remediation 
pr prolection. However, in part because our present and fuiure developriient sites have.- in some cases, been.used as manufacluring 
facilifiesor other facilities that generate materials'that are required to be remediated .urider environmental.laws and regulations, there 
can be no guarantee that additional pre-existing condiiions will not be discovered andwe will not experience material liabilities or 
delays. 

We are subjecl to various contingencies and litigation matters and have a numberof unresolved claims. Although the uUimate liability 
oflhese contingencies, this lifigation and these claims cannoi be determined at this time, vve believe they will ndt have a material 
adverse effect on our consohdated finaricial position,- results of operations or cash flows. 

Other—On June 13, 2011, we granted an option agreement.to a;t|iird party forthe sale of certain assets used at our. Lake Charies, 
Louisiana property. We recenlly.reached'ah agreement wilHilhejljuyerwhlch extends Iheirperiod to exercise the.option until 
December 30, 2011 from November 30, 2011. lflhepptidri,is;'exercised:'vve.expect to finalize the transacfion within 30 days after 
exercise. Upon .closing the transaction, we will continue to operateduKLake.Charles hotel and land-based operations and consolidate 
our gaming operations onto one gaming vessel. •, ' 
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14. Consolidating Condensed Financial Informalion 

Certain ofour vvhoily owned subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guaranieed on ajoinl and .several basis, the payment ofall 
obligalions under our 7.75%i Senior Notes and 7% Senior Subordinated Notes. 

The following vvhoily owned subsidiaries oflhe Company are guaranlors. on ajoinl and several basis, under the 7.75% Senior Notes 
and 7% Senior Subordinaied Notes: Black Hawk.Holdings, L.L.C.; Casino America of Colorado. Inc.; CGSC/Blackhawk, Inc.: Grand 
Palais Riverboai. Inc.; IC Holdings Colorado. Inc.; lOG-Black Hawk Distribution Company, L.L.C.: IOC-Boonville, Inc.; lOC-
Caruthersville, L.L.C.; lOG-Kansas Gity. Inc.; IOC-Lula. Inc.; lOC-Naichez, Inc.; IOC Black Hawk County, Ine; IOC 
Davenport, Inc.; lOC Holdings, L.L.C; IOC Services, LLC; lOC-Vicksburg. Inc.; IOC-Vicksburg, LLC; Rainbow Casino Vicksburg 
Partnership, L.P.; IOC Cape Girardeau, LLC; lsle ofCapri Bettendorf Marina Corporalion; lsle ofCapri Bettendorf L.C; lsle ofCapri 
Black Hawk Capilal Corp.; IsleofCapri Black Hawk, L.L.C; lsle ofCapri Marquette, Inc.; P.P.I. Inc.; Riverboat Corporation of 
Mississippi; Riverboat Services. Inc.; and St. Charles Gaming Company, lnc, 

Consolidating condensed balance sheets as ofOctober 23. 2011 and April 24, 2011 are as follows (In thousands): 

As OfOctober 23, 2011 

Baliirice'Shecty Y;^ 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligorl 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Cuarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Enlries 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

m ^ ^:>^^^a^f^^;l:>^Sg^:^iS^^^ nr^;:'JB^^^^->m^^Wft'^i^m^^M 
Cun-ent assets $. 39,299 
intercompanyireceiyables^:N-JFS;v^^^^j^^g^i!^^^995r6g 
inveslmenls in subsidiaries 424.197 

86^^ S 
r(20la35)"M= 

34.070 (5,073) $ 154,922 

(65,610) (37) , 
Pix)perty^ri)J\quiFrmenL^ridf^^^^^ 
Otherassets 65.377 • 437.168 _ 16.904 __ (55,698). 463,751 
rfoM?'^^s-sasmii'ii"§|g^tM."a"^^%^^S^^ 

G5rre;?t^llaiiilities'Y-^^J-^^^W:.'l0f^-:..:3.:^^ 
Intercompany payables 
lfon.g"" îerm^debt.-ilesSiCurTent:maturities" .̂-̂ .:!̂ JMl?f75 -, 6§2j 
Other accmed liabilities . . , 9,003, 

$?^r^t"86T897^Sr^?^^34:011:'^lSS£>^T5f5:073MS"W¥^ 
737.768 — (737.768) — 

tmy^^29 '^mmmi^545%M^^^-^^^m^^! \n9 :S3m 
113J844 13,923 (55,698) 81.0J_2 
3W420)f^^1^(a-7i870)#^Sl^(3Js1o50)l%':;f^^-^-l^ 

Tolal liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,534.090 $ 1.318:222 $ 30.609 $ (i.157.089) $ i.725,832 

As OfApril 24. 2011 
IsleofCapri Consolidating 
Casinos, Inc. Non- and IsleofCapri 

(Parcnt Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating Casinos, Inc. 
Obiisor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated 

BalanceSheet-Vra^-^^y^^r-.^^^^a^:^.^-^?^^.'^-.!-^-^ 
Current assets 
IritHroi-r^iy2rec_eivables"^^^'''5"^^^^5^£^^ 
Investments in subsidiaries 

28,886 
PT020!593^ 

418.767 
Prdpertvrand^iimfenllnery^^^ -,r . i^^^rj"l ' !S^^»l O^JFI 
Other assets 63.889 

[^tdll iSS12Hl^^E5!^^E3lMMiM5£i 

87,650 $ 32.274 $ (451) $ 148,359 
^(226!'226)lf;?^^Ski(56B"99)'rf3^^f737-76Sy^Ml^^^^ 

(65.229) (37) (353,501) —_ 
T^ni7i^m-i"^%Mm3\\9\9:-''^^m^f^-'<.,^z:^?-^^^^^ 

441,794 20,002 (53,705) 471,980 
;$gS1^3Q9r404My$^S^-27:-559^-$.^f;1^145:425)^S'.^:fi-73318883 

Gil JTCrif I i afiil i tJes^,-'' - :^^1^44-1^ 
Intercompany payables 
Lb%-:temifdebt1^lesSiCurreTitJriiaiurifier^J?-:;^^ 
Other accrued liabilities 9,517 
Slock ho! d.e rsjject u n v;:^?^^t^ •'^•^#M3t^il^^^.f.4p^fe3 09;02 8 % 

8i^565^si^^9yd50M$;^EZ!ECMIM$HIir5j]5 
737.768 — (737,768) — 

114,205 13,744 J53,705) 83761 
(35^150 l ' )g^^".t^309.^8ii 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 1.542,350 1,309.404 $ 27,559 S (1.145,425) S 1,733,888 
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Goiisolidallng condensed siatements ofoperalions forthe three and six month periods ended Ociober 23, 2011 and October 24, 2010 
•are as follows (In thousands): 

Forihc Ihrec Months Ended October 23. 2011 
KIc ofCapri .̂  f* 'Consolidating 
Casinos, Inc. Non- ^ and IsleofCapri 

(Parent Guarantor Guararitor" Eliminating Casinos, Inc, 
Obligor) SubMdiaries Subsidiaries^^ Entries Consolidated 

Revenues: 
Gasjno^ 
Rooms, food, beverage, pari-mutuel and 

other 
.G rosslre yenues.i 
• Less promotional allowances 

^$xrs256:o2'!iE$.^^^^K$;^^^^^s$:^^i6iQ2ii 
140 43,822. . ; 2:571 " . (2.247) 44.286 

mou- î̂ .̂ 29simi 
.-(52,836). m ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ W j ^ ' ^ - ' ' ' ^ r 4 0 H ; ,i-':g247!007.^rwW.2:57li-^^^^^f2f247.)1 

^(-2^247,)llB^f^300^3Q73 
-(52.836) 

..et-re-.yenuesg 

©pel^ti jigTexpens^^ 
Gasino . . , 

aming-:taxes 
Otheroperating expenses 
M ariagemen tffe^jTpe'n^e^ 
Depreciation and ainort:izatlon 

i^^^^^^^^^^^i^ -̂ .T ' ^ i . ' ^ ^ : * ^ 

iFoialioDeratme?expensesJ¥^aMSi.j^g^^^^^,^.^^ .^ ... '809^ 
2L867 

'227. •̂42^765? i5f-2f247)M^:Br^228f394g 

0peratirig[inco'me!(ldss^ 
Interest experise, net 
' Dcrivati veil ncoriie^ 
Equity in income (loss) "of subsidiaries 

SfEIIU9MoS 
(6,341) (15,188) 

... »r 260 ^^^-.i»ri. 
2 832 

' 3 : j i : : i r^^ 
lncome'(loss)-from continuing.op'eration's 

beforeincdme tax£s_,. 
Iricome^taxi(pro"yisiQh)^benefit-j ^M 
Income (Idss)Trdm'cdritiriuirig-Qperatibns 

Income (loss) from discontinued-
operations, net of tax. 

NefimcomeiOossjJ 

(3,918). 
• '^2Mh^ 

4!680 
"(fi702) 

16 



For Ihe Three Monlhs Ended October 24.2010 

Casino 
CamingitaxesJ 
Other.operatirig experises 
M atiag'^ientTiee^<^'n5ef(fe ven̂ ^ 

11476 93.003 ' . 1.852 
g.90Qf|^"^¥P , , ,8 .900 ' . ' -^^L:-^: ;^ 

451 21584''- t 144 
. jTdtal Cdp.eratingiexpenses j 3 027^"?r.\^^223 6 8 Q S ^ ^ F , 9 9 6 ^ 

22:179 
S(2:38S)_^"tf^226a 15t 

,Qperaimg; income^ (I OSS )B 
Intej-e'st expense, net 

Equity.-in' income (|9,sg)'bf'Subsidian'es 

Iricdme (loss) from.cdritlriuing operations 
before incoriie tax:es 

Iricdme (loss) frdm cdritlriiiingoperatidris" '(I 813) 3,754 

Income (los.s) from disconfinued 
-operations, riet of tax-

_ _ ^ ^ ^ — ' = I^Ti i^o.nfel(l gss)] 

794. 794 
g 0 1 ^ ) g $ ^ ^ 3 ^ 7 5 4 g $ ^ ^ ^ ^ 9 0 ^ $ ^ ^ [ 4 ? 2 4 ^ ) ^ $ ^ ^ ' O l ! O l 9 ) ] 
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For the Si.\ Monlhs Ended October 23. 2011 
Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Pareni 
Obliaor) 

Con.solidating 
and- . 

Eliminating 
Entries 

lsle of Capri 
, Casinos, Inc. 

" Consolidated 

QperatliTg-pxpeiises: 
>Casino 
.Gami ng jiax e s ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ a ^ 

81,905 
^ ^ ^ ^ 1 1 3 2 1 2 2 1 8 1 ^ 1 ^ ^ ^ ^ 

81:905 
^ U M l 

Other operating expenses 
ManagerrienlTee.:cxpensei(reventie)g 
Deprecialion and amortization' 
ILotaljoperalmg^xpensesj 

21 836 187,670 4 407,' 

^^i-7:33\)xiMJulmw^^:^^m 1 002 42,056 276 

•(4,650) .^: _ ^ ^ £ ^ , ^ 

43,334 
.TF^5 507- i i 'y i^ 45iy4:43. .^rs^-:£^%683^ ^ ( 4 ! 6 5 Q ) ^ ^ ^ 4 5 6 : 9 8 3 1 

Qperatirig|inc"oirie^(lo^s)'^^^ 
I nlerest expense net - ' 
Dmvati\'e'!ihcQ"meI^^IJ| 

^ ^ ^ ^ L Z ( 5 ' 2 i ' 6 ) ^ ^ . : ^ § m ^ : ^ 

Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries 

Income (loss) from contiriiuirig operations 
. before inconie taxes 
Incpmeitax^ f̂proyisi op)-benefit sas 
Incdme(loss) from continuing.operations 

Income (loss) from discontinued 
. operafions, riet of lax 

? ; ^ j j ^ S ^ S a T ? ^ 
NetjincomeT(!oss)| r(3H80JS$" n - f^ '76 lg$^^( -2 (Q2T)S$^M(4R40)^$^^(3 !780) l 



For Ihe Six Mouths Ended October 24, 2010 
IsleofCapri 
Casinos. Inc. 

(Parent 
Obli'-or) 

StiHenierit-ofiQpeFatioils%"'- y%\g.>:^- .̂ %J^S^^Wf^.#^%#^ 

(Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

m.'- " ^ J ^ - ^ - ^ 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolitlated 

Revenues: 

GSind^i^:; ^-^c#^i^^.^ .^- ; r^; :F^$^^. 'ws^M: 
Rooms, food, beverage, pari-mutuel and 

olrier 1.308 
G rpss; re veil ues'> '^^--^r T-4 ^S'-. i^^ .̂̂ y^ ̂  .̂sfn\ĵ -̂ -̂ -,.-!{.\-'.oOZ:fî -̂̂ , 
Less promotional allowances ^ - ' ___ 
Net-revenues..i^%.a^-j.fe>.^.^^^-..g^;.gkr%-^-\i#':@;>-.ffira^l-.308>^^ 

^M3!802M$T'-:r^- # P ^ - S.^-:^:;>^^gK-^SK;^^13!802 

88.255. 4.957 (4.908) 89.612 
f 602•057^M^•5r^^i^:957^^-^^'g"Vf4!9Q8f^I:^^ :6Q3!4141 
(104:842) ' — — (104.842) 

'm97'a\S^m^^m.4\957p'%-'^%'M{4\90?>'^^fmT49mi2S 
I 

Ob-efatin-ii.exneiises:^- a î •̂ .c< -̂> ;̂g i ^ - ^ ^ 
Casino 
Gariiirig •taxB'f^-^'m ^ ^ j ^ m y m m ^ f B i : ^ ^ ' ^ ^ ^•M:^^f^^.M^:M 
()ther_operating expenses 22,501 . 
Klaiiagerrieritifee?cxperise(re'>'!^e^ 

79,588 79^588 

185,175 5.862 . (4,908) 208.630 

43.785 '296 —. 45:112 Depreciation and amortization 1.031 . __; -_^^ _-
iiptaltoperatiSg:expHses'^-gfevB"'-'m.r^-X3^^^ 

QDeratinehncome.(lo.ss)i»^l^^:^:g^-.#^^.wS»fy#^(4;61'2)^g!! 
Inierest expense, net {15^501)'-;. .•. 
DeriiraTivcieTpense:?%M^^^:t^\:Ly.--#.^^^^^fe--^M;f('m 

S g ! ^ ^ ^ ^ t ^ i i 2 o m ^ ^ f e : ^ . ^ y t f e ^ ^ m o ; 6 2 2 l 
;(30,668) " " " (95) — (46,264) 

^ ^ S S ^ ^ ^ I ^ E Z I ^ ^ ^ i E t e S l Q ) ! 
(1.284): - ,— (8.433) 

(1.296) (8.433) (7.872) 
Incdme (loss) from eontiniuing operations 

before jncome taxes - (12.626) 
lri"driie:rax\(i)rVvisiori)iKgriefitV.,''-.a^^t^^^^fe:^i^^>-S8fl-58lP 
Income (loss) from continuing operations . 9j382 (̂949) (8,433) (4,468)" 

Income (loss) frdm disconfinued 
operations, net of tax 794 [̂ .. —; -—̂  ^— 794 

Nl^i^oisgtfig^s)^^:m:^i:^ge^a?:g$g§^^B!674j^^ 
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Consolidating condensed statements ofcash fiows for Ihe six months ended October 23. 2011 and October 24. 2010 are as follows (In 
thousands): 

Six Monlhs Knded October 23, 201 j 
Isle ofCapri 
Caiinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Ohiigor) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guaranlor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidaled unngor) auosiaianes aunsiaiaries r. nines ^-onsoiiaaiea 

SVAtenientmGashiF\ows**^,-mt^:'-M^^^ 
Net cash provided by (u.sed In) operaiing 

activities $ (13,036) $ ,.45.046 $ '•. '^^.-•J : ~ ..-^ .^'^^.^ 
NetSashprovidrdtby;(use3IiKfi>Tvestiri'gf^^ 
^afeiiviiia.^^1^ 'd^L :^'^M.Mu^^:MMM:4m^^&62i).miA^^.03(y)^.:i:A^^^^^ 
Net cash provided by (used In) financing 

activities SME) ^(21J06) .(4.083) 24.909 

equivalents • 3769 (8,822) (3.91S) — (8,971) 
eS^h^d^Ea^^i^leritS'at^begiMingPf^^^S^^''^^ 
feih1rp(^fioa^^-^"#:^.^8t'^^^4^-^^--^'^^;^fc%52l»^^62W^ 
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofthe 

period 7.721 $ 53,283 S 5.203 S 66.207 

Six Months Ended October 24. 2010 
IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligor) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

^Statembnt^dfGilsh^tFlQw^s>^^v:^^r^:^^I^i:w^^"^^^ ' M ' - - m ^ ^ -•^^'f .^V^^l 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating 

acfiviiies 61.833 $ 9^292 $ 4J^732 

Nel cash provided by (used in) financing 
acfivifies 

(98:302)l . . .^ lk^i?9:942)^l^^^5;465^J^, '^M!M'f653) 

59,306 43,109 (7,911) (35,465) 59,039 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

*7-.vwS^'T' -^sa^^i' 

Cash and cash equivalenls at end of the 
period 4.545 $ 53,634 $ 5.954 S — S 64,133 
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report contains statements that we believe are, or may be considered to be, "forward-looking statements" within the 
meaning ofthe Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in tfiis 
report regarding the prospects of our industry or our prospects, plans, financial position or business strategy, may constitute forward-
looking statements. In addition, forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as 
"may," "will," "expect." "intend," "estimate," "foresee." "pro/ect," "anticipate;" "believe," "plans," 'forecasts," "continue"or "could" 
or the negatives of these terms or variations of them or similar terms. Furthermore, such forv/aVd-looking statements may be included 
in various filings that we make with the SEC or press releases or oral statements made by dr with the approval of one of our 
authorized executive officers. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, 
we cannot assure you that these expectations will prove to be correct. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain known 
and unknown risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in 
these forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements contained 
herein, which reflect management's opinions only as of the date hereof Except as required tiy law, we undertake no obligation to 
revise or publicly release the results of any revision to any forward-looking statements. You are advised, however, toconsuit any 
additional disclosures we make in our reports to the SEC. AU subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to 
us orpersons acfing on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained In this report. 

For a more complete descriplion ofthe risks that may affect our business, see our Annual Reporl on Form 10-K forthe fiscal 
year ended April 24,2011. 

Executive Overview 

We arc a developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and related lodging and entertainment facilities in regional 
markets in the United States. We have sought geographic diversity, to limit the risks caused by weather,.regional economic difficulties 
and local gaming aulhorilies and regulations. We currently operate casinos In Mississippi, Louisiana, Mi.ssouri, lowa, Colorado and 
Florida. We also operate a hamess racing track at our facility in Fldrida. 

Our operating results for theperiods presented have been affected' both positively and negatively, by fiuctuating economic condiiions 
and several other factors discussed in detail below. Our historical operating resiilis may not be Indlcativeof our future results of 
operations because of these factors and the changing competitive landscape In each ofour markets, as well as by factors discussed 
elsewhere herein. This Management's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condilion and Results of Operations should be read in 
conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for Ihe fiscal year ended April 24, 2011 and by giving considerafion to the 
following: 

Flooding—Flooding along the Mississippi River caused five ofour properties to close for portions ofthe six months ended 
October 23, 2011. We maintain insurance coverage subjeci to varipus dedtictibles for both property damage and business inlemiptlon. 
Recognition of business interruption recoveries is contingent upon filing and .settlement ofour msurance claims. A summary ofthe 
closure dates and subsequent reopening dates is as follows: 
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Closing Date .Reopening Dale 
Number Days 

Closed 
Davenport^lowa "̂̂ f-/.. 
Caruihcrsvilie, iyilssouri 
Luia=|tyl i_^i^i pp I't C-^-.' 

May 1, 20^. 
£M^M^Ma>i3Mi^il 

hM^^UaO\'Vt:Jls^^L:^5:(^>^k^M^ 

^r i? 
May 13.201 12 

^atch^z^M i s_s_lss i ppitj 
Vicksburg, Mississippi May 11,2011 

MliLneg^2_01MS^!lSSl3jEilSS 
September 2. 2011 91 (B) 
^ J uneir7;"'20Tlin^^xE:^t ^ 

May 27, 2011 16 
m 

(A) Six days of closure in the first quarter of fiscal 2012. 
(B) The second casino barge reopened on September 2, 2011 after fiood damage was remediated. 

Florida Gaming Law Changes — Effective July I, 2010, legislative changes became effective in Florida which lowered the state 
portion ofgaming taxes applicable to our Pompano property from 50% to 35% ofgaming revenues. Additionally, this legislation 
allows our poker operauons to remain open for the same hours as the slot fioor and removes the poker betting limits. Our casino 
revenues and gaming taxes reflect the favorable Impaci oflhese changes In state gaming laws. 

Acquisition of Rainbow Casino -We completed the acquisition of Rainbow Gasino-Vicksburg Partnership, L.P. ("Rainbow") located 
In Vicksburg, Mississippi on June S, 2010 acquiring 100% ofthe partnership Interests and have included the results of Rainbow in our 
consolidated financial statements subsequent lo June 8, 2010. The acquisition was funded by borrowings from ourCredit Facility. 

Discontinued Operations — During the three months ended October 24, 2010, we recognized a tax benefit in discontinued operations 
of SO.S million related to the resolution of previously unrecognized lax positions related to our discontinued former UK operalions. 

Revenues 

Revenues for Ihe three and six month periods ended October 23, 2011 and October 24, 2010are as follows: 

(in (bousands) 

Three Months Ended 
Oclober 23, 

• 2011 
October 24, 

2010 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

Casino 256,021 254.640 1,381 
^o^^!'m^:iim.M^^^m!mim mm^-^t^m'^46om:M-wwt(^3':yi-^k^rm^^)T^ 
Food: beverage, pari-mutuel and other 33,715 33-997 (282) 

0.5% 

^^ia^?i^r^^^^gs?^^:^'^t^e^'>^^^^^ 
Grossrevenues 300^307 299:280 1,027 0.3% 

^(n\836)^i^tJ^(5Wmi^^M^&^i^(W^?^sW. '^ 
247,471 $ 246,651- S20 0.3% 

• j ' .-W"t--": j ' --. >;'TjLess:promotional allowances .̂;'̂ î :iff;j4.v^ « 
Net revenues $ 

Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) 
October 23, 

2011 
October 24, 

2010 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

Casino S 509.057 $ 
^^•ac:^:g?£^.---js:v:.-:^w^:?r'^i^^--e?:--:^-^^ 

•Rooms-.; ̂ .-^aL.b.= ..->a"-^^^fvuf>?'..i- <^ '̂J^ .̂-^-> 
Food, beverage, pari-riiutuel and other 

•Insurance recovenes '̂;"^:^.^---^j.-^^sfe-j^msS 

L^1];M 
66.853 

Gross revenues 
sessipromotionaljallowancesg-'̂ r-^ 

Net revenues 

513 802- $ _ } (4.745)- ^9% 
^2ll324^f-|mri^^^:rr-i20)-fTg-^'j>^;,.^^gyvf.0!6";'o 
68.088 - (1.235). -18% 

_„„„___ 5 9 7 ^ 603,414 •(5,9"89) - -1.0% 
j^^:i^'-^tl?4Q4n?7.BI^I^rroT:S42)1^1j.#'-y^:'^?S95b 

$ '- 493.278 $ 498.572 (5.294) -1.1% 

Emm 
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Casino Revenues -Casino revenues Increased Sl.4 million, or 0.5%. and decreased $4.7 million, or 0.9% for the three and six inonths 
ended October 23. 2011. as compared to the same period In fiscal 2011. 

For the thrce months ended October 23, 2011, casino revenues incrcased at our Pompano and Lake Charies properties by $3.6 million 
and Sl.l million, respectively, refiecting Increased marketing activities. Casino revenues Increased at our Black'Hawk properties by 
$1.8 million In response lo renovations to our casino fioor. poker room and addilional ameriitie's. These increases were partially offset 
by decreases of $1.7 million at our Lula property due to slow recovery from flooding and general markel conditions, $2.1 million at 
our Quad Cities properties refiecting increased competiiion and limited property access due to road construction in Davenport and 
$1.1 million at our Biloxi property primarily due to current economic conditions. 

For Ihe six monlhs ended October 23, 2011, casino revenues for our properties not closed due to fiooding Increased $9.6 million, or 
2.4%, as compared to Ihe same period in fiscal 2011. This included Increased casino revenues of S5.5"million at our Pompano 
property, $3.9 million at our Black Hawk properties and $2.7 at our Lake Charles property partially offset by decreases of $1.8 million 
at our Bettendorf property and $1.3 million at our Biloxi property. 

Rooms Revenue - Rooms revenue remained flat for the three and six months ended October 23. 2011, as compared to the same period 
In the prior fiscal year. Rooms revenue for our properties not closed due to flooding increased $0.4inilllon, or 2.2% for the six months 
ended Oclober 23, 2011, as compared to the same period In fiscal 2011. 

Food, Beverage. Pari-Mutuel and Other Revenues — Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other revenues decreased SO.3 million, or 0.8%. 
and $1.2 miillon. or 1.8% forthe three and six monlhs ended October 23. 2011, as compared to the same period in the Tiscal 2011. 
Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other revenue for our properties not closed due to flooding decreased SO.2 million, or 0.4% for the six 
monlhs ended Oclober 23. 2011, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2011 reflecting reductions in complimentary food and 
beverage offerings to our cu.slomers. 

Promotional Allowances • Promotional allowances decreased $0.2 miillon, or 0.4%, and Increased $0.7 million, or 0.7% for the three 
and six monlhs ended Oclober 23, 2011, as coinpared to the same period In fiscal 2011, Prdmolional allowances forour properties nol 
closed due to flooding increased $1.2 million, or 1.5% forthe six months erided October 23.2011, as compared to the same period in 
fiscal 2011. Changes in our promofional allowances reflect revisions to our marketing plans as a resuli of changes In competition, 
economic conditions and regulations. 

Operating Expenses 

Operaiing expenses for the three and six month periods ended Oclober 23, 2011 and October 24, 2010 are as follows: 
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Three .Months Ended 

(in Ihousands) 
October 23, 

2011 
October 24, 

2010 
^ : : - f^ :0 ;^ -^ 

Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

r-:<ni,,^. ^y] Qjieralirî j expe'nsesf ^"M-'-'i^r'""?'"'^^:'^' v"S? '.'^^•:^- v;̂ -̂ Ĵ .-jy ,̂̂ '-,fe-g;g. 
Casino $ 41.869 $ 

^Gaming,laxes;y;' 
Rooms 

=^Wih097-
39.979 $ 

:60;2llS 

:»-; '̂Vft:^ 
rl 1^'vt^l!" 

1.890 4J% 
I I883MI^!L!^I ! ! ! I^-% 

2,470 . 2,725 (̂255) -9.4% 
E^iO;559r:'gA'i3F--.T^i?ms^ f.:^t.. ^ r^564)7r! :^ iv^^^r^5?i^ ;2llood.'jbev:erage;pari:inutOel^id^othe^ 

Marine and facilities 16,21'1 ' 15.347 ^64 5.6% 
E E a M i n l ! i ^ M m i n i i r a E ^ Z 2 E I K I ^ ^ M l S - 4 , 2 ^ 6 E S ^ ^ L 3 ^ ^ ^ 
Corporale and development - -9.355 ••. -' 10.94Q.-. (1.585) -14.5% 

raDcpreciationrand-:amortizationfr^.-'-'"r^Vjs:g^-^lW^.----gg''i'i21i867ii^^'^ 2V^J^x:4^^'.l^^.xlM% 
Total operaiing expenses $ 228.394 S .226,315' 2,o"79 0.9% 

Six Months Ended. 

(in thousands) 
October 23. 

2011 
October 24, 

2010 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

i s ^ ^ ^ ^ S ^ ^ M H ^ ^ H i ^ ^ ^ S - i i ^ ^ s ^ s d .(pperaiiri'g"exp'enses:̂ :i;j 
Gasino 

rm^'TBi^^'^i 

m^^^^jj^yj 

81,905 
1^1 1122^481 ^tgjgg? arriiiig!laxes| 

Rooms ' _ „ . , . - . , . ' . ^'^^^ 
l ^ H ^ b e ^ r a g ^ ^ n l m m ^ i l l n H ^ ^ i l ] ^ ^ ^ 
Marine and facilities 

arke tin g^aiicl^mJ n i.strati ve'^^'f''-'^S^J;fj.'^a^^^M'29M"3 ( 

5A94_ _(469) -8.5% 
^22:29T^l'^^^^-ga-:>T564)^s::'-^..^;^-;^;^5°/o 

1,769 5.9% 

Total operating expenses 

Casino -Casino operating expenses increased $1.9 million, or 4.7%. and $2.3:mil!lon, or 2̂ 9% forthe three and six months ended 
October 23. 2011, as compared tothe same period in fiscal 2011, Casino operating expense forour properties not closed due to 
flooding increaseti $2.4 million, or 3.8% fpr the six months ended October 23,^Oll. as compared lo.the same period in fiscal 2011. 
Net Increases In casino expenses reflect increased casino revenues at our properties not impacied by flooding. 

Ga/n/ng faxes —State and local gaming taxes Increased $0.9 million, or 1:5%, and decreased $2.1 million, or 1.7% for the ihreeand 
six months ended October 23, 2011, as compared to the same period in fi.scal 2011. Changes in our overall gaming taxes reflect our 
overall gaming revenues and changes in the mix of ourgaming revenues derived from states with differing gaming tax rates. 

Rooms - Rooms expense decreased $0.3 million, or 9.4%, and $0.5 million, or 8.5% forthe three and six ended October 23, 2011, as 
compared to the same periods in fiscal 2011. Rooms expense for our properties not closed due to fiooding decreased $0.3 million, or 
6.3%i for the six monihsended October 23. 20! 1, as compared to'the saine period in fiscal 2011. 

Food, Beverage. Pari-Mutuel and Other — Food, beverage, parl-muluel and other expenses decreased $0.6 million, or 5.1%), and $0.6 
million, or 2.5% for the three and six monihsended October 23, 2011, as compared to the same periods in fiscal 2011. Food, 
beverage, pari-mutuel and otherexpenses for our properties nol clo.scd due to flooding decreased $0.3 million, or 1.5% forthe six 
months ended October 23. 2011, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2011. 
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Marine and Facilities - Marine and facility expenses Increa.sed $0.9 million, or 5.6%). and $1.8 million, or 5.9% for the three and six 
monlhs ended October 23. 2011. as compared to the same periods In fiscal 2011. Marine and facility expenses forour properties not 
closed due to fiooding increa.sed $1.8 million, or 7.8% for the six monlhs ended Ociober 23, 2011. as compared to the same period in 
fiscal 2011. The overall increase in marine and facilities refieci increased spending fdr repairs and mainlenance 

MarkeUng and Administrative - Marketing and administrative expenses lncrea,sed $1.2 million, or l.S%. and $1.7 miillon. or 1.3% for 
the Ihreeand six monihsended October 23. 2011. as comparcd to the same period in fiscal 2011. Marketing and adriilnistrailve 
expenses forour properties not closed due to flooding Increa.sed $2.0 million, or 2.0% forthe six monlhs ended Ociober 23. 2011, as 
compared to the same period In fiscal 2011. These Increases refiect additional marketing expenditures designed to increase market 
share and custoiner visits. 

Corporate and Development — During the three months ended October 23, 2011, our corporate and development expenses were $94 
million compared to $10.9 million for the three months ended Ociober 24, 2010. primarily as a resuli ofthe timing oflong-lerm 
incentive compensalion awards.and development costs in the prior year. During the six months ended October 23, 2011, our corporate 
and development expenses were $21.7 million compared lo $23.5 million for the six months ended October 24, 2010. pririiarily as a 
result of acquisition, refinancing and development costs in the prior year. 

Deprcciation and Amortization - Depreciafion and amortizalion expen.se for the three and six months ended October 23, 2011 
decreased $0.3 million and $1.8 million, respecliveiy, as compared to the same periods in the prior fiscal year, primarily due to certain 
assets'becoming fully depreciated. 

Other Income (Expense) and Income Taxes 

interest expense, interest income, derivative expense and Income lax (provision) benefit for the three and six monlh periods ended 
Oclober 23. 2011 and October 24, 2010 are as follows: 

(in thousands) 

Three Months Ended 
October 23, 

2011 
October 24, 

2010 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

int^^x^eZEM^MZ^^^lffi^ l23H)li$:^lSI^3M^2HI^^5% 
Interest income 193 4̂67 (274) ^58.7% 
'̂ x̂\fâ veAiKtome-{6%\5'6mt̂ ^̂ ^̂ ^ 
Income tax benefit 890 1;53'7 (647) ^2.1%. 

(in thousands) 

Six Months Ended 
Ociobcr 23, 

2011 
October 24, 

2010 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

iriterest^exberise..^-^,- :^r^. ^ . •^ ; -vg- . -y -xy^- 'v^^$I^ 
Interest .Income 
DerivaiiveJric'driielfexpetis"e),g.'^'W"^^^- 'fb| 
Income lax benefit 

X4:̂ 'fi2TM%iM;̂ m,{47liQ5w_A -̂&£t':'̂ ~y:5iyy^^ 
439 941'̂  (502) -53,3% 

3,159 3,404 (245) -7.2% 

Interest Expense - Interest expense decreased $3-5 million for the six monlhs ended October 23, 2011, as coinpared to the same period 
in the priorfiscal year. This decrease primarily reflects the expiration of several interesi rate svvap agreements during fiscal 2011, 
which had notional rates above curreni market rates. 

Derivative Expense— This includes expenses related to ihe change in fair value ofour ineffective inierest rate ,swaps and amortization 
ofthe cumulative loss In other comprehensive income al the date of ineffectivess. Our 
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Inierest rate swaps became Ineffective following the amendmeni of our senior secured credit facility during theTourth quarter of fiscal 
year 2010. The increase forthe six monlhs ended Ociober 23. 2011 compared to the same period jn the prior fiscal year reflects Ihe 
maturity of certain interest rate svvap agreements. ' ' 

Income Tax Benefit (Provision) — Our incoine tax benefit (provision) from continuing operations and our effective income tax rate 
has been impacted our estimate of annual taxable income for financiai stalemenl purposes, our percentage of permanent and other 
Items in relation to such estimated Income or loss, as well as the expiration of federal statute of limilations on open tax years ending in 
April 2006 and April 2007. . 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities - During the six months ended October 23. 2011, vve generated $33.2 million in cash flows from 
operaiing activilies compared to generating $48.7 million during ihe six months ended October 24, 2010. The year over year decrease 
In cash flows from operating activities is primarily the result ofcash payments fdr fiood relaled costs, which will be reimbursed In 
fuiure periods and $4.9 million increase in purchases of trading securities during fiscal 2012. 

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities -During the six months ended October 23, 2011. we used $34.2 miilion for investing activities 
compared to using $111.7 million during the six months ended October 24, 2010. Significant Investing aclivities for Ihesix months 
ended October 23, 2011 included capital expenditures of $34.3 million, including $12.4 million relating lo Cape Girardeau arid 
Nemacolin. Significant investing acfiviiies forthe six months ended October 24, 2010. included the purchaseof the Rainbow casino in 
Vicksburg. Mississippi for $76.2 million, net ofcash acquired and purchase price'adjustments, purchases ofproperty and equipment of 
$25.7 million and increases in resiricted cash at our captive insurance company by $9.8 million lo fund Insurance reserves In lieu of 
providing letters ofcredit. 

Cash Flows used in Financing Activities — During, ihe six months erided October 23, 2011,.dur netcash fiows used in financing 
aclivities were used primarily to repay our outstanding long-term debt df $7.6 million. Duririg the six months ended October 24, 
2010, we had net borrowings under our line ofcredit of $63,5 million which included the borrowing of S80 million to fu rid our 
acquisition of the Rainbow casino in Vicksburg, Mississippi, and also used $4.5 million to repay dther oulstanding long-term debt. 

Availability of Cash and Additional Capital- At October 23, 2011, we had cash and cash equivalenls of $66.2 million and marketable 
securilicsof $27.1 million. As of October 23, 2011, we had $28 million in revolving crcdit and $497.5 million in term loans 
oulstanding under the senior set:urcd credit facility. Our line ofcredit availability at October 23, 2011 was approximately $145 million 
as limited by our leverage ratio. 

Capital Expenditures and Development Activities—As part ofour business development activities, historically vve have entered into 
agreements which have resulted in the acquisition or development of businessespr assels. These business development efforts and 
relaled agreemenis typically require the expenditure ofcash. vvhich may be significant. The amount and timingof ourcash 
expenditures relating to development activilies may vary based upon our evaluation pf current and Tuture' development opportunities, 
our financial condition and the condition ofthe financing markets. Our development activities are subject to a vanety of factors 
including but not limited to: obiainingpennits, licenses and approvals from appropriate'regulatory and other agencies, legislative 
changes and. In certain circumsiances, negotiating acceplable leases. 

Consiruction is proceeding on time and on budget for our $125 million lsle Casino Cape Girardeau development. We coniinue to 
anticipate opening by December 2012 and expect to include 1,000 slot machines; 28 table games, three restaurants, a lounge and 
terrace overiooking ihe Mississippi River and a 750-seat event center. At October 23, 2011, vve have incuri-c'd capital expenditures, 
Including capilalized inierest, of $26.8 million including current year capital expenditures of $11.8 million. We estimate additional 
capital expenditures of approximately $30 million in Cape Girardeau during the balaiice ofthe curreni fiscal year. 

On April 14, 2011, our proposed casino in Nemacolin, Pennsylvania was selected by the Peimsylvania Gaming Control Board to 
receive the final resort gaming license in Pennsylvania. We have entered into a development and maiiagemenl agreement .with 
Nemacolin Woodlands Resort to build and operate a casino which Is expected lo include approximately 600 slot machines" and 28 
table games. We currently estimate the project cost at 
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approximately $50 miillon. The award ofthe Pennsylvania license to Nemacolin has been appealed to the Pennsylvania Supreme 
Court by one ofthe other applicants. Subjecl to a successful ruling In the appeal, we expect lo complete consti-ucllon.of the facility 
within approximately nine monlhs after commencing construciion. The timing of additional significant expenditures is dependent 
upon resolution oflhe items discu,s.sed above. 

We have identified several capital projects primarily focused on refreshing our hotel room invenloiy a.s vvell as additional 
improvemenls to our Lake Charies and Black Hawk properties, and further Lady Luck conversions. The liming, completion and 
amount of additional capital projects will be subjeci to improvement of economic and local market conditions, cash flovvs from our 
continuing operations and borrowing availability under our Credit Facility. 

Historically, we have made significant Investments in property and equipment and expect that our operations will continue to.demand 
ongoing investments to keep our properties competitive. During the six months ended October 23, 2011, we have incurred capital 
expenditures at our existing properties of S22.5 million. For the balance of the curreni fiscal year, we estimate maintenance capilal 
expendilures at our existing properties to be approximaiely $30 million, 

Typically, we have funded our dally operations through net cash provided by operating activities and our significant capital' 
expendilures through operating cash fiow and debt financing. While we believe that cash on hand, proceeds from our equity offering , 
completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, cash fiow from operations, and available borrowings under our Credit Facility will be 
sufficient to support our working capital needs, planned capital expendilures and debt service requirements for the foreseeable future, 
there is no assurance that these sources will in fact provide adequate funding for our planned and necessary expenditures or that the 
level ofour capital investments will be sufficient to allow us to remain competitive in our existing markets. 

We are highly leveraged and may be unable to obiain addifional debt or equity financing on acceptable terms Ifour current sources of 
liquidity are not sufficient or If we fail to siay.in compliance with the covenants of our senior secured credit facility. We will continue 
to evaluate our planned capital expenditures at each of our existing locafions in light oflhe operating performance of the facilities at 
such locations. 

Critical Accounting Estimates 

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance .with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles that 
require our management to'make estimales and assumptions that affect reported ainounts and related disclosures. Management 
identifies critical accounling estimates as: 

• those that require the use of assumpfions about matters that are inherently and highly uncertain at the time the estimates are 
made; 

• those estimates where, had we chosen different estimates or assumptions^ the resulfing differences would have had a material 
impact on our financial condition, changes in financial conditldnpr'results ofoperalions; and 

• those estimates that, if they were to change from period to period, likely would result In a material impact on our financial 
condition, changes in financial condition or results ofoperalions. 

For a discussion ofour significant accounting policies and estimates, please refer to Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to Consolidaled Financial Siatements presented in our 2011 Annual Report 
on Fonn 10-K. There were no newly identified significant accounting estimales in the second quarterof fiscal year 2012, nor were 
there any material changes to the critical accounling policies and estimates set forth in our 2011 Annual Report. 
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Markel risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market raies'and prices, including inierest rates, commodity prices 
and equity prices. Our primary exposure to niarkei risk is interesi rate risk associated wiih our Isle ofCapri Casinos. Inc. senior 
.secured credit facility ("Credit Facility"). 

We have entered Into Interest rate svvap and cap arrangements with aggregale notional value of $320.0 million as ofOctober 23, 
2011. The swap agreements efi'ectively convert portions ofthe Credit Facility variable debt to a fixed-rate basis until the. respective 
swap agreements terminate, which occurs during fiscal years 2012. 2013 and 2014. 

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

We mainiain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed lo ensure that informafion required to be disclosed in our Exchange 
Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the lime periods specified In the SEC's mles and forrns and that 
such information is accumulated and communicated lo our management, mcluding our Chief Exectilive Officer arid Chief Financial 
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding requireddisclosure. 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting for the Company, 
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)- Under the supervision and with the'partlclpailon ofour management, 
mcluding our Chief Executive Ofllcer and Ghief Financiai Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effecfiveness of our intemal 
control over financial reporting based on the framework in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Comminee of 
Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission ("COSO"), Ba.sed on the evaluation, riianagement has concluded that the 
design and operation ofour disclosure controls and procedures are effective as ofOctober 23, 2011. 

Because of lis Inherent limitations, systems of intemal conlrol over financial reporiing can provide only reasonable assurance with 
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. 

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

There have been no changes in our Intemal controls over financial reporting during the fiscal quarterended October 23. 2011, that 
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal controls over financial reporting, 

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

A reference is made to Ihe informalion contained in Footnole 13 ofour unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements 
included herein, which is incorporated herein by reference 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

We are not aware ofany maierial changes to the disclosure regarding risk faciors presenled in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal yearended April 24. 2011. 

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITV SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 

We have purchased our common stock under slock repurchase prograins. These programs allow for the repurchase of up to 6.000.000 
shares. To date, we have purchased 4,895,792 shares of our common stock under these programs. These progranis have no approved 
dollar amount, nor expiration dates. No purchases were made during llie six months ended October 23. 2011. 
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ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 

None. 

ITEM 4. IREMOVED AND RESERVED) 

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 

See Ihe Index to Exhibits following the signature page hereto for a list ofthe exhibits filed pursuant to Item 601 of Reguiaiion S-K. 
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SIGNATURE 

Pursuanl to ihe requirements oflhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ihe registrant has duty caused this repori to be signed on Its 
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

Dated: December 1, 2011 /s/DALE R. BLACK 
Dale R. Black 
GhiefFlnancial Officer 
(Principal Financiai Officer and Aulhorized Officer) 
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EMU HIT 
NUMBER DESCUM'IION 

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a) underthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

32.1 CertificalionofChief Executive OfTicer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350. 

32.2 Certification of Ghief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. 

101 The following financiai statements and noles from the Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended October 23, 2011, filed on December 1, 2011, fonnalted in XBRL; (i) Consolidated Balance 
Sheets; (il) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations; (ill) Condensed Consolidaled Statements of 
Stockholders' Equity; (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash FIdws; and (v) Notes to Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of text. 
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EXHIBIT 31.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE I3a-I4(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

1. Virginia M. McDowell. Chief Executive Ofiicer of lsle of Gapri Gasinos. Inc., certify that: 

1.1 have reviewed this quarteriy report on Form 10-Q of lsle ofCapri Casinos. Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue stalemenl ofa material fact or omit to state a maierial fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in lighl ofthe circumstances under which such statements vvere made, not misleading wilh 
respeci to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial informalion Included in this report, fairiy present In all 
materia! respects the financial condition, results ofoperalions and cash fiows oflhe regislrani as of and for, the periods presented in 
this report; 

4- The registrant's other certifying ofTicer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules,i3a-15(e) and i5d-15(e)) and intemal conlrol over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(0) for the registrant and have 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relaiing to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report Is belngprepared: 

(b) Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal cpntroi over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of firiancial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for externa! purposes in accordance vvith generaliy accepted accounting pririciples; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls and procedures, as ofthe end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 
and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's intemal conlrol over.financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's 
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's intemal conlrol over 
financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying ofTicer and I have disclosed, based on our riiost recent evaluation of iniemal conlrolover financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing Ihe equivalent 
functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operalionof Internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely lo adversely affect the registrant's ability tb'record. process, summarize and report financial infonnation; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not maierial. that Involves management or other employees who have a significant role In the registrant's 
intemal control over financial reporting. 

Date: December 1, 2011 Isl Virginia M. McDowell 
Virginia M. McDowell 
Chief Exec lit I veO ffi cer 



EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE I3a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

1. Dale R. Black, Chief Financial Officer of Isle of Capri Gasinos, Inc. certify that: 

1.1 have reviewed this quarteriy report on Form 10-Q of lsle of Gapri Casinos. Inc.; 

2. Based on my knovvledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement ofa material fact or omit to siaie a maierial fact 
necessary to make Ihe statements made, in light oflhe circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with 
respeci to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairiy present in all 
maierial respects the financial condition, results ofoperalions and cash flows oflhe registrant as of and for. the periods presented In 
this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for eslablishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal conlrol over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules I3a-15(0 and !5d-15(0) forthe registrant and liave: 

(a) Designed such dLsclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including Its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others wiihin those entities, particularly during the period in which this report Is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such intemal control over financiai reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of firiancial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountingprinciples; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effeciiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofthe end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 
and , 1 

(d) Disclosed In this report any change In Ihe registrant's intemal control over financiaf reporting Ihat occurred during the registrant's 
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or Is reasonably likely to malerially.affect. the registrani's intemal control over 
financial reporting; and 

5. The registrani's other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed,- based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the regisirant's auditors and Ihe audit committee of registrant's board of direclors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and maierial weaknes,ses in the design or operation of intemal conlrol over financial reporting which 
are rcasonably likely lo adversely alfect the registrant's ability to record, process, surnmarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, wheiher or not material, that involves managemeni or other employees who have a significant role in the registrani's 
intemal control over financial reporting. 

Date: December 1. 2011 Isl Dale R. Black 
DaleR. Black 
Chief Financial Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

In connection with the Quarteriy Report of lsle ofCapri Casinos. Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended 
Ociober 23, 2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the dale hereof (the "Quarterly Report"). 1. Virginia M. 
McDowell, Chief Execuiive Officer ofthe Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C Seciion 1350. that: 

(1) The Quarteriy Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; 
and 

(2) The Informalion contained in Ihe Quarterly Report fairiy presents, in all material respecls, Ihe financla! condition and results 
ofoperalions ofthe Company. 

Dale: December 1, 2011 /s/ Virginia M. McDowell 
Virginia M. McDowell 
Chief Execuiive Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C, SECTION 1350 

In connection vvilh the Quarteriy Report of lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the "Company") on Form lO-Q for the period erided 
Oclober 23, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the dale hereof (the "Quarterly Report"). 1, Dale R. Black. 
GhiefFlnancial Officer ofthe Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. that: 

(1) The Quarteriy Report fully complies with the requirements of Seciion 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; 
and 

(2) The infomiation contained in the Quarterly Reporl fairly presents, in all maierial respecis, the financial condition and results 
ofoperalions ofthe Company. 

Dale: December 1, 2011 Isl Dale R. Black 
Dale R. Black 
GhiefFlnancial Officer 
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PART 1—FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts) 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, ING. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In thousands, except share and per share aniounts) 
(Unaudited) 
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' W47t680Ol'TW(T57-.273)^;t^^m'fl32f5"22)l l-S .̂':iT'csspr6mbtid1TaliaUdvv;af̂ ^̂ ^ •.m-m^.^ir.i53y:2(,t 

Net revenues . 
fc)perafing;^cxpens^"^r -̂ . Jaa ' ^^ ' • " ' ^Wv^^^^ ' ^mi^^^^ 

Gasino 

242.248 232:007 735:526 730,579 
l ^ ^ : ' ^ ^ ^ i j ^ ^^^•^%^>;jfe>^i^^>.a^; 

41,385 

Marine"and facilities 
^r^.-M^^.^Y^ Markeiing'andi,adhiinistrative^.^^^>1 

.14^602^^ 
J6:.' ' 'g^.ii&^S;¥63!S'63f?^^^6ltB2r?lf: 

14̂ 956 

38.529 123.290 11S.117_ 
^^38f33'l^-:.^^:/^l83>550y^|- ^/^MWimM 

2.002 6,918 7,496 
i'Q^57:^-g-">-^-:32H4'3.^:a^,-g^m£\-32t848a 

Corporate and develdpm'ent: ., : J7^92 _• -S.-Tig 29:548 
DnjVeciatigri!5iid[^momzatid]=it'^..^^^^'i-^^^g^;:^MF^2^^ 

_46^81 ^44,558 
:192;993^-g.-^^^188^801 

Tbtal operating Expenses ' 222:849.̂  . 215.7'14 679;S32 673,664 
Qberatiri'gliricOTiR^^';:^-''.±.^^>;k^'^''^.^^^ri>:^^ 6.293fA^»tSv^^:55r694^^^.^a{,:56:9 l i J 

Interest expense \ . . , (21,737) _.,(2J,506) (65;439) /^S-711) 
lilntefest'inc^e^V'h^;.:^.^^-^ 
Derivative income (expense) 

M2ilSE^M2B!372l 
252 (1.256) 

:,A':m€Vg f̂- • m ^ ' ^ x mi r^ -m:? '^^ : T ^ - A S 
Loss from continuing operations befoî e' income taxes 

ll ricome' tax' bene fi t y . ' ^ - ; ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M [ ^ ^ ^ ^ r ^ 

^.91^ [^°'".9P['''"jiS^ Qperaiions . - . ^^.j.^,.., .»...•,. 0>* ^2) 
i n ^ ine Trqrrird ISCOT ti mIecj(operati ori sftrietjofi u i c b i n e ' f ^ ^ f | ^ ^ K | 

Net loss ,$ • (1.182) $ • (2;657) S (4.962) $ (6,331) 

Loss per common share-basic and dilutive: 
oLoss.from,continuing .operati ons^t-Pi^^S^;:^ 

Income from disconlinued operations; net of income 
taxes 

[ ( P . : o 3 ) Z 2 $ ^ 0$H^^I(QM3)^ •'^-^^'^^(0:22)] 

•r? 
0.03 

:Q3)|;:Sgg^-'(0:08)r^$^^-;^::^(0:B)^S:^?^(0:19Ji muiv^o^-^ / :^^^ - j ^ ^ - l f i ^ ' ' . - ' ' $"1 

^Veighled-^ayerag^e'Barieshares^ '̂ g^%;:yi;̂ '̂ ^m--^^^vg^ î̂ 38T9S2T2S Fn:':̂ 4̂-̂ "32T9'29T965v-*̂ -̂ - 38r670:82? •^"S;:S3i:720:532l 
Weighted average diluted shares 38:982.281 32.929,965 38,670,827 32,726.5'32 

See notes to the conden.sed consolidated financial statements. 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(In thousands, except share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

Accum. 
Other 

Shares of Additiunal Comprehensive Tolal 
Common Common Paid-in Retained Income Treasury .Siockholden;' 

Stock Stock Capital Farnings (Loss) Slock Equitv 
BalanceWAnril24!^201tl\-gg^x;;42!063.-569'^-^;^-S42T^fS254!013^'#i$103!095a^^^ 
Net loss 
Deferred h"eclge t ^ ^ " " ^ 
p^dj,us-tinenfnet^ot T . , - ^ ^ ^ ^ 

incomejtdx proMSion of ^ -*-3 ^ ^ s ^ ^»%.^ 

'iVfii*""" i^' i^ '" 
(4:962) 

^ T 

• f * ' ^ 

:::^.l^,.:.n_64,,^^-r-;^-,i 

(4,962) 

Unrealized gain on 
interest rate cap 
contracls net of income 
tax provision of $36 

Goinprehensiveilossa--jj^^g^^^^-j;^fe^;v^^^'ttffeT<1^--i 
59 59 

i ^ M : ^ m M i m : ^ M ^ ^ m ^ m ^ : f m m ^ m ^ ( ^ 3 m 

Issuance of restricted 
stock from treasury 
stock (9,123) 9.123 

Balance, January 22. 2012 S(37.143) S31i:619 

See notes to the condensed consolidated financiai statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In thousands) 
(Unaudiled) 

Nine Monlhs Ended 
Januarv 22. 

2012 
Januarv 23, 

2011 i.\s 1 i. i.'yj \ I 

<D per̂ ati ngi_ii cti vi ticsTt̂ ;̂'.̂ ?̂'t;̂ t̂ ^ 
Net loss (4.962) S IN ei loss Jl ,, •. . v'-<7?i.' I..JI ll.l' 
?^j ̂ tii^iis35rec^c ile^rj^^to^n^^ 

Depreciation and aniortizalion .......,.,^ ....̂ •̂'̂ ^^ 

(6,331) 

66.934 

Amortizatitin of debt dl-scqunt 
Fll^fg^inncQme.taxesm:^:[n;£S->.^i^ 

i\P>\ 

Stock compensation expen-se 
l(Ciain)jidss.on;denyahveiinstrumcnts^'j^ 

=^Er:^I(3":2Sg)^E^^ 
6.3 n 

— ,r̂ ,f̂ AB.\ 
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets .. „ .̂,.,„. .„. ^•-. 

glfaiiges îrfJopeiî tî 'iassetsiahdHi i t ies;;'nej?6f̂ ac'q ui silj on., j^^ i;̂ '̂  
(Purchases) sales of tradirig securities 

^^^ccd r̂its•^keivable^^^4=.̂ '̂ .̂̂ ^^^ :̂̂ ^^af-̂ •;:,̂ j%fe:i#l 

I lMD)] . 
61024 

Taff^r^iT !;T??^? 
(3:477) 

Insurance receivable • (3,471) 
^ ^ l r i c d r f i e f t a x ; r e c e i v a b l e ^ . ^ ^ ^ S g r : ^ ^ ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ . ^ 3 ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ - ^ -

1J59 

H ' / i ^ O 
Prepaid expenses and.other assets 2.258 2,000 

^:rc^H^pa^blb^ghd%^cTue'cllliabilifies!^:##t^'^^^m^y^-^ 
. ' 70,198 82,784. Net cash provided by operating activities 

• - ' '^- ' ^ ' ^ ^ - r ^ - -r a\.:-^i^ :':i ^ ^ :5i^is^r: P I 
Inyesting activities: ^̂ ^̂  
Rurchajg^fpr^ertvlarrdrequlpmerirg^ 
Net cash paid for acquisition, net ofcash acquired 
Restrictedicashtandnnvesimentsff 
Net cash used in invesiirig activities ._ (45.802) (132,233) 

Financing activities: ' 
Rnncif^paymentsldn^:debL^^-Sife>^^ ir^^^.-"-_ti-:'^-''^^f3W^)M .̂̂ ^^ v -gf6 •60S)1 
Net (repayments) borrowings on line of credit - . (23.000) ' 58.000 
PaNmiTtTfidgrri-edifinariciritz-rcosts^^^^^^^^k^^ 
Proceeds frorii exercise of stockoplions' Ll -• 3 
Na:basli:-(used;iri).pFoyided:b"yifmaVciirg.a t̂lvifier54^^^ 

Effet:'t;of;fo"reignrcu1^rencvrcxcHa^rr7ites^^^^^^ 

Net; itKrease (decrease) _, llî asK|'a'ricl̂ c î°ieq ui^l en Lsi -^'^"f^^:i;-\>^^-:>^-»^U2T752)^^-^^-..^lf897l 
75.178 68.069 

W:^^-^^ m^ •;,'̂ :'-:=?2?426^S^^^y.:̂ :̂869;966'̂  

See notes to the condensed consolidated financiai statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements: 

(amounts in thousands, excepi share and per share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

I. Nature of Operations 

Isle ofCapri Casinos. Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporated In February 1990. Except where olherwise noted, the words 
"we," "us," "our" and similar terms, as vvell as "Company," refer tp lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. We are a 
developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and,related lodging and entertainment facilities in markels throughout the 
United Stales. Our wholly owned subsidiaries own and operate fourteen casino gaming facilities In the Unlled Stales localed in Black 
Hawk, Colorado; Lake Charles, Louisiana; Lula, Biloxi, Natchez and Vicksburg, Mississippi; Kansas Gity, Boonville and 
Carulhersville, Missouri: Beltendorf, Davenport, Marquette and Waierloo, lovva; and Pompano Beach, Florida. We are currently 
constructing a nevv gaming facility in Cape Girardeau. Missouri, which we expect td open by Thanksgiving 2012, subject to regulatory 
approval. 

2. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the mles and regulations of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and in accordance with accounting princlples'generally accepted in the United 
States ofAmerica for interim financial reporting. Accordingly, certain information and note disclosures normally includedin financial 
statements prepared in confonnily wilh accounting principles generally accepted in,the United States have been condensed or omitted. 
In managements' opinion, the accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, corisisting-
of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement ofthe results presented. The accompanying interim condensed 
consolidated fmancial statements have been prepared without audit. The results for interim periods arc nol necessarily indicative of 
results that may be expected for any other interim period or for the full year. These condensed consolidaled financial statements 
should be read In conjunction with the corisblidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-
K_ for the yearended April 24, 2011 as filed with the SEG and all ofour other filings, including Current Repdrts on Form 8-K. filed 
with the SEC afier such date and through the dale ofthis report, which are available on the SEG's website at www.sec.govor our 
website at www.islecorp.com. 

Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday In April. Periodic:ally, this system necessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal 2012 is a 53-week year, 
vvhich commenced on April 25. 2011, with the fourth quarter having 14 weeks. Fiscal 2011( was a 52-week year, which commenced 
on April 26.2010. • . - • i 

The condensed consolidated financiai statements include our accoiirits and those ofour subsidiaries. All significant intercoriipany 
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period fmancial 
slalements to conform to the current period presentaUon. We view each property as an operating segment and all such operating 
segments have been aggregated into one reporting segment. 

3. New Accounting Pronouncements 

In September 2011, the Financial Accounling Standards Board, ("FASB") issued Updale No.,2011-08, "Testing Goodwill for 
Impainnent." which amends Accounting Standards Codification 350 "Intangibles — Gpddvvill and Other." This updale permits 
entitles to make a qualitative assessment of whether a reporting unit's fair value is,.more likely than not, less than Its^carrying amounl. 
If an entity concludes it is more likely than not that the fair value ofa reporting unit is greater- than iis carrying amount, the entity is . 
not required to perform the two-step Impairment test for that reporting unit. The update'is effective for annual and interim goodwill 
impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011, with early adoption permitted. We do not expeci the 
adopfion lo materially affect our consolidated financial siatements. 

http://www.sec.govor
http://www.islecorp.com


In June 2011. the F.A,SB is.sued Update No. 2011-05. "Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive Income." 
vvhich allows for the presentation of lotal comprehensive incoine. the componenis of nel Income, and the componenis of other 
comprehensive income either in a single continuous stalemenl of comprehensive income or in iwo separale bul con.secuiive 
statements. In addition, the guidance eliminates the opiion of presenting the components of oiher comprehensive income as part of the 
statemenl of changes in stockholders' equity. This guidance Is effeciive for inlerim and annual reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2011. While the adoption wil! impact where we dLsclose Ihe components of other comprehensive income in our 
consolidated financiai statements, we do nol expect the adoption to have a material impact on ihose consolidated financial statements. 

4. Flooding 

Flooding along the Mississippi River caused five ofour properties to close for portions ofthe nine months ended January 22, 2012. A 
summary ofthe closure dales and subsequent reopening is as follows: 

Nujnher Days 
Closing Uate Reo[)cning Date Closed 

i^mlif5^'20J4^^MMa7I1^2pj|!i^^£^a-iMiliil5(^ 
Davenport, lowa 
GaruthefsyilleSMlssourily^^ 

May 1^011 
l^yiiMOM 

May 13^011 
^ 

12 

Lula, Mississippi 
?Qatch'ez:; M ississl p pV^^^^^-^i^Si 
Vicksburg, Mississippi 

iMa}g7f2QJ:l^ 
May 11,2011 

^Juiie^'^O M1gy:'-;i3?ga^,.^X:.--i'^-jv^3'l?:^ 
September 2: 2011 91 f^ 

nJuneTi?7^20nr-v4t^!^^t^yu^^.J%:4l^ 
May27,20'll 16 

(A) Six days of closure In Ihe first quarter of fiscal 2012 and nine days of closure in the fourth quarlerof fiscal 2011. 
(B) The second casino barge reopened on September 2, 2011 afier fiood damage was remediated. 

Operations were impacied beyond the number of days closed as business levels fiuctuated before actual closurc and for extended 
periods of time after reopening. We maintain insurance coverage, subject to various deductibles, for bolh property damage and 
business interruption. We have a receivable of $2,7! 1 at January 22, 2012 represeniing the unreimbursed portion of allowable direcl 
reimbursable costs and property damage net ofthe insurance policy deductibles. During the three and nine monlhs ended January 22. 
2012, we recognized S872 and $983. respectively, of revenue, included in insurance recoveries In Ihe consolidated statemenl of 
operations, as partial settlement ofour business interruption claims related to our Caruthersville, Davenport, Natchez and Vicksburg 
properties. Any additional business interruption claims will be recognized in the periods settled. 

5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-iemi debl consists oflhe follovving: 



6. Earnings Per Share 

The following table sels forth the computation of basic and diluted Income (loss) per share: 

three Months Knded Nine Monlhs Rndcd 
Januarv 22. 

2012 
N umeĵ tof; gf-.̂ -̂- •; ' -mT^i . 

January 23, Januarv 22. JanuarV 2,1, 
2011 2012 20li 

^ Jncome (loss) applicable to comrnon shares: 
g-4^ If OSS 'frorii •'cbriti nul rigK)'pefati diis?^v^^^gB^ : . ^ 

Income from discontinued operations 

Net loss 
- 7^. -...^yTT 

^(4^1"82)MSp<^^if(-2T657)l^$^^^^f4:9'62)f7$:?^?^^ln(7rL^^^ 
— 794 

^mMM^^-ti^x^M^:mjm. 
(1.182) S_ (2.657) $_ (4.962) $ 

g ? ^ . - , i ^ 
(6.331) 

%^Mi^MkM:^M^A^£j^^Ji^ZiSMM 

^ii'̂ DeriominatorToridllutedTlosslperisHa 
O-^rsftweightedjaverage ^shares'and • assumed.^^-?t#C.*^k' 
^^E^conve r.sionsf-̂ .-̂ *4gEv̂ -: 

Baslc'-aiTdTSilulird'ldssJpenshare; 
Loss from continuing^perations 

jp>?!ncome;fi-omfdiscontmuca!operationsi^ 
Net loss (0.03) S. 

(0.08) S ...(0.13) $ (0.22) 

(0.08) $ (0.13) $ (0.19) 

Our basic eamings (ioss) per share are computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares outsianding for Ihe 
period- Due lo the loss from continuing operations, stock options representing zero and 21,655 shares, which are potentially dilutive, 
and 1,279,710 and 1,169,710 shares which are anti-dllutive, were excluded from the calculation of common shares for diluted (loss) 
per share for the three and nine months ended January 22, 2012. Due to the idss from continuing operations, stock options 
representing 144,909 and 95,615 shares, which are potentially dilutive, and 475,210 and 475.210 shares vvhich are anti-dilulive. were 
excluded frdm the calculation of common shares for diluted (loss) pershare forthe three ahd nine months ended January 23. 2011. 

7. Stock Based Compensation 

Under our amended and restated Long Tenn Incentive Plans we have issued restricted stock and stock oplions. 

Restricted Stock—During the nine monlhs ended January 22, 2012, we issued 500,992 shares of restricted .stock with a weighted 
average grant-date fair value of $8.73 to employees and 257.003 shares of restricted stock with a weighted average grant-date fair 
value of $5.37 to directors. Restricted stock awarded to employees under annual long-term incenlive grants priniarily vests one-third 
on each anniversary ofthe grant date and for directors vests one-half on Ihe grant date and one-half on the first annjversao' ofthe 
granfdale Restricted stock awarded under our October 2008 tender offer vesied in October 2011. Our estimate of forfeitures for 
restricied stock for employees is 5%. No forfeiture rale Is estimated for direclors. As of January 22. 2012, our uru-ecognized 
compensafion cost for unvested restricted stock is $3,961 with a remaining weighted average vesting period of 1.1 years. 



Stock Options- We have Issued Incenlive stock options and nonqualified stock options which have a maximum term of 10 years and 
are, generally, vested and exercisable in yeariy Installments of 20% commencing one year after the date ofgrani; Wc currently 
estimate our aggregate forfeiture rates at 13%. As of January 22. 2012. our unrecognized compensation co.st for unvested stock opiions 
was $327 with a weighted average vesiing period of 1.4 years. 

8. Interest Rate Derivatives 

We have entered into various interesi rate derivative agreemenis in order to manage markel risk on variable rate tenn loans 
outstanding. We have an interesi rate swap agreement with an aggregate notional value of $50,000 vvith a maturity dale in fiscal 2014. 
We have also entered into inieresi rate cap conlracts with an.aggregate notional value of $200,000 having maturity dates in fiscal 2012 
and 2013 and paid premiums of $203 at inception. 

The fair values of derivatives included in our consolidated balance sheet are as follows: 

Type of Derivative Instrument Balance Sheet Location 
^I^fepaid rd eposi ts/andfolhefj 

Januarv 22. 2012 April 24, 2011 
I ritefestrni tercap;."cdntracts""j 
Interest rate swap contracts Accmed inierest 
I riterest'"i^fe-swap;conIracts^?:^^.'-'g^.-Other^ldrig-Jerm'^liabilifies; 

a:aS';r'-^Vff^"""i#2. 
_ „ ^ ^39 

l2[9mjm.^mm't'7mf3WM 

The interesi rate cap agreemenis meet the criteria for hedge accounting for cash flow hedges and have been evaluated, as of 
January 22, 2012, as being fully effecfive. As a result, there is no iinpact on our consolidated stateriient ofoperalions from changes in 
fair value ofthe interest rate cap agrecmenls. The loss recorded in other comprehensive income,(loss) for our interest rate cap 
agreements is recorded net of deferred incometax benefits of $13 and $49 as of January 22, 2012 and April 24. 2011, respectively. 
The change in unrealized loss on out- derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting was S3 and $29 for the three and nine months ended 
January 22, 2012, respectively. The change in unrealized'gain (los.s) on ourderivatives qualifying for hedge accounting was $63 and 
$67 for the three and nine months ended January 23. 2011, respecliveiy. 

Our interest rate swaps no longer meel the criteria for Hedge effectiveness, and therefore changes in the fair value ofthe .swaps 
subsequent to the date of ineffectiveness in Febmary 2010, are recorded in derivative Incorne (expense) In the con.solidated statement 
ofoperalions. The cumulative loss recorded in other comprehensive Iricome (loss) through the date of ineffectiveness is being 
amortized into derivative expense over the remaining lenn ofthe individual Interest rate swap agreements or when the underiying 
transaction Is no longer expected to occur. As of January 22, 2012,, the weighted average fixed LIBOR interest rate ofour inierest rate 
swap agreement was 3.995%. 

The loss recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) ofour interest rate .swap agreements is recorded net of deferred income tax 
benefits of $595 and $1,295, as of January 22, 2012 and April 24, 2011, respectively. 

Derivative income (expense) relaled to Ihe change in fair value of interest rate swap conlracts is as follows: 

Three Monlhs Ended Nine Monlhs Ended 
J3nuar>' 22, 

2012 
P,erivatiye;mcome:(ex pense) ti^'^]^'±&. Ŝ f̂̂ M 

January 23, Januarv 22, January' 23, 
2011 2012 2011 

^^^•2B44^$gW.iiy:f2M4'6!^Sfr^:#-':Jr207^ 
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Derivative incoine (expense) realized associated with the amortization of cuinulallve loss recorded In other comprehensive income 
(loss) for the Interest rate swaps through the dale of ineffectiveness is as Ibllows: 

Three .Months Knded .Nine Monlhs Ended 
January 22, Januarv 23. Januarv 22. Januars' 23, 

2012 201'! . 2012 2011 
tecTiinulaled-:Qei-aliidrtizatio1i^iiWJ::'W"'$^X^^^a^328^$^^^^lS .'l 64>|:$^.^J^V^5;'299j 
Changein defen-ed taxes 198 512__ 700 3.164 
Dm\-ativ-e!incoin^fe\-p'ense)T^^^I^,;im-ffiT.^^L-f-^^^ 

The amount of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to interest rate swap contracts and interest rate cap contracts 
maturing within the next iwelve monlhs was $616, net of lax of $371, as of January 22. 2012. 

9. Fair Value 

The fair value ofour interest swap and cap contracts are recorded using Level 3 Inputs at the present value ofall expected fuiure cash 
fiows based on the LIBOR-based swap yield curve as ofthe dateof the valuation. 

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the three and nine months 
ended January 22. 2012 and January 23. 2011: 

Three Months Eiided Nine Months Ended 
Inieresi Rate Hedj-es Jann3rv22. 2012 .. January 23. 2011 Januarv 22. 2012 Januarv 23. 2011 
Bcgirihlri'giBalancelf^fe<^^^^&.*»t:gy::m:j^.i^1^.'^PSI^M^ 

Realized" gal ns/Qosses) • • _ ] ' ^ ^ _ _ _ ^-345' -• 2,116 7,208 
mWnveaiizedmi'm\osfcsf^kW^M^'^.^mm-M^::Mm.^m^^ 
Ending Balance $ (2,917) $ (5.652) $ (2.917) $ (5.652) 
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Financial Instruments -The estimated carrying amounts and fair values of our olher financla! Instruments are as follows: 

Januar\-22, 2012 ' April 24, 2011 
CaroinR 
Amount Fair Value 

Carrying 
Amounl Fair Value 

S 72,426' $ " 72;426' $ 75,178 $ 75,178 
m25mS^m:h::.h^A^\C60.n^^^:^'^j:'rn7y^^ 

12-492 12,492 12,810 

^ ^ h and cash equivalents 
M arketabielsecu'ri 11 c's ̂ ;̂ °|, 
Restricted cash and investments _ ^ _ ^ ^ _ _ 12,492 12,492 12,810 J2,810 
. § f i i i r e c e M l a S S S I l ^ l ^ S ^ i l l ^ ^ ^ ^ S l f 9 Z i ^ ^ ^ l ^ ^ 

^ E m a ^ c i W i a l i i t i l ! ^ ^ ! ! ^ ! ^ ^ 
Revolving line ofcredit $ _ 10.000 -$- 8,550 $ 33.000 $ 31.350 
X^ai^iabieratetemvaoai^s'^^'^L^,?^'!?-^^^^ 
7% Senior subordinated notes 357.275 351,9fb 357.275 35S^615 . 
flW5V^g^or:uoiestf^.'i^'m!-£m'^^X^^^m^:^:m^s^M'M^ 
Other long-tenn debt 3,927 3,927 4,504 4,504 
Qliier:iono^terin!obli^ibriim^ 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fairvalue ofeach class of financiai Instruments for which it is 
practicable to estimate that value; 

Cash and cash equivalenls. restricted cash and notes receivable are carried at cost,.which approximates fair value due to their 
short-term maturiiies. 

Marketable securities are based upon Level 1 inputs obtained from quoted prices available In active markets and represent the 
amounts we would expect to receive if we sold these marketable securities. 

The fair value ofour long-term debt or other long-term obligations Is estimated based on the quoted market price ofthe underiying 
debt issue or, when a quoled market price is not available, the discounted cash flow of future payments utilizingcurrent rates available 
to us for debt of similar remaining maturities. Debt obligations with a short remaining maturity are valued at Ihe carrying amount. 

10. .Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

A detail of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is.as follows: 

,•..._.,..,.__ .___.' „ u . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . January 22,2012 April 24.2011 

]hitfesiMt'^ip\imTacis^.ym^'^im.^3^mtm^^mM^mmmm^ 
Interesirale swap conlracts __J_ (989) (2.153) 

The amount ofchangc in the gain (loss) recognized in accumulated olher comprehensive Income (loss) related to derivative 
insirtiments is as follows: 

Three Momhs Ended Nine Months Ended 
Januarv 22, Januarv23, Januarv22, January 23, 

Type of Derivative Instrumenl 2012 ;2Q11 2012 2011 
Iriterest.rate''bTtreohl'ract:'^Far.v^r.:t:''^S'-^fe-.^''f^^ 

858' i:i64 5.299 
^^879^$?'^^i^--JH-223.;^$;-^B^-^^-5r294^ 

Interest rate swap corilracis 328 _ 
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11. IncomeTaxes 

Our effective Income tax rates from continuing operalions for the three and nine monlhs ended January 22. 2012 were 38.8% and 
44.1%, respectively. Our elfeclive incoine tax rales from confinuing operalions forthe ihreeand nine monihsended January 23. 2011 
were 30.2% and 39.0%. respecliveiy. Our effeciive rate isbased onstatulory rates applied to our Income adjusted for permanenl 
differences. Our actual effeciive rale vvill fiuctuate ba.sed upon the amount.of our pretax book income,pennanent differences and 
other items used in the calculation ofour income tax benefit. During the nine months ended January 22, 2012, the federal statute of 
llmiiaiions expired for the open tax years ending April 2006 and Apnl 2007. 

During fiscal 2010, the IRS completed its examination ofour federal income-tax retums which relate to our fiscal years 2007 and 
2008. The income tax examination changes were subject td review by the U.S. Congress'Joint Committee on Taxation and on 
August 20, 2010 we received notification that the review had been completed v/ith no exception to the examination. As a result, 
duringthe nine monihsended January 23, 2011, we recognized a tax benefit in'discontinued operafions of $794 related to the 
resolution of previously unrecognized tax positions relaled to our former UKpperations. 

12. Supplemental Disclosures 

Cas/j F/oiv — For the nine months ended January 22. 2012 and January 23, 2011, we made net cash payments for inieresi of $50,820 
and $61,210, respectively. Additionally, we made net income tax payments.of $947 during the nine months ended January 22. 2012 
and received net income tax refunds of S5.733 duririg the nine months ended'January 23, 2011. 

Forthe nine months ended January 22. 2012 and January 23, 2011, the change in accrued purchases ofproperty and equipment in 
accounts payable increased by $5,194 and $859, respectively. 

Acquisition — We completed the acquisition of Rainbow Gasino-Vicksburg Partnership, L.P. ("Rainbow") located in Vicksburg, 
Mississippi on June 8, 2010 acquiring 100% ofthe partnership interests arid have included the results of Rainbow in our consolidated 
financial statements subsequent to June 8, 2010. The pro forma results ofoperalions, as'if the acquisition of Rainbow had occurred on 
the first day of fiscal 2011. is as follows: 

January 23. 2011 

?^o-f6rrmm4^mmmm\mms^m-mmissmi 

Nine Months 
. Erided 

Net revenues 
^IL'OSSj from; cphti rim ri'gfoperafi (ms'before; i n 'cometSes^ 

Net loss fi-om confinuing operatioris . -
|^Basic:and-diluted: I qssj per shareTrom:conlinuing{opcrations)^g 

^" .^S^i^^i^ 

' (7.053) 
^ ^ ^ 1 ( 0 ^ 2 2 ) 1 
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13. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information 

Certain ofour wholly owned subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guaranteed on ajoinl and .several basis, the payment ofall 
obligations under our 7.75% Senior Noles and 7% Senior Subordinaied Noles. 

The following wholly owned subsidiaries ofthe Company are guarantors, on ajoinl and several basis, under the7-75% Senior Notes 
and 7% Senior Subordinated Notes: Black Hawk Holdings, L.L.C; Casino America of Colorado, Inc.; CCSC/Blackhawk, inc.; Grand 
Palais RlverboaL Inc.: IC Holdings Colorado, Inc.; lOC-Black Hawk Dlstribufion Company, L.L.C; lOC-Boonvllle, Inc.; lOC-
Caruthersville L.L.C; lOG-Kansas City. Inc.; lOC-Lula. Inc.; IOC-Natchez. Inc.; IOC Black Hawk County, Inc.; IOC Davenport. 
Inc.: IOC Holdings, L.L.C; IOG Sen-'ices, LLC; IOG-Vicksburg. Inc.; lOG-Vicksburg. LLC; Rainbow Casino Vicksburg Partnership, 
L.P.; IOC Cape Girardeau, LLC; IsleofCapri Bettendorf Marina Corporation; Lsle of Capri Bettendorf L.C; IsleofCapri Black Hawk 
Capilal Corp.; Isle ofCapri Black Hawk, L.L.C; Isle ofCapri Marquette, Inc.; P.P.I, Inc.; Riverboat Corporafion ofMississippi; 
Riverboat Services, Inc.; and St. Charles Gaming Company, inc. 

Consolidating condensed balance sheets as of January 22, 2012 and April 24. 2011 are as follows (in thousands): 

As of Januar>' 22, 2012 

Current assets .... •• i_,,.„,. i _.i.i 
Intrrcompaiiyjfecei vables y^J^^^^'^M^t 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Ohiigor) 

§m 
3L172 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolid3linf> 
and 

Eliminaling 
Enlries 

Is leofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

Investments In subsidiaries 
Prdpcrt \^an5 fequipfii ent. "nef; 
Other asseis 

$ 90,873 $ 28,884 $ " (2.827) $ 148,102-
^ ^ • l ^ i 8 2 6 ) m i ^ ^ ^ ^ , (49^52)"-^'-.r^f7"62t76S)>?:^- ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

68.143 

• (66.190). (37) (361,427 
..^•,^mQ6m96^Wmi32^3mtyW::^-'^:r'^^--4m^f^ w:m\^ GT. _ 

16.759 (60.020) 460.842 435,960 
|Tmal{as5Mt'.^^ra:;fngli%^mm^?fe#-$SagfH527{607.flS^SI^ 

Intercompany payables 
Lorigrterm [debt"Iilcss:curferit: maturi fiesg.'.g^^g?-^l ? 1 '56^51 
Other accrued liabilities 8780 
"Stociawrders'/eVuitvKg:m4V̂ £-̂ ĵ̂ -;|ĝ ^̂  

^Sllg83!7g9!^$W^f^3l^3Tf$^nW(2^27)1^ST^fI^2l%8^ 
^ "762,768 ' — (762,768) 1 _ — , 

^^^f^-^3M9.l^^m?r^^:-509if^:^-^-^^.X--i^S'F^:?lW60l28^ 
114,194 14.171 (60J320) 77.125 
378f897J^^S>'l('f7.^470):^#'"^g(-36H427)i^.-m^31-l!^9l 

Total liabilifies and stockholders'equiiy $ 1,527,607 $ 1.342,907 $ 28,463 $ (1,187.042) $ 1,711.935 

B^^nceS heet'l^^^ J^:^^:^:. ^:~'¥mf{^.m^l 

Is leofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parcnt 
Obligor) 

As OfApril 24. 2011 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Suhsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Enlries 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

'•K-
Current assels .28,886- 87.650 $ 

10^^/^^^-- ' i ^ ; . ^ ^^v-c^ ^ y i a: i A ^ £ i ^ 
32.274 $ 'u^uiiciit a.-sat.-La ji .zo. t>oo- -f. ai;Djy o JA.AJJ* J (451) $ 148,359 

Irile'ri:dmb3ri-y7i'̂ givabl̂ :̂̂ :̂i.̂  ̂ •'•^'^£i^k'^^^t^^hQ20^92^^M^(226m:<S)^^i:^Ji(56r599mdl^:(73%76sW^^. ^ ^ ^ & ^ ' ' 
Investments in subsidiaries 
I^ropertyiari^dLequipmerittrriei'. ^^-^^-•::^'^-j,^^(^. 
Other as.sets 

41S;767 

63,889 

(65.229) (37) t353,501) 
^QT215^^MT07T!^T5^i:T^g-^3ir9r9~'»4 •:0 -̂'W^ 

441,794 20:002 (53,705) 47r,980 
ifol^lfassets ,^^^J3^^:a?%^^,:^^:$:5^1^542:350|^$^^n309r404: |^$^^^ 

G m ^ t i i i a i L l i l i e s ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ g 
Intercompany payables 
Ldngltbmi^ebtFfiess'curteni'matuhfies--'^ 
Other accrued liabilities 9.517 

ii!5'65j 
737^68 

^TQ50Ms^^^SIi-iSsi 

STo^kh'QrdgB'i^Quitv:5^-^^S^i^^Wig^:^jt^'^^IG09:Q28'l 
Total liabilifies and stockholders'equity $ 1,542.350 $ 1.309.404 $ 

— (737:768) — 

114:205 _ 13.744 (53.705) . 83.761 
^^691349.^^^: W^^:fT5^84Sl>^^^^^i(353^^):^^.f'^¥3b9;028i 

27,559 S (1.145.425) $ 1.733.81 
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Consolidating conden.sed statements ofoperalions for the three and nine month periods ended January 22, 2012 and January 23. 2011 
are as follows (In thou.sands): 

For Ihe Three Munltis Ended Januarv 22. 2012 

Statement of Operalions 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Ohliaor) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

lile of Capri 
Ca.sino.s, Inc. 
Consolidated 

1 .̂̂ -̂ '̂;̂ ^%. ^ . . ^ . i ^ ^ ^ '4.--'-^:. -rT^^ nm^^3 Revenubs: -E-t̂ X̂:̂ . ̂ ^ : s m ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ . .^u'r^S'^J 
Casino $ — .$ 
Ro_qms;; fppd,\bexerager: pantmu I ue I j and •.Qther^#^>tmf^i '̂m4;/.9 Mm-
Gross revenues 479 
Less:promotional;allovyances^^-g- • .̂j:£.% ̂ ^WTWm'̂  

251.371 $ — S — $ 251.371 
i ^ " 3 B T g g ^ ; ^ ^ : 2 5 4 ; , : i ^ - ^ - . ;(2;246)A>i.-.:.-'.44!ooy3 

•294,887 . 2,254 (2,246) 295,374 
SI^T? • ^ J1 H"-3 ^ S^.g, - T "-'^' y^ *̂  

Nel revenues 
u' im:^^m:i^i^Mm^^'^^w^ 

479 241.761 . 2.254 (̂ 4246) 242,248 

Operaiing expenses: 
• G i m ^ ^ ^ ^ ™ 
Gamiiig taxes 

'Other.operatmg-expenses^g.S^-. n--;#f,'^i^<g^ 
61,069 — — 6i;069 

gM9ltf65^S-S^.f4327.^'^r'S'-?g.^^If254S) g gj-'ft:i9st990i 
8̂ 350 

^2Q!^S^ ' ^ l gy i ^ - J138 -^ .g j ^>^^?^ ' ^ ^ It405: 
Total Qperallng expenses 

^•^^^^-'^'^^r'-'iH,, 

883. :222:747' 1,465 (2.246)- 222.849 

Operating income (loss) (404) 
rni^em^roense%wm'^^%i^--^jAm-'^mm^^mim2)^ 
Derivative Income 223 
fqtlifei^il^ga^g^lS^^yofgtltJ^idl^fi^^ll^^l^l^^l! 

19,014 ' 789 — J M 9 9 
l tS&l I ) l^E^(M)^E^I i ;^^^ [ l l fe52] ] 

— — ^~__^ 223 

Iricdriie](ldss)Tfr'dmfCoiUiriuin'ĝ dperatidriŝ ^̂  

Net income (loss) 400 $ (2.800) $ (1.182) 
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For Ihe Three Months Ended Januarv 23. 2011 

Statemenl of Operation 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Pareni 
Obligor) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guafantor 

Subsidiaries. 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Enlries 

'Isle ofCapri 
Casinos. Inc. 
Consolidated 

Revenues:! 
Casino 

^•-^3^:^^^^w^mmFr^ im?; 
- ^ $' •240:205' $. 

- , , r$ - ;h . l^ ' 7 f ^ ,yr-,.a"i?Tî .̂ , •-J-'T-
— $ 

^̂ '•̂ "̂ 1 
R'qpiifs|'|fo&d,^jc vera^^ I; and [oihei-^ 
Gross revenues 
Igs^fR^motibnal alldwaricesv':^^^ •^.^'^M.^^^P^J 
Net revenues 

— S 240;205 
l^l '62l^giC^5^39:295^^^7^>-2;413lX^X7ir2"-3SS)?ry^r^39; 

162 279.500 2,413 (2.388) 279.6S7 
r(47t68(j)l^#.-;:.!?: ^ ' f^ . ig"r??J '^;^_• 'e^-t^if47:S80)l 

m^K i^m^^-m^^-^^^y^^^^^^^:m^^^^m 
162 23L820 2.413 (2.388) 232,007 

Operating expenses: ^ 

Gaming taxes 
OTher;dperalihgle.xperises¥i^.^^^W":x^:f>'^ 
Man^emenl fee ecpense (rev'enue) ,.__., 
D^ireci all 6"n1 and 'amoftiza tiian ^ . ^ i g r ' ^ ^ y ' ^ ^ 

m3m29-^^m^t^.:^-^'r^mt.i^K...r^'^'^^:xW3sm9ti' 
-— .—_ . : 58,331 

1M9p.£M^^{2'3M)^EHE^ld3:m 

58 3_31 
| 8 8 ; - 3 i l l ^ 

7.947 
^M^M^^M::B^MI^^MMMIM^. 

Total operating expense's 1.664 214,341 2,097 (2.388) •215,714 
;Fii^..4;^^^f^c^^ :0^v^-^ . m ^ 

Operatirig incdme (loss) r ' ^^Ml 
berivatiye expense 
Eg ti i ty • i h'i iTcd"metldss)!ofi siibsidiaries f '^ 

.(5J665)1 
974: 

•17-179 316 
'(45-3r8):^4!..^^jir92W^^mm:r 

16.293 

—• 974 
K^(463)^^^ ^.^^^^:-yi„2.nt:^^^;.r:^a:g-^j 

IiKdme''(ldss)Trom;iDd1ifinuiiTg"l3"̂ î lioiis!befd^̂ ^ 
^m?dmeTtaycs7^-'i?^^4WrC-%rM^i^^'^^^ 
Income tax (provision) benefit 

. • J - J UJ-IW." . Aft-." 

^Ii69S^;X^ 
(3'".364) 1.151 

ncqniei(l q.ssJiirom^pii tmu i ngLPlKratipns 1(21617)1 lfl;666)'^^g-:^^fe>'^'.^455-^^^:?g,-f.2i:igJ^^^'^f2;6 

Net income (loss) 



Statement of Operalions 

lsle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligor) 

I'or Ihe Nine iMonths Ended'Januarv-22. 2012 

Guaranlor 
Subsidiai'ies 

Non-
(iuarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Enlries 

Iste ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc, 
Consolidaled 

Reven^uesy^--^°'~^>^^^^^jg'̂ ^•-^g^f^;^J^gB^:?*^r•^•Er^ 
Casino $ — $ 
Rddms.; .̂foods bey erageti PAOiin ufu'cl;arid;pihe 
Gross revenues 

i:?i:^^P^'-£^ .^; ^iv^ ^•-:^:.r-^^ •V..i-V^.;^ -f̂ T k̂.1 
760,428 $ 

JS:^l'3iv253!Xl 
— S 760,428 

T(6l896)?^j^^32^37-1^ 
769 

!^e^;p^tnmi£mal a l lowa^c^:" t :M' ' i^^^^^^5S 
Net revenues 

891,681 - 7.245 • (6.896) 892.799 
f(Y5lWiyi^WM^^''^^^J^^^-'i^^^i^. ^:(T57^3)1 

Operaiing expenses; 
" ^ ^ f ^ ^ ^ ii-uk-.'^wai'-:, 

Gaming taxes 
Qlher. operati rie-'experisesT^^i^'S'^^'^^^^'' 
Management fee expensefrevenue) 
DeprecTafidii^ari'djamdYtizatiori^^gi^^^i'̂  

S52§l 

tA2i^9Qmi^I^0Prt:i^^^ 'm^^y^:r-^:-^^'^f:A22>t2 
183,550 . — • — _I83J50 

M7BT?if6^'iS^^'^^t5^73'^ms--.'-^'-lf6iS96Wfi,^i'^^^^ 
251681 . 

W ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M M : ^ M : ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ ^ ^ M 
Total operafing expenses 6,389, 674:191 6.148 (6,896) • 679.832 

m^M^^^^'mB'T^'^^:w::^n^-.^S^:H^r^^r- \^^:^..m' 
Operating income (loss) 
IntereS<l^^^se^etLy.-^^;^.JJfe^^^^^»:^^^^ 
Derivative Income 

(5.620 

252 

60,217 i;097 — 55,694 
'(4515 r4)gt^C^#^(452ll^^;:^-^5-"-:^-^g^^^I764?8 f5)l 

252 
W5^^1^M;^%L^:L^t'^^:T{iS39n^ii^^^^^ 

income tax (provision) benefit 
Incomeidosslaromicontmumgoperationsim^^-;^ 

I('l5^203)i;^ 
10:741 

t(4=i62)| 
(4:568) (2.266) 3.907 
19^16ommMm i62\:m^:m^(7i539m:z^mig.(4i96T^ 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i t ^ - ^ ^ ^ ^ - b i r i - H ^ ^ • j ^ ,j^'i.;v.vt"^T'' ':*^^;^^^:7i^ 

Net income (loss) (4,962) £ 
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I'or Itie Nine Monlhs Ended January 23. 2011 

Siatemeni of Openition.s 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos. Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligor) 

(Guarantor 
Suhsidiaries 

Non-
' Cuaranlor 
Subsidiaries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Eliminaling 
Entries 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinn.s. Inc. 
Consolidated 

mM'mrmr'-r-'^ "<- '̂. ̂ ^\^ ''^:i'o-r.^;' -:; $. x ^'^T. ?:.:^g:^i^ Re\'enuesi?^J^^--Z^^%/^-^'^'^^'^J^^f%m^'^j 
Casino " $ — • $ . 754.007 $ — $ — $ 754.007 
RQ6mV.To~d(l~bevera'gegpan?mmueUarî  
Grossrevenues • 1,469- .881.558- 7.370 (7.296). 883,101 
i'essfrrmHlidnal.aliavviJri^'es},^1^^-^'--^-J'-H-'^^^ 
Net revenues 1,469 .729;036 7:370 (7,296) ' __ 730 579 

liT8TPh7£:f̂ Me>.&r.%^̂ ?v--̂ .fr'̂ .w--c-̂ gĝ Mgn̂ :̂ ^ 
.182.951^ — — 182.951 

}UMm^m^-7inl^^L%^%:(G:29r^r^:-:L:Q^305X662^ 
25:560 — " — — 

Operating expenses; 

Gaming ia.xes .̂ .•̂ ,.,...„,.,̂ „,̂ ..̂  ^ 
• QlHe^operaTirig"-expensesl̂ '̂̂ .:̂ .̂ y,̂ .̂ i<tc?.• '̂j5^^^^ 
Management fee expense (revenue) (25;560) 
Depreciati on;and'amortizationt.^..g^..fr>^.'* ^ ^ ^ 1 W 9 2 1 W6m)Sm:^^^^i;.^L434ni^M-:^--K^r^,vi:..i^-:i^^66l9l4^ 

673.664 

Operaiing income (loss) ___(6̂ 112)_ 
• liileresi^exnensi^:met--r-JS?^:^-^-^-s?-t-aj.^^^^^^ 
Derivafive expense „.,̂ .,.̂ „...,..,.„ ,̂̂ .,.. /('-256) 

•Equitv;iri''irico'Bld'ssX:pfgub'sidiaries'^m^S:&^^ 

63_,912 iSS5) — 56.915 
?45;9T5lS^P¥^flS7)1^'^^^^:j^^:^^^'-%'^jfr7^339"TI 

— „ — — (1.256) 
¥('Wl47W^^''^4^^'r^i^^^^^(^a22)±M-M^'^^ 

Income tax (provision) benefit 12:441 
lncomeiflossV.fi-om;contiriuinGToDeratidris:g^-^^-- '̂̂ ?l(7M-25)l? 

(8:465) ' 
l^^r493)'̂ >-^^;g'f'7:-222)'¥'- .̂:;:^=5'f'7:425)1 

Netincome (loss) $ (6.331) 'S ^7:715.. $_ (493) S (7.222) S (6.331) 
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Consolidating condensed statements ofcash fiows forthe nine monlhs ended January 22, 2012 and January 23, 2011 are as follows (in 
Ihousands): 

Nine Months Ended Januarv 22. 2012 

Statement of Cash Flows 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligor) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Eliminating 
Enlries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Con';ol id a led 

;^ •• 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing 
activilies 

NeP 

^•S^r^5f53'l^J$t. M4^737^^Sf ^ ^^^^>:$W^^7Qfi9Sv 

28,5M 

Effect df foreign currency exchange rates on 
cash and cash equivalents 

N 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofthe 
period , , _ _ ^ „^^^-^ 3.952 

Ga'sK:and-cash''equivalcnls[̂ ^ 

.62.105 9.121 — 75.178 
i$SW^6 l^l-32^^Sg--^#2^f>45.^$imib-l;^-^^'$ V. ,gi72.^26';i 

Nine Monlhs Ended Januar\-23, 2011 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Isle OfCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

{Parent 
Ohiigor) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

Isle ofCapri 
Ciisinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

'~5ti;'..^^.'"^''fe^ , - i i-iSf.^^£ Net^crshprdyMby^tised:iri)^peratmg^^ ^ ^^. ^ r._ ^ i ^ ^ : ^ 

Net cash provided by (used In) investing 
activifies _ " _ ^ . . (fZ.d^_^L ,1'QJ^Z'^^ ^.'?/^.^^^ ^̂ ^̂ .'̂ .̂ C^i'^^^A 

Net;cash.provi"'dedIbyKusednri);firia'ricmg^v W'3 -M:M'^^^WW^'^^W^%W^- i^ - ' i l k ^^ ^^'^^•^^l-:&'%:- '̂--̂ ^ •^i'-ks'^] 
^ ^ g i l i e s W ' - ^ 4 # ^ S ^ - - t ^ ^ ^ i f : # ^ . a ^ ^ M j « # ^ l 7 ^ ^ 
Effect offoreign currency exchange rates on 

cash and cash equivalents — —r (51) — (51) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning oflhe 
^period _ „ . ^ _ _ , „ , „ 6.506 46.994 14.569 ^ 68.069 

GashMtllclhiequiyaJ^ts^^tlemi^flh^^ 

14. Commitments and Contingencies 

Development Projects—Construction Is proceeding on time and on budget forour $125,000 Isle Casino Cape Girardeau development. 
To date we have spent approximately $31,300 in capilal expenditures, including capitalized interest, and expeci the facility to be 
completed by Thanksgiving 2012. 
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On April 14. 2011. the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort ("Nemacolin") in Fannington. Pennsylvania was .selected by ihe Pennsylvania 
Garning Control Board for the final Category 3 resort gaining license. We had previously eniered Into an agreemeni with Nemacolin 
to complete the bulld-out ofthe casino space and provide management services ofthe casino. We currently estimate the project cosl at 
approximately $50,000. The award ofthe Pennsylvania license to Nemacollivhas been appealed to the Pennsylvania Supreme Gourt 
by oneof the other applicants. Subject to a successful ruling in the appeal, wecxpecl to complete construction ofthe facility within 
approximately nine months afler commencing construction. 

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings—Our wholly owned subsidiary, Lady Luck GamingCorporalion and several joint venture partners 
have been defendants In the Greek Civil Courts and the Greek Administrative Courts'in similar lawsuits brought by the country of 
Greece: The actions allege that the defendanis failed to make specified payments in connection with the gaming license bid process for 
Patras. Greece. Although It Is difficull to determine Ihe damages being sought from the lawsuits, the action may seek damages up to 
that aggregale amount plus inieresi from the dale of the action. 

In Ihe Civil Gourt lawsuit, the Civil Court of First Instance ruled In our favorand dismissed the lavvsuit In 2001. Grecceappealed lo 
the Civil Appeal Gourt and, in 2003. the Court rejected the appeal.:Grcece then appealed to the Civil Supreme Court and. In 2007. the 
Supreme Court mled that the matter was not properly before the Civil Courts and should be before the Administrative Court. 

in the Administrative Court lawsuit, the Administrative Court of Flrstlristance rejected the lawsuit stating that it was not competent to 
hear the matter. Greece then appealed lo the Administrative Appeal Court,.which court rejected the appeal in 2003. Greece then 
appealed to the Supreme Administrative Court, which remanded;tHe matterback to the^Admiriistrative Appeal Court for a hearing on 
the merits. The re-hearing took place in 2006, and in 2008 the Adminisirative Appeal Court rejected Greece's appeal on procedural 
grounds. On December 22. 2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece appealed the ruling to the Supreriie Administrative Court. A hearing 
has tentatively been scheduled for October 2012. 

The ouicome ofthis matter is still in doubl and cannot be predicted with any degreeof certainty. We intend lo continue a vigorous and 
appropriale defense to the claims asserted in this matter. Through January:22,.20l2, we have accmed an estimated liability including 
interest of $12,538. Ouraccrual is based upon management's estimate.of thedriginalclalni by the plaintiffs furiosi payments. We 
continue to accrue interest on Ihe asserted claim. We are unable to estiiiiaie a tptaj possible loss a.s information as to possible 
additional claims, ifany, have not been asserted or quantified by the plairitiffs at this tiriie. 

We and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Riverboat Corporation ofMississippi - Vicksburg, are defendants in a lawsuit filed in the 
Circuit Court of Adams Couniy, Mississippi by Silver Lahd,;Inc.,,alleging breach df contract in connection wilh our 2006 sale of 
casino operations in Vicksburg, Mississippi, to a third parly.' In'January 201 l.the cdurt ruled in favor of Silver Land and in September 
2011 the court awarded damagesof $1,979. We filed a noticeof appeal in'November20Il..The outcome ofthis matter is still In. 
doubt and cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty: We intend to "continue a vigorous arid apprdpriate defense,to the claims 
asserted by Silver Land In Ihls matier. 

We are subjeci to certain federal, state and local environmental prolection, health and.safety laws, regulations and ordinances thai 
apply to businesses generally, and are subjeci to cleanup requirements at certain of our facilities as a result thereof We have not made 
and do not anticipate making material expenditures, nor do we anticipate incurring delays with respect.to environmental remediation 
or prolection. However, in part because our present and future develdpriient sites have, in some cases, been used as rrianufacturing 
facilities or other faciliiies that generale materials that are required;,to,be remediated tmder environmental laws and regulaiions, there 
can be no guarantee that additional pre-existing conditions will not be discovered and vve will not experience material liabilities or 
delays. 

Wc are subjecl to various contingencies and litigation matters and have a number of unresolved claims. Allhough the ultimate liability 
oflhese contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannot be determined at thi.s fime, we believe they will not have a material 
adverse effecl on our consolidaled financial posilion, results ofoperalions or cash flows. 
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Settlement of Biloxi Claim—In January 2012, we reached a settlement relating,lo lost profits and business interruption rclated to the 
oil spill in the Gul fof Mexico during fiscal year 2011. Our settlement resulte'd in an insuYance receivable of $995 which has been 
included in revenues as insurance recoveries in our slatement of operations for the three and nine monlhs ended January 22, 2012. 

15. Subsequent Event 

Saleof Lake Charles Assets—On February 9. 2012. we completed the sale of.Grarid Palais Riverboai. Inc.. including the smaller of 
our ivvo riverboats in Lake Charles, Louisiana, to Bossier Gasino Venlure LLC for $15,000. Management determined the impending 
sale, and therefore resulting impairment, probable on February 7.,2012;u"pbnthe exercise of the purchase opiion by the purchaser. We 
will record a noncash pretax charge of approximately $15,000 related to, this transaction during ouf fiscal year ending April 29, 2012. 
We will coniinue lo operale our Lake Charles hotel and land-based operations and consolidate ourgaming operations onto one gaming 
vessel. . . ' - -, 
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ITEM 2. .MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report contains statements that we believe are, or may be considered to be, "forward-looking statements" within the 
meaning ofthe Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995; All statements other than statements of historical fact Included in this 
report regarding the prospects ofour industry or our prospects, plans, financial position ot: business strategy, may constitute forward-
looking statements. In addition, forward-looking statements generally.can be,identified by the use df forward-looking words such as 
"may,""will," "expect," "Intend," "estimate," "foresee," "project," "ariticipate," "believe," "plans," "forecasts," "continue"or "could" 
or the negatives of these terms or variations of them or similar terms? Furthermore, such forward-looking statements may be included 
in various filings that we make with the SEC or press releases or oral statements niade by C}r with the approval of one ofour 
authorized executive officers. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, 
we cannot assure you that these expectations will prove to be correct. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain known 
and unknown risks and uncertainties, as wed as assumptions that could cause'dctuai,results, to differ materially from those reflected In 
these forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned hot to place undue reliantie^gn any forward-looking statements contained 
herein, which reflect management's opinions only as ofthe date hereof.̂  Except as required bylaw, we undertake no obligation to 
revise or publicly release the results ofany revision to any forward-looking statements. .Ybu are advised, however, to consult any 
additional disclosures we make In our reports to the SEC. AU subsequent-written arid oraTforward-looking statements attributable to 
us orpersons acting on our behaif are expressly qualified in their entirely by the cautionary statements contained In this repon. 

For a more complete description ofthe risks that may affect ourbiLslness, see our Annual Report on Fonn 10-K forthe fiscal 
yearended April 24, 201!. 

Executive Overview 
t 

We are a developer, owner and operaior of branded gaming facilities and related lodging arid entertainmenl facilities in regional 
markets in the United States. We have sought geographic diversity to limit the risks cause'd by weather, regional economic difficulties 
and local gaming authorities and regulations. We currently operale casinos in Colorado, Florida, lowa, Louisiana,,Mississippi and 
Missouri. We also operate a hamess racing track at our facility in Florida. 

Our operating results for the periods presenled have been affected, both positively and negafively, by fluctuating economic conditions 
and several other factors discussed in detail below. Our historicalpperating results ririay not be indicative ofour future results of 
operations because oflhese factors and the changing compefitive landscape in eachof bur markels, as well as by factdrs discussed 
elsewhere herein. This Management's Di.scussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Resulis of Operations should be read in 
conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 24, 2011 and by giving consideration td the 
follovving: 

Flooding and Insurance Advances—Flooding along the Mississippi River caused five of bur properties to close for portions ofthe 
nine months ended January 22, 2012. We maintain insurance coverage, suSject to varidus deductibles, for both property damage and 
business interruption. Recognition of business interruption recoveries is contingent upon.'filing and settlement ofour insurance claims. 
Through February 22. 2012, we have received advances from our insurance carriers totaling $10.1.million repre.senling paritial 
reimbursemenl of costs and business inlerruption proceeds. Wc have rccognized irisurance recoveries from business intertupilon 
insurance proceeds of $0.9 million and $1.0 million during the three and,nine months ended January 22, 2012. We continue to work 
with our insurance carriers and their adjusters to finalize our claim. We expect to be fully reimbursed for our insurance receivable of 
$2.7 million as of January 22. 2012, representing expenses reimburseable under our Insurance policies, and have claims pending for 
additional business intermption amounts. 

22 



A summary ofthe closure dates and subsequenl reopening dates is as tbilows: 

Number Days 
Closing Dale Reopening Pale Closed 

Day/enu6n.Aowi-'i^::S^'.^^::^-;^-:^M.;': 'Arm\U6y^^^ 
Caruihersvilie Missouri- ^____ May 1. 2011 May 13. 20V1 12 . 
ln ; iS7M"i^i"^ppiv4; '>V;^-^^t '^ .^^5W^-"!^ay>3^20 'F^MM^JimT^F^OMt-^ '^ i ^ ' ' 0 4 ^ f ' ^ ' ^ ^ y ^ 
E S i ^ l ^ i i l M ^ f c S ^ ^ S ^ M ^ I ^ i M ^ f e e ^ b e i ^ 
Natchez, Mississippi ^May 7. 2011 Jime 17 2011 . 41 
y icksb1I?^^:1^^issipm^r.^^m'^•%^-:ig^;^&^;fvl^^^^^^ 2^ mih. : :^ im^i^: ^.:m^:M''^TS 

(A) Six days of closure In Ihe first quarter of fiscal 2012 and nine days of closure In the fourth quarterof fiscal 2011. 
(B) The second casino barge reopened on September 2, 2011 afier fiood damage was remediated. 

Settlement of Biloxi Claim — \n ianmry 2012, we reached a settlement relating to lost profits and business intermption related tothe 
oil spill in the Gulf of Mexico during fiscal 2011. Oursettlement resulted in an'insurance receivable of approximately $1.0 million 
which has been included in revenues as insurance recoveries iri our slatemenl!df operations for the three and nine months ended 
•January 22. 2012. 

• Florida Gaming Law Changes — Effective July 1, 2010, legislative changes,becarrieeffeclive in Florida which lowered the state 
portion ofgaming laxes applicable to our Pompano property from 50% to 35'ĵ o ofgaming revenues. Additionally, this legislalion 
allows our poker operalions to remain open for the same hours as the slbtjloor and removes the poker betting limits. Our casino 
revenues and gaming taxes refiect the favorable impact oflhese changes in state gaining laws. 

Acquisition of Rainbow Casino - We completed the acquisition of Rainbow Caslno-Vicksburg Partnership. L.P. ("Rainbow") located 
in Vicksburg, Mississippi on June S. 2010 acquiring 100% ofthe partnership inierests and have included Ihe results of Rainbow in our 
consolidated financial siatements subsequent to June 8, 2010. The acquisiiion was funded'by'borrowings from our Credit Facility. 

Discontinued Operations — Duringthe nine inonths ended January 23: 2011. we recognized a tax benefil in discontinued operations 
of $0.8 million relatedto the resolution of previously unrecognized tax positions related to our discontinued former UK operations. 

Revenues 

Revenues forthe three and nine month periods ended January 22, 2012.and January 23, 2011 are as follows: 
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Thrce Monlhs Ended 

(in ihousands) 
Januarv 22, 

2012 
Januarv 23. 

20 li Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

^im RevemJesT?; •m . ^ ^ ^ - ^ - - ^ • • ^ r . * 

Casino _ _ S 251,371 

33.(372 Food, beverage, pan-muiuel and other 
[surance. recoven 
Gross revenues 

lnsurancerecoveries:r-,--^-:i-.:^iF^^J'^&.;^^IC^ 

'240,205 $ 
!M8^oollE 

31.08*2 

11,166 ^4.6% 
snSi6Siii^^ii^iQ:8%i 

2:590 8.3% 
a!867i 

Q^C£ss:pron3plidhaLC'illpwaric^^ 
Net revenues 

(in Ihousands) 

295374 
[53|M1 

r ^ ^ ^ ^ r ' B t:^M\i867. ^.^^^r:r:.-^-ioo:oWi 
^ 5.6% 15,687 

242.248 - $ 

279.687 
r(47-!58d)7^^S-i.:'-f5r446).€ 
232,007 10,241 

•J? 'j-J^e 

4.4% 

Nine Months Ended 
Januarv 22, 

2012 
Januarv23. 

2011 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

Revenues:rm^^mmim^'d^W^^i^i^^ 
Gasino 

Food, beverage, pan-mutuel and other 
i^lnsurance recoveries^M^^ia-^i;^!^.^^^?.^^.? 

760^428; 

100,525 

754,007 $ M21 0.9% 
[29,l2^^^^^S-56)E^Il^^SMl 
99,170 1,355 1.4% 

H M M l ] ! ] 
Gross revenues 

.̂g -̂ gj Less j prpmotipjial • alio wances .̂  M^i^^i 
892,799 

Net revenues 735.526 

883.1 OJ. 9,698 Ll%_ 
' m 2 B 2 2 l ^ m ^ i f-^f4i751^W4^:^ : : : ^ . r ^ \ ^ 
730:579 4,947 0.7% 

Casino Revenues - Casino revenues Increased $11.2 million, or 4.6%, and $6.4 million, or 0.9%, forthe three and nine monlhs ended 
January 22, 2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2011. 

For the three monlhs ended January 22, 2012. casino revenue increases primarily included $5.0 million at our Pompano property. $2.4 
million at our Lake Charles properties. $1.5 million at our Waterioo property and $1.5 million at our Kansas Gity property. Casino 
revenue increases reflect changes to our marketing as well as response to.our Lake Charles property renovations to our primary 
gaming ve.ssel's inierior. These increases were partially offsel by decreases of $1.1 million at bur Lula property due to slow recovery 
from flooding and general markel conditions. 

For the nine monihsended January 22, 2012. casino rcvenues for our properties not closed due to flooding increased $21.5 million, or 
2.9%, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2011. This included increased caslnd revenuesof $10.6 million at our Pompano 
property, $5.0 miillon atour Lake Charies property, $4.7 million at our Black Hawk properties, $2.3 million at our Kansas City 
properly and $1.6 million at our Waterloo property, partially offset by decreases of $1.7 million at our Bettendorf properly and $1.6 
million at our Biloxi property. 

Rooms Revenue - Rooms revenue remained flat for the three and nine months ended January 22, 2012. as compared to the same 
periods in Ihe prior fiscal year. Rooms revenue for our properties not cldseti'due to flooding increased $0.6 million, or 2.2%, for the 
nine months ended Jantiary 22, 2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2011. 

Food, Beverage, Pari-Mutuel and Other Revenues — Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other revenues increased $2.6 million, or 8.3%. 
and Sl.4 million, or 1.4%, for the Ihree and nine months ended January 22, 2012, as compared to the same period in the fiscal 2011. 
Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other revenue for our properties"not closed due to-fioodlng increased $ 1.8 million, or 2.2%, for the 
nine monlhs ended Januar\' 22. 2012. as compared to the same period in fiscal 2011, reflecting changes in complimentary food and 
beverage offerings to our customers. 
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Promotional Allowances -Promoiional allowances increa.scd $5.4 million, or 11.4%, and increased $4.S million: or 3.1%. forthe three 
and nine monlhs ended January 22, 2012. as comparcd to ihc same period In fiscal 2011. Promotional allowances forpur properlies 
not closed due to flooding increased $6.5 miillon. or 5.6%. forthe nine monlhs ended January 22, 2012, as compared lo the same 
period In fiscal 2011. This included increases at Pompano of $3.6 million and Lake Charies of $2.6 million, correspondiiig lo their 
increases In gross revenues of S 12.7 million and S6.0 million, respectively, forthe nine months ended January 22, 2012. Changes in 
our promotional allovvances refiect revisions to our markeiing plans as a result of changes In competition, economic conditlonsand 
regulations. 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses for the three and nine month periods ended January 22. 2012 and January 23, 2011 are as follows: 

Three Monlhs Ended 

(in lhou.sands) 
Januar)' 22, 

2012 
January 23, 

2011 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance" 

2,002 
SFood.^;beverage,!pari;thUmeIiand>^ 

•'^d"therAT^-.^^r-^ 

2.856, 2i4-"/" 

(109) -5.4% 

Marine andTaciliiies 
^Jvfark^irig :arid'"admi ni stral ive"^..p^pi-'^ 

Corporate and development 
-Depreciationjandiamortizationi 

Total operating expenses 

.bliL52| 

$ 222.849 $ • 215;714 

. 354 2:4% 
^M^^4g^'C^^\'^-^4:4% 

(82 7) • • .9.5% 
TT''(4mW^^.^:z->m:9% 

7,135 3.3% 

Nine Monlhs Ended 

(in Ihousands) 
Januar}' 22. 

2012 
Januar}- 23, 

"2011 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

^iMalketirig;arid^driiiriist?ativegV^T5 '̂'afi.'r^l'̂ ^192L993^i^ 
Corporate and developmeni 29,548 ' 

^D^reciatidri:and:arii1JiSfidnT/ '̂'-i.^r^"^^^-M64^7^^^^ 
Total operating expenses $ 679,832 $_ 

!0l88f580^^ 
•32.180 

i '6^93^ 
673.664 

2.123 4.8% 
^•413'..'^>''^^---^-rr-^i2':3% 

•(2j«2) - J J% ' 
lm\9S)WW^f- ::r-.a^3?3% 

6,168 0.9% 

Casino - Casino operating expenses increased $2.9 million, or 7.4%, and $5.2 million, or4.4%, for the three and nine months ended 
January 22, 2012. as compared to the same period In fiscal 2011. Gasino operating expense forour properties not closed due to 
fiooding increased $4.S inillion, or 5.1%. for Ihe nine months ended January 22.-2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2011. 
Net Increases in casino expenses reflect increased casino revenues al bur'properties not Impacted by flooding, primarily increased 
salaries and wages due to expanded hours of operation at Ponipano and a new poker room at our Black Hawk property. 

Gaming Taxes — State and local gaming taxes Increased $2.7 million, or 4.7%, and $0.6 million, or 0.3%, for the three and nine 
months ended January 22, 2012, as compared to the same period In fiscal 2011 consisieni wilh Ihe Increases in casino revenues. 
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Rooms - Rooms expense decreased SO. 1 million, or 5.4%. and $0.6 milllori, or 7.7%, for the three and nine monlhs ended January 22. 
2012, as compared lo the same periods in fiscal 2011. Rooms expense for our.properties not cibsed due to flooding increased $0.4 
million, or 6.1%, forthe nine monihsended January 22, 2012. as compared lo the same period in fiscal 2011. 

Food, Beverage, Pari-Mutuel and Other — Food, beverage pari-mutuel and other expenses decreased $0.2 million, or 1.6%. and $0.7 
million, or 2.2% for the Ihree and nine months ended January 22. 2012. as compared tothe .same periods in fiscal 2011. Food. 
beverage, pari-muiuel and other expenses for our properties nol closed due to flooding decreased $0.5 million, or 1.9%, for the nine 
months ended January 22, 2012, as compared lo the same period in fiscal 2011. 

Marine and Facilities - Marine and facility expenses increased $0.4 million, or 2,4%, and $2.1 million, or 4.8%. for the three and nine 
months ended January 22. 2012, as compared to the .same periods iri fiscal 2011. The overall increase in marine and facilities reflect 
increased spending for repairs and maintenance. 

MarkeUng and Administrative - Marketing and adminisirative expenses increased $2.7 million, or 4.4%, and S4.4 million, or 2.3%. for 
the three and nine monihsended January 22, 2012, as compared lo the same period in fiscaflOl 1, Markefing and administrative 
expenses forour properlies not closed due to fiooding increased $3.4 million, or 2.3%, for the nine months ended January 22, 2012, as 
coinpared to the same period in fiscal 2011. These increases reflect additional marketing expenditures designed to increase market 
share and customer visits. 

Corporate and Development — During the three months ended January 22, 2012, our corporateand development expenses vvere $7.9 
inillion compared to $8,7 million for the three months ended January 23, 2011, primarily as a result of development costs in Ihe prior 
year. During the nine monlhs ended January 22, 2012, our corporateand development expenses were $29.5 million compared to 
$32.2 million for the nine months ended Januaiy 23, 2011, prlmanly'as a result of acquisltiori, refinancing and development costs in 
the prior year. 

to certain 
Depreciation and Amortization - Depreciafion and amortizalion expense for the three and nine months ended January 22, 2012 
decreased S0.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively, as compared to the same periods lri the prior fiscal year, primarily due to 
assets becoming fully depreciated. 

Other Income (Expense) and Income Taxes 

Interest expense, interest income, derivative expense and income tax (provision)'benefit for the three and nine month periods ended 
Januar>' 22, 2012 and January 23, 2011 are as follows: 

Three Monlhs Ended 

(in thousands) 
Januarv 22, 

2012 
January 23, 

2011 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

Intefeslie^ri-ense^-ii^.'i '̂̂ •- k f i : ~ : ^ I ^ ^ m ' r ? ^ ^ n ^ m m ^ % ^ m i 2 \ m i m % ^ ^ ^.'-^^^^1^1.% 
Inieresi income 185 " 431 " • " ' '"" ' " ' 
Denvativeincdmefexpensel'^-'g^'^gi-" 
Income,lax benefit 

.(246). -57.1% 
2:2^^$s .^u ^^974Q < i ; . ' ^ ^ y T ^ ( 7 5 \ m ^ ^ E m Z - \ % 
748 1,151 (403) -35.0'/o 

^ ^ 

(in thuusands) 
JanuarV' 22 

.2012 

Nine Months Ended 
Januar}' 23 Percentage 

Variance 



Interest Expense' Interesi expense decreased $3.3 million forthe nine months ended January 22, 2012, as compared to ihe same 
period in the prior fiscal year. This decrea,se primarily reflects tlie;expiraIion qf several interest rate swap agreements during fiscal 
2011, which had notional rates above current market rates. During the nine moriths ended January 22, 2012. vve capitalized 
approximaiely $0.6 mill ion in interesi expense related to our contriiciion project in Cape Girardeau. Missouri. 

Derivative Expense — This includes expenses related to the change in fair value of our ineffective interesi rate swaps and amortization 
ofthe cumulative loss in other comprehensive incoine at the date of Ineffectivess. Our interesi rate svvaps became ineffective 
follovving the amendment of our senior secured credit facility during the fourth quarterof fiscal year 2010. The increase for the nine 
months ended Januarv' 22, 2012 compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year refiects the maiurity ofccrtain interest rale swap 
agreements. 

Income Tax Benefd (Provision) —Our income tax benefit (provision) from continuing operationsand our effective Income tax rate 
has been Impacted by our esfimate of annual taxable income for financial statement purpose's, our percenlage of permanent and other 
items in relation to such eslimated income or loss, as well as the expiralion of federal slatule of limitations on open tax years ending in 
Apri l 2006 and April 2007. 

Liquidit>' and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities - During the nine monlhs ended January, 22, 2012, we generated $70.2 mili ion In cash fiows 
from operating activilies compared to generating $82.8 mill ion during the nine month's ended January 23, 2011. The year over year 
decrease In cash flows from operafing acUvlties is primarily the result of cash paymenis for fiood related costs, which wi l l be 
reimbursed In future periods and $4.6 mill ion increase in purchases of trading securities during fiscaf 2012. 

Cash Flows used in /ni^esf/ng/lcf/V/Y/es-During the nine monlhs ended January 22, 2012, vve used $45.8 mill ion for Investing 
activilies compared to using $132.2 mill ion during the nine monihsended January 23,2011. Significani invesiing activities for Ihe 
nine monihsended January 22, 2012 included capital expenditures of $46:0 mill ion, iricluding$17.0 mill ion relating to Gape 
Girardeau and Nemacolin. Significant investing activities forthe nine.months ended January 23,201 Irincluded the purchaseof the 
Rainbow casino In Vicksburg, Mississippi for $76.2 mill ion, purchases ofproperty and equipmenl of $46.1 mill ion and increases in 
restricted cash at our captive insurance company of $9.5 miil lon to fund'irisurance reserves in lieu ofproviding letters ofcredit. 

Cash Flows used in Financing ActiviUes — Duringthe nine monlhs,ended January 22, 2012, our net cash flows used in financing 
acfiviiies were used primarily to repay our outsianding long-term debi of $26.8 mill ion. During the nine months ended January 23, 
2011, vve had net borrowings under our line ofcredit o f $58.0 mill ion whichilncluded the borrowing of $80 mill ion to fund our 
acquisition ofthe Rainbow casino in Vicksburg, Mississippi,'andi$6!6:niiillion to repay other outstanding long-term debt. 

Availability of Cash and Additional Capital- At January 22, 2012. we had cash arid,cash equivalents of $72.4 mill ion and marketable 
securities of $25.7 mil l ion. As of January 22, 2012, vve had $10 rriillion borrowed under our reyolvlng line ofcredit and $496.5 
mill ion in term loans outstanding underihe seniorsecured credii facility. Our line of credii availability at January 22, 2012 was 
approximaiely $177 mill ion as limited by our senior secured leverage ratio. 

Capital Expenditures and Development Activities—As part ofour business development activities, we hislorically have entered into 
agreements which have resulted in the acquisition or development of businessespr assets. These business development efforts and 
related agreemenis typically require the expenditure of cash, which may be significani. The amouni and timing of our cash 
expenditures relating to development activilies may vary based upon our evaluation of current and fuiure development opportunities, 
our financial condition and Ihe condition ofthe financing markets. Our development activities are subject to a variety of factors 
including but not limited to: obtaining permits, licenses and approvalsTromapproprlateregulalory and other agencies, legislative 
changes and. in certain circumstances, negotiating acceptable leases. 
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Constmction,Is proceeding on.time and on budget for our $ 125 million Isle Casino Cape Girardeau development. We anticipate 
opening by Thanksgiving 2012^ subject to regulatory approval. At Jariuaryi22,.-2012i vve have spent $31.3 million relaled to capital for 
the Gape Glrartleau projeci, includirig current year capital expenditures of $16.-3 million; .We estimate additional capital expenditures 
of approximateiy $20 miliion In Cape Girardeau during Ihe balance of the current fiscal year. 

On April 14, 2011, our proposed casino in Nemacolin, Pennsylvania was selected by the Pennsylvania GamingControl Board to 
receive the final resort gaming license in Pennsylvania. We have entered into a development and management agreemeni with 
Nemacolin Woodlands Resort to build and operate a casino which-ls expectedio Include approximately 600 slot machines and 28 
tablegames. We currently estimale the project cost at approximately $50 rriillion. The award of Ihe Pennsylvania license'to Nemacolin 
has-been appealed to the Pennsylvania Supreme Court by one of the other applicants. Subject io a successful mling In the appeal, we 
expect to complete constmction ofthe facility within approximately nine months after ciammenclng construction. The timing of 
additional significani expenditures is dependenl upon resolution of the'items discussed above. 

We have Idenlified several capital projecis primarily focused on refreshing our hotel,room Invenlory as well as additional 
Improvements to our Lake Charles and Black Hawk properlies, and further Lady Luck conversions. Commencing in the fourth 
quarter, we expect lo begin improvemenls to the hotel at dur Lake Charles property and begin rebranding our Vicksburg property to a 
Lady Luck. We expect these projects will cost approximately $20 million; ofwhich approximaiely $5 millldn will be Incurred in the 
balance of fiscal 2012 and the remainder in flscal 2013. The llmirig, completlonand amount of additiorial capital projects will be 
subject to improvement of economic and local market conditions, cash flows from our conlinuirig operations and borrowing 
availability under our Credit Facility. 

HistorlcalIy,.we have made significani Investments lri property and equipment and expect that our operations vvill continue to demand 
ongoing invesiments to keep our propertiescompetitive. During the nine moriths ended January 22, 2012, we have incurred capilal 
expenditures at our exisling properties of $29.7 million. For the balance ofthe curi-ent fiscal year, we estimale rriaintenance capital 
expendilures at our exisling properties to be approximately $20 million. 

Typically, vve have funded our daily operations through net cash provided by operating activities and our significant capilal 
expenditures tlirough operaiing cash flow and debt financing. Whilewe believe that cash on hand, proceeds from our equity offering 
completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, cash flow froin operatioris, and available borrowings under our Credii Facility will be 
sufficient to support our working capital needs, planned,capiial expenditures and debt service requirements for the foreseeable future, 
there is no assurance that these sources will in fact proyide.adequate funding for our planned and necessary expendilures or that the 
level ofour capital invesiments will be sufficient to allow us to remain competitive iri our existing markets. 

We are highly leveraged and may be unable to obtain additional debt or equity financing on acceptable terms ifour current sources of 
liquidity are not sufficient or if we fall td stay In compliance vviih'the covenants ofour senior secured credit facility. We will continue 
to evaluate our planned capilal expendimres at each of ourexisting locations in light ofthe operating performance ofthe faciliiies at 
such locaiions. 

Critical .Accounting Estimates 

Our consolidateti financial statements are prepared in accordance with U:S. generally accepted accounting principles that require 
our management to make estimates and assumpiions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Management identifies 
crificat accounling estimates as: 

• those that require the use of assumptions about matters that are inherently and highly uncertain at the time ihe estimates are 
made; 

• Ihose estimates where, had we chosen different estimates or assumpiions, the resulting differences would have had a material 
iinpact on our financial condilion, changes In financiai condition or results of operafions; and 

• those esiimates that, if they were to change from period to period, likely would result in a material 
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Impact on our financiai condition, changes in flnancial condition or.results ofoperalions. 

For a discussion ofour significant accounting policies and estimates, please,refer to Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to Consohdated Financial Slatemenls presented in our 2011 Annual Report 
on Fonn 10-K. There were no newly idenlified significant accounting estimates In the third quarter of fiscal year 2012, nor were there 
any material changes to the critical accounling policies and esfimales set forth In our 2011 Annual Report. 

ITEM 3. QUANTIT.ATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Market risk Is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, including interesi rates, commodity prices 
and equity prices. Our primary exposure to market risk Is Interest rate risk associated with our lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. senior 
secured credii facility ("Credit Facility"). 

We have entered into Interest rate swap and cap arrangements with aggregate notional value of $250.0 million as of January 22, 
2012. The swap agreement effeciively converts a portion ofthe Credit Facility variable debt to a fixed-rate basis until the respective 
swap agreement terminates, which occurs during fiscal year 2014. 

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, as such tenn is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
("Exchange Act"), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in bur Exchange Act reporis is recorded, 
processed, summarized and reported wlihln Ihe lime periods specified lri the SEG's rules and forins and ihat such information is 
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as 
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting for the Company, 
assuch term is defined in ExchangeAct Rule 13a-15(0- Under the supervision and with the participation of our management. 
Including our Chief Executive Officer and GhiefFlnancial OfTicer, we conducled an evaliiatlon oftlie effecdveness ofour Intemal 
control over financial reporting based on the framework in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Gommittee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("GOSO")... Based on the eyaluation, management has concluded that the 
design and operation ofour disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of January 22, 2012. 

Because of its inherent limitaiions, syslems of Inlemai control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance wilh 
respect to financial statement preparation and presentaUon. 

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

There have been no changes in our intemal controls over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended January 22. 2012. thai 
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting. 
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION 
ITEM I. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

A reference Is made to the information contained in Footnote 13 ofour unaudited condensed consolidaled flnancial statements 
Included herein, which is incorporated herein by reference 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

We are not aware ofany material changes to the disclosure regarding risk factors presented in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal yearended April 24. 2011. 

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 

We have purcha.sed our common stock under stock repurchase programs.-These programs allow for the repurchase of up to 6,000,000 
shares. To date, we have purchased 4,895,792 shares ofour common slock under these programs. These programs have no approved 
dollar amount, nor expiration dates. No purchases were made duringthe nine months ended January 22, 2012." 

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 

Npne. 

ITEM 4. 

None. 

ITEM 5. 

None 

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 

See the Index to Exhibits following the signature page hercto fora list oflhe exhibits filed pursuant to Ilem 601 of Regulation S-K. 
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SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requirements of ihe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Ihe regLstrant has duly caused this report to be signed on Its 
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly aulhorized. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

Dated: February 24. 2012 /s/DALER. BLACK 
Dale R. Black 
GhiefFlnancial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Authorized Officer) 
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E.XHIBIT 
NUMBER nESCRIPTION 

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive OfTiccr pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a) under the Seeurilies Exchange Acl of 
1934. 

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a—14(a) under the Securities Exchange Acl of 

1934. 

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. 

32.2 CertificalionofChief Financial Officer puisuant to 18 U.S.C. Secfion 1350. 
101 'fhe following financial staiemerits and notes from the Lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 

10-Q for the quarter ended January 22, 2012, filed on Febmary 24, 2012. formatted in XBRL: (i) 
Consolidaled Balance Sheeis: (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operafions; (iii) Condensed 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity; (ly) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flovvs; 
and (v) Notes to Condensed Consolidaled Financiai Statements,'lagged as blocks of text. 
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EXIIIBIT 31.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTTO RULE I3a-I4(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACTOF 1934 ' -

1. Virginia M. McDowell, Chief Execufive Officer of Lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc., certify that: 

1.1 have reviewed this quarteriy report on Fonn lO-Q of lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knovvledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement ofa material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary lo make the statements made, in light ofthe circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with 
respect to the period covered by ihis report: 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly presenl in all 
material respects the financial condition, results ofoperalions and cash fiows bf ihe registrant as of and for, the periods presented in 
this report: 

4. The registrant's other certifying ofTicer and 1 are responsible forestablishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Acl Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-15(e)) and Intemal control overfinancial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(0 and 15d-l5(0) forthe registrant and have; 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure coritrols and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that maierial infonnation relating to the registrant, including its con'sdildated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period inwhich this'repdrt is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such intemal conlrol over financial reporting, or caused such Internal.coritrol oyer financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes In accordance wilh generally accepied accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrani's disclosure controls and procedures and presenled in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness ofthe discldsure controls and procedures, as of the end of theiperiod covered by this report based on such evaluafion; 
and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's inlemai conlrolover financial reporting thai occurred during the registrant's 
most receni fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's intemal control over 
financial reporfing; and 

5. The regisirant's oiher certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of Intemal control over financiai 
reporting, to the regisirant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of direclors (or persons performing the equivalent 
fund ions); 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes.ses In the design or operation of Intemal conlrol over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial informalion; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not maierial, ihat Involves managemeni or other employees who have a significani role In the registrant's 
Internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: February 24. 2012 Isl Virginia M. McDowell 
Virginia M. McDowell 
Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

i. Dale R. Black. Chief Financial Officer of lsle ofCapri Casinos. Inc., certify that: 

1.1 have reviewed this quarteriy report on Fonn 10-Q of lsle of Gapri Casinos. Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement ofa material fact or omit to slate a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made In light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading vvith 
respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge Ihe flnancial slalements. and other financialinformalion included in this report, fairly present in all 
materiaf respecls Ihe flnancial condilion, results ofoperalions and cash fiows of the registrant as of and for. ihe periods presenled in 
this report; 

4. The registrant's olher certifying officer and 1 are responsible forestablishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and iniernal conlrol over financial reporting (as defined In Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(0 and 15d-15(0) forthe registrant and have; 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or cau.sed such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material Information relating to the registrant, Iricludingits consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entitles, particulariy during the period in which this report is being prepared: 

(b) Designed such Intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such Intemal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability riffinanclalreporting and the preparation of financial 
stalenients for extemal purposes in accordance wilh generally accepted accounting pririciples; 

(c) Evaluated the effeciiveness ofthe registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effecfiveness ofthe disclosure controls and procedures, as ofthe end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 
and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during Ihe registrant's 
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's iniemal control over 
financial reporting; and 

5. The registrani's olher certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our mo.st receni evaluation of Intemal control over financial 
reporting, to the regisirant's auditors and the audit commitiee of rcgislrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

(a) Ail significant deficiencies and maierial weaknesses In the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which 
afe reasonably likely to adversely affecl the regisirant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or nol material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's 
Iritemal control over financiai reporting. 

Date: Febrtiary 24, 2012 Isl Dale R. Black 
Dale R. Black 
GhiefFlnancial Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.1 

CERTIFICATIONOFCHIEFEXECUTIVEOFFICERPURSUANTTO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

lri conneciion with the Quarterly Report of lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended January 
22!, 2012, as filed wlih the Securities and Exchange Commission on Ihe date hereof(thc "Quarteriy Report"). 1, Virginia M. 
McDowell, Chief Execuiive Officer ofthe Company, certify, pursuanl to 18 U.S.C: Section 1350, that: 

(1) The Quarteriy Report fully complies with the requirements of Seciion 13(a) or 15(d) oflhe Securities Exchange Acl of 1934; 
and 

(2) The Information coniained in the Quarterly Report fairly presents, in all rriaterial respects, the financial condilion and results 
ofoperalions ofthe Company. 

Date; Febmary 24. 2012 /s/Virginia M. McDowell 
Virginia M. McDowell 
Chief Execuiive Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 
< 

In connection with the Quarteriy Report of lsle ofCapri Gasinos. Inc. (the "Compariy") on Form 10-Q for the period ended January 
22. 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on ihe dale hereof (the "Quarterly Report"), I, Dale R.BIack, Chief 

, Financial Officer oflhe Company, certify, pursuant to IS U.S.C Section 1350, that: 

(1) The Quarteriy Report fully complies vvilh ihe requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities E.xchange Act of 1934; 
and 

(2) The informalion contained In the Quarteriy Report fairiy presents, In all material respecls. the financiai condition and results 
ofoperalions ofthe Company. 

Date: February 24, 2012 /s/Dale R. Black 
Dale R. Black. 
Chief Financial Officer 
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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
ITEM I. FINANCIALSTATEMENTS 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

.lulv 29. 
2012 

(unaudited) 

April 29. 
2012 

mm^rn^^^-^^^^, ^f 'mMizr^^T^r^^^pm 
Current assets: , , _ _ 
g!K'^^lF^dJ^qg-^ri''eflrigaients.^!^ 

Markelable securities 24,575 24,943 

80 7,497 
'••^IricdmejaxesiMeilgle^.-^^'^^^^^ , m *̂ '..-.-̂ "̂ i; ^^lM',;-ri>y^St-V^^.:^2^r6lil 

Deferred iricome taxes 615 ^ 627 
^^^mmM^^Mm:i^fm:''Mt^i^W^^^^:^l^3(y:606''.'WiHm5^ 

47,445 46.703 
Ẑ '-'P_ repaid'experises fa'ridfdtheri'asseis "jft^-^^ %-^.^X^^^ 

AssetS'held for sale 
fe?^^;.^.Totai'duWent:asset.su.^'fe^^^a£riS^SvWx^ 
Property and equipment, net 
Other asse ts ;^^^ , , -^ 

W2^^^Sl^^^^^:f^ii7^^:^K.'W.MM:^Jr2Q3^00^c:^2O2^2S3^ 
980.966 950.014 

Goodwill 
MOTh1:r;mtal^il)iela'sTefs."neta3a^-^/5:^^:g^:#^i:em'^^^ i ^ i ^ ^ 

Deferted financing costs, net LI..IJIU_I-I.LLL... ^ 

'̂ -̂& Restricted ̂ cas^j^rnd^iwe'striientsS^ M^T^^W^'"^ 

330.903 330.903 
^^ :a^ t^ fe^ ;^^^ :^^^^^fe^ :376 :^ ' ^^^!5^ i 

Prepaid deposits and other 
K^^^i^ts^m.^:^^-5am^^Pi»^ij^ii^^ 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EOUITY - _ 
feurrentHiab'iliTies:^3^^1{i?^^i^t-g?Mm^:^5^;^ 

Current maturities oflong-lerm debt ^ " $ 5,402$ 5,393 
hr .^±>^/Accoahis^^^b\em:^t^^^-?^m^nxM^Mimtu^^^m^w^ 

Accmed liabilities^ . ^ ' 

Property and other taxes 24,629 19,522 

Progressive jackpols and slot clubavvards 
k*i^ £:'^Ei abiTi ti esjrciateditd'assetsjheld: fdi^sale ' l l^^^ 

15.025 14.892 

Long-term debt, less current matiirities 

Other accrued liabilities 

U47.5S9 1,149.03_8 
^^^.ii;^rm:^^^^•='^ ̂ ;:^:?7yro3^a^3^iQ5^ 

_̂  33,844 33,583 
Q t h g l o n g ^ i S i l i a b i l i t j M M S l i ^ m ^ ^ ^ ^ 
Stockholders' equiiy: . „ „ _ _ _ —_— 
^fPrefmol^tockTSTd h par'̂ alue:.̂ 2r000TQ00^h¥res-auih'orizea!̂ rî ^ ^ ^ ^ ¥-. j" î ^A !̂̂ ^";•̂  ff^JI^ 

Common stock, $.01 par value; 60,000.006 shares aulhorized; shares issued: 42.066;i48 at Julv 29. 2012 
_ and 42.066.148 at April 29.2012 . ^ ; 421 421 
^ir€lasslB.Pdmmonrstdci^-g$T01!paT^alijeBT006W61sii^ 

A'dditional paid-in capilal 245.196 247,855 
Retril^d(e5n;in^fFeficit)Mir7^.^^:i::,l^^^ 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income . (693) (855) 

^^MM^^BJ^Z^^E^^Ml ^ ^ S ^ ^ ^ l l g i ; i ^ 2 2 4 ' ; 9 2 2 ^ ^ 2 2 p i - 7 6 3 j 
Treasury stock, 2,753.233 shares at July 29, 2012 and 3,083,867 at April 29, 2012 (33:161) (37.143) 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,605:757 $1.574.970 

See notes to the consolidated financial statements. 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, ING. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts) 
(Unaudiled) 

Three .Monlhs Ended 
.lulv 29. 

2012 
Julv 24. 

2011 

'"Casmo • " . ' $ 250.269 $ 235.227 

Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other ' 32.806 29:627 
^Grbs"S'reveriue"s-&'j'A-'t.:v .̂'.'ff-̂ wl̂  

Less promotional allovvances 
H^^--A-;^Net^gVenu^s^'l^^^ ^ ^ y ^ ^ ^ . i ^ ^ ^ M ' . 
Operating expenses: 

(55:882) (45.722) 
i S ^ ^-235i823fil^ff T •-^227J604i 

f •' C as mo u '^".^ mV 7^^ ?^? 
Gamint;,taxes 

^.j^RQoms^-y^>^-.^t^.^^^,7:-,^?S£-W^;^^fe^ig^^;.g^.lg#^ 

^>_^^lrg^^^^^^?::'^1^^7S|/*^l^Cj^^1(?^8f496•^''-^^•.^?'?.4tf;^^^^^^ 
61,628 59:517 

S i ^ i ^ j^%^-tf^vr-^^5i?7/7m;^.%^f^i/^'^ii9i9l 
10.104 9.953 

Preopening expense _.,.^~j..,»,,.,„j^ 
^Dep î ci atiori • and fariidrti zati dii$^^ y^^f^C^^^^ffl-

Total operating expenses 

r ^ ^ m ^ . I ^ ; 8 ^ ^ ' ^ ^ / ' ^ 1 2 ? 2 6 6 
687 36 

m^M':mS^M.W6T822p-L?-S M-:̂ .M 9rl76^ 

Qi5eratirig-iricQrii'e^f^.^P^^SirtM^i '̂̂ "'̂ fe^^ 
209.639 209,91 

Interest expense (20,431) (21,82'5) 
Mlniei^si\\ncomei-^.'^iuZ^-.4^^^!:4^-^Xm^^ ^ - . ^ j k ^ m m ^ 

Derivative income (expense) • 134 (231) 

6,062 ^MJ20) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 4,744 (2.559) 
^^• ' ^^ t j^^ . ' p :^m4m7, ' ^m£i^^}mm 

6,661 . $ (2.323) 
lncome;iroinidiscQntinuedioperaHons,^netiOtiincoineitaxeg| 
Net income (loss) 

ncome (loss) per common share-basic and dilutive: . 
flncomernossTfmm^conlil^iiig;o>eratI^^ 

. . 005 0.01 Income frpni discontiriued operations, net bf iricome taxes 
me\^incoiM{[os^:^immm&^%^^^^tid^ 

tWeigRteci'average' Sasi cTsh ares'f-^'^^ig' '^3^^^^'^ 
Weighted average diluted shares 

smmmM^M.MKw:^ :39Tb i S:28 vv. ̂  - :̂ :-:̂ 38577!T30l 
39.035'.280 38,277.150 

See notes to the consolidated finaricial statements. 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMP'REHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

(In thousands, except share amounts) 
(Unaudiled) 

Three Monlhs Ended 

rici;,incpme;(!qss). 
Jnlv29. 2012 , Julv 24, 2011 

^t-:r6.66Kt;-^$^-.:jt v(2B23)l iS^3^1^^^^1 SMEH^sj^ Othercxtmprehensiye income, net of tax: , ^̂  _̂  
rSpe fmed; hedge adj iislrii en t',̂  net'o fo ricdinej laxlprdvlsi onfdfi$89̂ mKlf$2 51̂ foiTt'he • thYeê * i fel'^'j^^*.;,^-.^, \ ; J'- 'î *''-" iL̂ "-' - "*' • "• --̂  *|! -̂ -̂'̂  
fet:imomh^ende"d'Julv:'29;^2Ql-finH5K'y4l^20^^^^ 

Unrealized gain on interest rate cap conlracts. net of income tax-pî ovi:sion of $8 and S3Tor 
the three nionths ended July 29 2Q1J2 and Jtily 24, 20 .• '- M . _ 5 

OtHer comprch^erisiveHric5metiy^'a5l^3^^Si^Bi^^»^ ijm^^i hi 62 g : '̂S:^^^.423i 
Comprehensive Income (loss) ; 1,900) 

See notes lo the consolidated financial statements. 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

(In Ihousands, except share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

Accum. 
Olher 

Shares of Addilional Kelained Comprehensive Tolal 
Common Common Paid-in. Earnings Income Treasur>- Stockholders' 

^ .Stock Stock Capital (Deficii). I Loss) .Slock Equity 
M'arice>fA^rilM20l2r-l^a-'"l%-4f€'^^'^:-^t.^^42!0^^^^^ 
Net incqme — —- — 6.661 — — 6.661 
0TheT;compreKg?^iveiri'cdrifeTi^lTnH^fta^^^ 
Issuance of restricted stock from treasurv stock —- —• (3,982) - —- — 3.982 — 
StdckTcdm^'aTsai l6 t^xpel isb;^^#r^# '%'^r^;^ l i l^^^^^g^lJ^B^^^ 
Balance, July 29.2012 42.066,148$ 421$ 245,196 $ (19,997)$ • (693)$ (33.161)$ 191.766 

' • 

See notes to the consolidated financial stalenients. 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

Three Monlhs Ended 
Jul) 29, Julv 24, 

2012 2011 
'6'per'atiffgracliviTies-I'g^.A;it ^ ^ ^ ^ -Mp^- 'W-^CkmrnM^^^m^^ 
Net Income (loss) , „ ^ _ _ „ _ , ^ ^ ^.^^.^.^ ,-,-^ - . . - ^ ,.^^ ^ . ^ / j ' . . ^ . . . J h B ' ^ l 
'^A]RstmenrsJmYgcon^lejie^ [T'J:''lgjg^li^"g*fckshiprdvidaiibv^ODcratirij^activifie"s;^3"-§• ^-\,"--s'g^/:^'7.--'^'w% 'h--" M f l ^ S P ^ I 

• Depreciation and amortizalion 16.822 21j467 
gM^tJ^.^""^of^.^fe^7^"r^i^"^o'^L^^ 

Amortization of debt discounl 52 51 
Ei^^T^e^liricome/-ta^^s^%i^^fe'^i>:^-'.^M;'^"^#-

Stock compensation expense 
fe^-j^jr/Gai""!"/1 oss'dii j'deri vaTi vei fistiiiiiien ts'C-'̂ ^̂  jSiP^a 

1.323 1,980 

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets ^ ^ ^ ^ 
I opc ;m'nn>V;iti no ^nyCf ' tc i inr l t l iah i l i t i^^^^S' Glia"ngesiiri'Qperatiri"giassets;andjliabi 1 ities: ^ ^ w^^m 
Sales (purchases) of trading securities 

f^Jt'A^ccdunistreceivabl e'l̂ 'gfitlfi j?̂  .̂ ^r^^^^ ̂ •M^i 

^#^^%-.m;^J^^i%--^Vfr--.613-4):.y.'%.^.-.-.;^^3"TIl 
i46)^, 86 mm ^^WW^^K' ft^5«S^ ~i^Trrw^_. 

lnsurancej;eceiyable 
'^^I; Incomefiax'irecei vaHl e ^ S ' ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ 

. 3 ^ (4311) 

Prepaid expenses and other a.ssels 
; iy(c1:ouiitS}p^yable;a^nd^a^^^^ 

_ _ _ ^ _ 7,417. 
r;'^^5#";^>^im-« :i'^-^'iiv^'"^/9tem' w'^'^jT^g^i^-^'^grtnTa 

(12.143) (5,635] 
f^tM.^^.^^'.^MmmM^f^^:mmmo~6 

Net cash^provided by operating activities • 40,143 22,500 

Investing activities: _ 
Pl^h'^e'ofbron^'rt^rand'^Quibmeritma^^^'i^j^^li;^^^^ 
Restricted'cash and.Investments , .„"..,„..,. (524) (509) 
Net>6ash\useH-MrillriycsiiivglactlvitiesT^^^#^^^^^^ 

r. I n ancmg:activities:;''-'":^\'-^\^-^ySBL'-'-^mL^:.^-i^M:^M.^ 
Priribipal paymenis on debt 
. et; (re payments); bprTovymgsionUineiOuc r e d i t ^ ^ ^ a ^ ^ 

Payment of deferi-ed financing costs 

^mimm^^M^m^m^^:^ti^---^m^mi^^^i^mm 
ii493) ^01.^484), 

Proceeds;! rom [e.xereiseiof Stock .0 pti on^#y€^g^sig^ 
Net ca.sh'Used infinancing activilies 
E:::5g î'.S!tai,' '̂ ^ -^''T::-: -!^T5''-wrT^?:sya'asTh?''i^''^13?^.:jI^ 

(1,716) .(iUftJ) • 
Net decrease in cash and cash eqtiivalents , _ _ _ ., 

.̂ Gas h' ari'd^casH >quiyal enls,lb"egiiini rig":of/j^ribdl'^,^^S^ 
(7,324) 

^ ' m ^ : . m ^ ^ m m ^ m ^ t ^ j . M ' m ^ 4 ^ 4 6 ] ^ i ^ . k m m i s n m 
$ 89,409 $ 67.854 

(5.052) 

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofthe period 

See notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
f 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
Notes to Consolldated'FiniincialStfltements 

(amounts in thousands, except share und per share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

1. Nalure of Operations 

Lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporalion. was incorporated In February 1990. Except where olherwise noted, the words 
"we," "us," "our" and similar tenns, as well as "Company," refer to Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.and all,of its subsidiaries. We are a 
developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and relaled lodgirigand entertainment,facilities in markets throughout the 
United States. Our wholly owned subsidiaries own and operale fourteen casino gaming,faciliiies in the Uniled Stales located in Black 
Havvk. Colorado: Lake Charies, Louisiana: Lula. Biloxi. Nalchez and Vicksburg, Mississippi; Kansas Cily, Boonville and 
Caruthersville Missouri; Betiendorf Davenport. Marquette and Waterioo, Iowa; and Pompano Beach, Florida. Our Biloxi casino is 
currently under contract for sale which w'c expect to close before the end of calendar 2012, subject to regulatory approval. Wc are 
currently constructing a nevv gaming facility in Cape Girardeau, Missouri, which we expect to open by November 1, 2012, subject to 
regulatory approval. 

2. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance wilh the rules and regulations of 
Ihe Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and in accordance with accounfing principles generally accepted in the United 
Stales of America for Interim financial reporting. Accordingly, certain information and'note disclosures normally included in financial 
statements prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States have been condensed or omitled. 
In managements' opinion, the accompanying interim condensed consolidated finariclarstatements include all adjustments, consisting 
of normal recurring adjustments, necessary fora fair statement ofthe results preserited. The accompanying interim condensed 
consolidated financial slatemenls have been prepared without audlL The results for interiiti periods are not necessarily indicative of 
results that may be expected for any other interim period or for.the full year. These conden.sed cdnsoiidated financial siatements 
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes Ihereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-
K forthe yearended April 29, 2012 as filed with the SEG and all of pur other filings, including Current Reports on Form S-K, filed 
with the SEC after such date and through the date ofthis report, which are'available dn the SEC's website at www.sec.govor our 
websiie at www.islecorp.com. 

Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April. Periodically, this syslem necessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal 2013 is a 52-week year 
which commenced on Apri! 30. 2012 and fiscaL2012 was a 53-week year, which commenced on April 25, 2011, with the fourth 
quarter having 14 vveeks. 

The condensed consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those ofour subsidiaries. All significant intercompany 
balances and transactions haye been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period financial 
statements to conform to the current period presentation. We view each property as ari operating segment and all such operaiing 
segments have been aggregated into one reporting segment. 

We evaluated all subsequent events through the date ofthe issuance ofthe consolidated financial statements. No material subsequenl 
events have occurred that required recognition in the condensed consolidated financial statements. 

3. Discontinued Operations 

During fiscal 2012, we entered into a definitive agreeinent to sell our Biloxi, Mississippi casino operations for $45,000 subject to 
certain working capital adjustments and regulatory approvals. As a result, the balance sheet items related to Biloxi have been 
classified as held for sale and the results ofoperalions are presented as discontinued operations. 

7. 
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The results ofour disconlinued operalions are summarized as follows: 

Disconlinued Operalons 
Three Monlhs Ended 

July 29, 
2012 

Julv 24. 
2011 

Prelax Income (loss)_from discontinued operations 
Iricom'e:iax:(prd.yislori)lbeneTilTroln L^cpritln uedipperati pns 
income from discontinued operations . . 

The assets held for sale and liabilities related lo asseis held for sale are as follows; 

^ ^ M I 

^^I]SIB21:;i<7.-567L^S.^12-JlS:203j 
1.917. _ _ . (472) 

1,917 236 

July 29, 
2012 

GixrTenfassets:-:Mz '̂'M:tiri-mW.U.^il^^-:i-^r 
Accounts receivable, net $ 522 

l^l^repaid expenses;and^othena.ssets,-'^.,^y^^Sg^^t^^^;g^;i^ 

Total assets 47.445 

Other accmedliabilities 
g^#Total':c\;rre^'lihbfiilig-s'J^1^Mm^::#f^^^^ 

t^^^^i^:imi¥^M^M^^t^m^m^mm 

2.901 
IS^^^4?587i 

4. Flooding 

Flooding along the Mississippi River caused five of our properties to clo.se for portions of the three months ended July 24, 2011. A 
summary ofthe closure dates and subsequent reopening is as follows: 

http://clo.se


Closing Dale Reupeiiinu Dale 
.Number Days 

Closed ^ 
n -:.'^^-%^\5(Am ' E>_a v̂ erip̂ rt?; I Qwa..^v\.'',^. 

Caruihe'rsville: Missouri 
ISr'TWi li^mi::^i5>:pnl|15r,2m:r^^^Mayil^,42014: 

_ ^ ^ May 1.2011 May 13.7011 
EuiaHM is;isspilr^i:.^a:^;^r^,i^sc^-^^^::^;^aMa^3l^26fi^^^^^ 

September2, 2011 
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NaIcRe^^ îssig îppIygiI:̂ ^^^n-.•̂ W r̂̂ r:g '̂̂ S K . ; 4 t ^ ' 
Vicksburg. Mississippi May 11.201 May 27, 2011 

,91(B)_ 

16 

(A) Six days of closure in the first quarterof fiscal 2012 and nine days of closure In,the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. 
(B) The second casino barge reopened on Sepiember 2, 2011 after flood darriage was remediated.. 

5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debi consi.sts of the following: 

Se ri idl; Secured^ Gred i f; Eaci li W M M ^ 

Julv 29, 
2012 

,\pril 29. 
2012 

Revolving line ofcredit, expires November I, 2013, interest payable'at least quarterly at either LIBOR 
__and/or prime plus a margin 

^29Sr07Sl^293roT6] 
'357:275: 357,275 

i7-'75'% Ŝen lo^Notes,̂  iiiteresLpayaB Î ê sem if aimual lyjM arcKfr5lantlJS.epiem^r|r5^ net^oCdiscourit^^ *• 
7% Senior Subordinated Notes, interest payable semi-annually.March I and Septeriiber 1 

1,152.991 1,154,431 
' 'S5I402: 

Long-term debt 
m:^t:'^m^^i^M:il r5W93} 

$1,147,589 $f.l49,03S 

Credit Facility - Our Senior Secured Credit Facility, as amended ("Credit Facitity"), consists of a $300,000 revolving line ofcredit 
and a $500,000 tenn loan. The Credit Facility is secured on.a first priority basis by substaritially al! ofour assets and guaranteed by all 
of oursignificani subsidiaries. 

Our net line ofcredit availability at July 29, 2012. as limited by our maximum leverage covenant, was approximately $277,000, after 
consideration of $29,000 in outstanding surety bonds and letters of credit.-We pay a commitment fee related to,the unused portion of 
Ihe Credit Facility of up to 0.625% vvhich is included in iriterest expense iri,the accompanying cdh.solidated statements of operations. 
The weighted average effecfive interesi rate of the Credit FacilityTor the three months ended July 29, 2012 was 5.11%. 

The Credit Faciliiy includes a number of affirmative and negative covenanls. Additionally, we must comply with certain financiai 
covenants including mainlenance ofa senior secured leverage ratio, a total leverage ratio and minimum Interest coverage ratio. The 
Credii Facility also restricts our ability to make certain investriients or distributions. We were in compliance with all covenanls as of 
July 29, 2012. 



7.75% Senior Notes — In March 2011. we issued $300,000 of 7.75% Senior Notes due 2019 at a price of 99.264% ("7.75% Senior 
Notes"). The net proceeds from the issuance were used to repay term loans under our Credit Facility. The 7.75% Senior Notes are 
guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by subsianlially all of our significant subsidiaries and certain other sub.sidiaries as described In 
Note 13. All of Ihe guarantor subsidiaries are wholly owned by us. The 7.75% Senior Noles are general unsecured obligalions and 
rank junior to all ofour senior secured indebtedness and senior to otir senior subordlriated Indebtedness. The 7.75% Senior Noles are 
redeemable in whole or in part, at our option at any time on orafter March 15, 2015, vvith call premiums as defined in the indeniure 
goveming the Senior Notes, 

The indenture goveming the 7.75% Senior Notes limits, among other things, our atjillty and our restricted subsidiaries ability lo 
borrow money, make restricied payments, use assels as securiiy In other transaciions, enter into transactions with affiliates, pay 
dividends, or repurchase stock, 'fhe indenture also limits our ability to issue and sell capital stock of subsidiaries, sell assets in excess 
ofspecified amounls or merge with or into other companies. 

7% Senior Subordinated Notes - Our 7% Senior Subordinated Notes are due 2014 ("7% Subordinated Notes") and are guaranteed, on 
ajolnt and several basis, by all ofour significant subsidiaries and ceriain other subsidiaries as described In Note;I3. All ofthe 
guarantor subsidiaries are wholly owned by us. The 7% Subordinated Notes are general unsecured obligations and rank junior to all of 
our senior indebtedness. The 7% Subordinated Notes are redeemable, in whole or in'part, at our opfion at any time with call premiums 
as defined In the indeniure goveming the Subordinated Notes. 

The indenture goveming the 7% Subordinated Notes limits, among other things, our^abllity and our restricted subsidiaries' ability to 
borrow money, make restricted payments, use assets as security in:dther transactions, enter into.transactions'vyiih affiliales or pay 
dividends on or repurchase stock. The indenture also limits our ability to issue and sell capital stock of subsidiaries, sell assets in 
excess ofspecified amounts or merge with or into other companies. 

Subsequent Event - On August 7. 2012. we completed the issuance and sale of $350,000,of S.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 
2020 (the "New Subordinated Notes") in a private offering. We received net proceeds of $343:000 for this issuance after deducting 
underwriting discounts. The New Subordinaied Notes are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each our domestic subsidiaries 
that guarantee ourCredit Facility. These New Subordinated Notes', are general unsecured dbligaiions,'rank junior td all ofour senior 
indebtedness and are redeemable, in whole or In part, at our option at anytime on or afier June 15, 2016, with call'premiums as 
defined in the indenture goveming the New Subordinaied Notes. We are required to'file a registration statement foran exchange offer 
of these Nevv Subordinated Notes with the Securities and Exchange Conimissidn wiihin 180 days from the date of'issuance. 

Through August 22, 2012, vve have repurchased and retired $338,231 of our $357,275, 7'?̂ o Subordinated Notes with proceeds from 
the Issuance ofthe New Subordinated Notes. We intend to use the rebialning net proceeds'from the issuance ofthe New Subordinated 
Notes, together with cash on hand, and if necessary, borrowings urider our Credit Facility, to redeem the remainder ofour oulstanding 
7% Subordinated Notes on or before September 7. 2012. '' 

Follovving completion ofthe issuance ofthe Nevv Subordinated Notes and the retireriierit.of the 7% Subordinated Notes, the maturities 
ofour Credit Facility are extended to March 25. 2016 and March 25,^017 for the revolving line ofcredit and term loans, respecfively, 
based upon the Credii Facility indentures. 

As a result ofthe above transactions, we expect to incur additional expense related to the write-off of deferred financing costs. 
Issuance costs and other related fees of approximaiely $3,000, Including $1,000 in non-cash charges, during the second quarter of 
fiscal 2013. ' • 
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6. Earnings Per Share 

Thetdllowing table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted income (loss) per share: 

Three Monlhs Ended 
Julv 29, 

2012 
Julv 24. 

2011' 
MM:^.^:^^3:iMi:SLz£S^u.ic^ Nuriieraldr:^ff -^C'. ;\m t- " ^ F'^fjjg^ 

Iricome (loss) applicable lo cornmqn shares; 
^ ^ i * I ncomef loss h frorii - cd'riti iiuiri'g'dpe'ratidri"sr̂ 'g1̂ y:iî ^̂ ĵ -̂̂ V^̂ ^̂  

Income frdm discontinued operatidns 
Ei^^"$^;^^::?a:74^?^sr<^.wf2:559)i 

1.917 236 

Net income (loss) 

EM:^-^'^^:^-i'^^i;^x^^ 
Denominalor: 
^ E v Deiidni i iiator. fdr J b'asic:eariii rigs!( 1 OSS) ; perish"are",^we j ghtediavera'gejshares J 

Effect ofdilulive securities Employee stock oplions 
E39T01S;2S1E-

16.999 
a:^38-277.4 50? 

Basic:earhings^(loss)-p'eiv"stiare^^^i^,^|^^^^ 
ricome (loss) from continuing operations 

ffij^'^-I ricome"! frdih • cl iscori li nued idperatl dns"Wyj 
Net Income (lo.ss) 
Wi^li!'^^r•iaig^w»i. . .^tgi 'i-i.^ 

$ 0.12 $ (0.07) 

o:i7 (0:06) 
mr^.¥^r^^^m^-^%r^?m ^^.^ 

Diluted earnings (loss) per share: ^ 
^^lricdine":(loss)Tfrdm coritinuing'operatibnsn^^ 

Incorne from discontinued operations 
^oir^^$:̂ îMcos7"5i 

0.05 " 0.01 

Our basic eamings (loss) per share are computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
for the period. Stock oplions representing 1,161,710 shares, which are anti-dilulive, were excluded from the calculafion of common 
shares for diluted income pershare forthe three months ended July 29;'2012. Due tojhe net loss forthe three months ended July 24, 
^2011, stock options representing 107,549 shares, which are potentially dilutive, an'd469,710 shares, which are anti-dllutive, were 
excluded from the calculalion of common shares for diluted loss per .share for thai period. 

7. Stock Based Compensation 

Under our 2009 Long Term Incentive Plan we have issued restricted stock and stock options. 

Restricted Stock—During the first quarter ended July 29, 2012. we issued;330i634 shares of restricted stock with a weighted average 
grant-date fair value of $6.03 to employees. Restricted stock awarded to employees under annual long-term incentive grants primarily 
vests one-third on each anniversary ofthe grant date and for directors.vests'one-half on the grant date and one-half on the first 
anniversary of the grant date. Our estimate of forfeitures for restricied slock^for employees is 5%. No forfeiture rate is estimated for 
directors. As of July 29. 2012, our ' . 
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unrecognized compensation cost for unvested restricted stock is $3,462 with a remaining weighted average vesiing period of 1.4 years. 

Restricted Stock Units—During the first quarter ended July 29. 2012. we granled restricted stock units ("RSUs") containing markel 
performance conditions which will determine the ultimate amount of RSUs, ifany, to be avvarded up to 728.570 .shares. Any RSUs 
earned will vest 50% three years from the grant date and 50% four years from the grant date. The fair value of these RSUs is 
detennined utilizing a lallic'c pricing model which considers a range of assumptions Including volalility and risk-free interest rates. 
The aggregate compensalion cost related to these RSUs is $2,350 to be recognized over the vesfing periods. As of July 29. 2012, our 
unrecognized compensation cosi for these RSUs is $2,179. 

Stock Options- We have issued incenlive stock options and nonqualified stock options which have a maximum term of 10 years and 
are. generally, vesied and exercisable in yeariy Installmenls of 20% commencing one year afler the date ofgrani. We currenlly 
estimate our aggrcgaie forfeiture rates at 11%. As of July 29, 2012, our unrecognized compensalion cost for unvesied slock oplions 
was $178 with a weighted average vesting period of 1.1 years. 

8. Interest Rate Derivatives 

We have entered into various interesi rate derivative agreemenis In order to manage market risk on variable rate term loans 
outstanding. We have an interesi rate swap agreement with an aggregale notional value of $50,000 with a maiurity date in fiscal 2014. 
We have also entered into interest rate cap contracts with an aggregate notional value of $100,000 having maturity dates in fiscal 2013 
and paid premiums of $203 at inception. 

The fair values of derivatives included in our consolidated balance sheet are as follows; 

Type of Derivative Intirumcnt Balance Sheet Location July 29. 2012 April 29. 2012 
Iritereslirale'gwaii'cbritfactsgx'-^^ 

The interest rate cap agreements meet the criteria for hedge accounting for cash fiow hedges and have been evaluated, as of July 29, 
2012, as being fully effeciive As a result, there is no impact on our consolidated slalemeril of operations from changes in fair value of 
the interesi rate cap agreements. The loss recorded in other eompreherisive income'(loss) for our Interest rate cap agreements is 
recorded net of deferred incoine lax benefiis ofan immaterial amount and $8 as of July 29. 2012iand April 29, 2012, respectively. The 
change in unrealized loss on our derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting was an immaterial amount and $26 for the three months 
ended July 29. 2012 and July 24, 2011, respecfively. 

Our inierest rote swaps no longer meet the criteria for hedge effectiveness, and therefore changes in the fair value of the swaps 
subsequent to the dale of ineffectiveness in Febmary 2010, are recordcd'iri derivative inco me'(expense) in the consolidaled statement 
ofoperalions. The cumulative loss recorded in other comprehensiveincome (loss) through the date of ineffectiveness is being 
amortized into derivative expense over the remaining term of the iritllvidual,interest rate svyap agreements or when the underiying 
transaction is no longer expected to occur. As of July 29, 2012,the weighted average fixed LIBOR interest rate ofour interest rale 
swap agreemeni was 3.995%. 

The loss recorded in other comprehensive Income (loss) ofour inierest rate swap agreements Is recorded net of deferred income lax 
benefits of $417 and $506. asof July 29, 2012 and April 29, 2012, respecfively. 

Derivative income (expense) related lo the change In fair value of interest rate swap contracts is as follows: 
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Three Monlhs Ended 
Julv 29, 

2012 
Julv 24. 

2011 
DenyatIyejincqmel(expensei.- -̂̂ -t • 'g-- i^E.jJ;i-'j*t,sr-<?^g^-'̂ -ij>ta>" >Ke .>V.fe..'̂ ;43SM 

Derivative Income (expense) realized associaied vvith the amortization of cumulative loss recorded In other comprehensive income 
(loss) for the interesi rate swaps through the date of ineffectiveness is as follows: 

Three .Months Ended 
July 29, 

2012 
Julv 24, 
.2011 

'AccumulaTed-QGFamSiliza'lidn.^'^r-^SW^W-^gfi^'g'^^S^ 
Change in deferred taxes 

' x^^^^^^^^^^^^^f^p^^^s^^^Ms^:^^^"^ v ^ ^ ^ ^ 

The amount of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to interest rate svvap cdntracts and interesi rate cap conlracts 
maturing within the next twelve months vvas $594, net of lax of $357. as of July:29, 2012. 

9. Fair Value 

The fair value ofour interest swap and cap conlracts are recorded using Level 3 inputs at the present value ofall expected fuiure cash 
fiows based on the LIBOR-based svvap yield curve as ofthe date ofthe valuation. 

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the three months ended 
July 29. 2012: 

Interest 
'Rate 
lledses 

Bala1ice^t:XDrtl'-29!^20l2^.^^J^?-^>i^M>%^^ 
Realized gains/flosses) _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 372 
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Financial Instruments -The estimated carrying amounls and fairvalues of our other financial instrumenls are asTollows: 

Carry inj; 
Aniounl 

Jiily 29.*2IH2 

Fair Value 
Carr>ing ' 
Amounl 

April 29. 2012 

Kair Value 

F i r i 1 i n c i a l . a S s e l g r % - : ^ . 3 > - ^ . - ' ^ ^ f e ^ ^ - # y : : ^ ' g ^ ^ ^ e ^ ^ ^ ^ . ^ - . ^ . ^ , • ^ ^ : ; < ^ ^ » ; i - ^ ^ ^ - ^ ^ , - ^ ^ ^ - g f ^ - ^ - - ; v ^ 

Cash and,cash eguIyalenis 
Nl arketairjeisectiri tiesl; '^; ^^ .̂̂ 'li^-'̂ .- '̂̂ . ^^-
Resiricted cash 

^m.¥^^^m 
89,409 $ 89.409 S 94,461 $ 94,46! 

^^^^4^575^g;#:^'^.:*24T57'5-%.v~.:.f %24:943-"-,: . : - J ^-^241943^ 
12;895" 12:895 12,551 12,551 

N o t e s - r e d e i ^ ^ e ^ D ^ ; ^ ^ ^ W ^ T ' ^ J ^ e M . . . . ^ ; ^ ' ' m W m ^ ^ ^ S W & ^ ^ M & ' > - ' ^ - ^ . 0 1 3 ^ : ^ - ^ - ^ ^ ^ . ^ 9 3 ^ . ^ ' 3 - ^ ^ : > t | 2 9 3 l 

- F i i ^ i ^ e . a i ; i i a l i m t i g s f ? - 4 ^ ^ . ^ ^ : ^ ^ j ^ ' ^ i ; ^ ^ i 1 ^ ^ - ^ ^ ^ 
Revolving line ofcredit 
yIi^bTSrral5.termMo-5ris;,,V^'^C-^:/^:f:-^^^ 
.7:75% Senior notes 

— ; $ — $ • — 

>f836^lZ;^lMlQ0QM!EEM?'r7L33 

Other long-term debt L3^S_88 
gtK^^Tcmt>^lefm-:obriHafi3m!^^v>fea^.^./m:^^^ 

29S.Q7S 31i;864 29S .026__ 308^29 
. .!^^5£^:.--m'^^f1^1^35.7l275^g^I-^3rS:6f5IAB^.-^:357^^ 1681 

3.888 4,130- ' 4,130 
^'^^^&/i99'^''^'^S^.l^5'5^1^:S-\tX'^^^]6^55m 

fhe following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value ofeach class of financial instruments for which it is 
practicable to esfimate that value: 

Cash and cash equivatenis. resiricted cash and notes receivable are carried al cost, which approximaies fair value due to their 
short-term maturities. 

Markelable securities are based upon Level 1 Inputs obtained from quoted prices available in active markets and represenl the 
amounts we would expect to receive if we sold these marketable securities. 

The fair value ofour long-term debt or other long-term obligations is estimated based on the quoted markel price of the underiying 
debt issue (Level 1) or. when a quoted market price is not available, the discounted cash flow.of future payments ulilizing currenlrates 
available to us for debt of similar remaining maturities (Level 3). Debt obligaiioris with a short remaining maturity are valued at the 
carrying amount. 

10. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

A detail of accumulated other comprehensive income (los.s) is as follows: 

i n f £ r e . s t ' r a t e S g b m i ^ c ' l s f c t a ^ ' ' ^ i ^ 5 ; - ^ ^ - ! ^ ^ ' ^ ^ ^ 
interest rate svvap contracts 

Julv 29. 2012 
r " j ^ . n : ' E i . : n r - ? ^ 

April 29, 2012 

(693) • (841) 
n ^ f 6 9 3 ) g $ ^ ^ ^ ' ^ g : ^ ' ^ - : ^ ? - ( S 5 5 ) ^ 

The amounl of change in the gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related lo derivative 
instruments is as follows: 

Three Months Ended 

T \pe of Derivaiive In.sirunicnl 
Julv 29, 

2012 
Julv 24, 

2011 
rnt"'e>est:Vate.dap:bonlrabir..^-?Sqr.^,ti;:Tfr^^^^^J^^^ri^g>Ig-^^ 
interesi rate swap" contracts _*_. US 418 
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II. IncomeTaxes 

)ur effective income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations fdr the three months ended July 29. 2012 and July 24. 2011 
/ere 21.7% and 37.9%, respectively, of pretax income. Our income tax provision (benefit),from continuing operations and our 

Ol 
were 
effective rate Is based on statutory rales applied to our Income adjusied for permanent differences and lo account for changes in 
valuation allowances. Our aclual effeciive rale will fiuctuate based upon the amount of qur pretax book income, permanent 
differences and other items. Including fluctuafions in valuation allowances, used In thcxaiculafion ofour Income tax benefit. During 
the first quarterended July 24. 2011, the federal statute of limitations expired forthe open tax years ending April 2006 and April 2007. 

A summary ofour income tax provision from continuing operalions is as follows: 

Three .Months Ended 
^ ^ ^ Julv 29. 2012 Julv 24. 2011 

^ ^ i l c ^ i ^ i ; ; M ^ E ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ ^ ^ ^ M s . ^ ^ i _ 2 ; i 2 2 M l $ i ! i m s £ i ( i : ; ' 4 4 2 ) i 
Stale taxes ' ' 247_ (̂288) 
^^crirmjet^mffeTonc^mi^^^:^ 
Tax credits (355) ^(226 
b t h e r f e B ^ l t V ^ ' ^ ^ ^ ^ k ^ : ^ . ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ? ^ 
Valuation allovvance . (1.066) —-
lncome'-taxTbenefii);provision^fromxontmuingiOperations<!#.»^'-^^^:jtajgi^ipj--^^ 

12. Supplemental Disclosures 

Cash f/otv — For the three months ended July 29. 2012 and July 24, 2011;,we made net cash payments for inierest of $7,796 and 
$8,916, respectively. Additionally, we (made) received income tax'(payments) refunds of ($2,892) and $109 during the three months 
ended July 29. 2012 and July 24,'20l 1, respecfively. 

Forthe three months ended July 29, 2012 and July 24, 2011. the change in accmed purchases of property and equipment in accounts 
payable increased by $4,563 and $630. respectively. 
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13. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information 

Certain ofour wholly owned subsidiaries have fully and uncondifionally guaranteed on ajoinl and several basi.s. ihe payment ofall 
obligations under our 7.75% Senior Noles and 7% Senior Subordinated Notes. 

The following wholly owned subsidiaries ofthe Company are guaranlors. on ajoinl and several basis, under the 7.75% Senior Noles 
and 7%.Senior Subordinaied Notes: Black Havvk Holdings. L.L.C; CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc.; ICHoldings Colorado. Inc.: IOC-Black 
Hawk Distribution Company, L.L.C; IOC-Boonville Inc.; lOC-Camthersville L.L.C.;,10G-Kansas Gity, Inc.; lOG-Lula. Inc.; lOC-
Natchez, Inc.: IOC. Black Hawk Couniy, Inc.; IOC Davenport, Inc.; IOC Holdings. LX.C; IOC Semees, LLC; lOC-Vicksburg, Inc.: 
lOC-Vicksburg, LLC; Rainbow Gasino Vicksburg Partnership, L.P.; IOG Gape Girardeau, LLC jsle ofCapri Bettendorf Marina 
Corporation; lsle ofCapri Betiendorf L.C; lsle ofCapri Black Hawk Capital Corp.; Isle of Capri Black Hawk. L.L.C; Isle ofCapri 
Marquette. Inc.; P.P.I. Inc.; Riverboai Corporadon ofMississippi; Riverboat Services, lnc'.;and St. Charies Gaming Company. Inc. 

Consolidating condensed balance sheets as of July 29. 2012 and April 29. 2012 are as follows (In Ihousands); 

AsofJulv29.2012 

Balar iceiSheet^i i : # W ^ ^ a S ^ W ^ . S ' ^ M . i ^ i M 

hie ofCapri Consolidating 
Casinos, Inc. . Non- and Isle ofCapri 

(Pareni Guarantor Cuaranlor Eliminating Casinos, Inc. 
Obligor) _ Subsidiaries Suhsidiaries Entries Consolidated 

^'^4:jg:^^l^u--^-w.iO^^^-.v.^-WT^;?^i^-i^-v^>^:a^^..-^1 
64,530 

^^S'69:933l 
118.852 S 27,352' $ (7.534) $ 203,200 

Y^8X6m^^m(4]{22Q)'!^^m(Mo25r^-^'^mk^'^hm 
(29,794)_ — (626.888) ' ^ — 
9T9:758^S2^3'2Tr21t:^-^L^fe;^,^te-s-^-^980T966l 
384.224 17.553 27,576 421.591 

iIotal^ssei;^B.:a"^^^\-^W^':fr#I^#il^$i^lf3^ 

iril'ercohi'pan ylfece i vaBi es ^ ^ ^ 

RFdpertyi"anS feq uipm erit j* j fc t^f i^l^^ ^ M 
Other assets 

656.682 

(7.-762) 

Gu^niiMiL^^-SS^ll^^ll^^^Ss^SMlllTlMsl 
Intercompany:payables __ '--^ 
iioiig^tcrm^ebtl 1 ess"'curi^erit'riiaturi ii es l:^'^M'^A%.^^^]^l •44"?i"03'^^ 
Other accrued liabitities 7:926 

'Stogî i?̂ id̂ vemjitv:̂  t^m^^^M^k^^mk^^^mwm^ 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ . L392.470 $_ 

110Pr47it^$"^37^?Tilg$Ps;?^f7f53fi)!?S>^"^^L7S7656 
;446.025 - — (446.025' 

^^36g£M-.^g^:a^^>-^j:-l^?JSl-4?r 
14.712. 27.576 87.746 

•.•^i^T-y 
371532: . , , . . ^ ^ . . . . „ _„_.. . ^ 

r^3a7T^^IOJ^83)Xg^^^^5r6"2"6TS88yr^^^ 
1,230.-352 $ 35,806 $ (1.052,871) $ 1.605.757 

Gurrent assets 
1 ntercoiripaliy/recelvablesus^Y^'^s^.f^.^-y^^ 
Invesiments In subsidiaries 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligor) 

As of April 29.2012 

Guai-antor 
Subsidiaries 

•, Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Eliminaling 
Enlries 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

M^^M^iS 
29:324 $ " (284) S 

?:176:S82)^^J^iJ(5QT942)'fg^^(446.(325)"K 

RropeTtyJaridLequiphient^^nei^ 
Other assets (5.524) 

^ _ . - . , . - - , — (614,629) 

384,469 17.209 26:519 
^,'1^374f475^SM;rjl7207;089.O$vr^27!825^^$ir#-f-n034r419)gS-r 

422,673 
n;574;970l 

G^l iL i i l i l iMESISl^EiS i l^ iS 
Intercompany payables ^. . , . ...•,. ,.,.,.i 
LQnRnerfn^ebt^le.ss^cuitentrinaturities-^^^t-^ 
Other ac"crued liabilities 
SIockh'8l^g?^s•.^Quitvi^•^^^^t'1^?^>^^-^^M:fa 

lS9;2I3W$lil?29:690,f.,$^.5;':^l-'^f2"96)TSTl?^l 5^, M 6^ 
446,025 — (446,025) 

•\m5Boi^m^m^3m4m^,^^!^i473^jj^^-^^u-.^'ji-j^ 
- S6.1% 

1?^83T620l 
Tolal liabilities and stockholders' equity 

'8j045 37,175 14.445 26,531 
^rS3K20^^^^R63T^412gg^-'.r^'(46?783);g.A^\#i::i(614!629)"J>i-^ 
1:374.475 $ L207.089- $ 27.825 $ (1.034.419). $ 1.574.970 
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Consolidaling condensed statements ofoperalions for the three months ended July 29. 2012 and July 24. 2011 are as follows (In 
ihou.sands): 

For the Three Months Ended Julv 29. 2012 
lsle ofCapri 
Casinos, Ine. 

(Parcnt 
Obligor) 

Guaranlor 
Subsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Suhsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos. Inc. 
Consolidated 

Revenues: .' 
CSsino'̂ ^fe-^T^J-i:f^-1"^ J^ft->^i^"'M^^C:^'^^S^g^H^¥$I^50^9l^$7^Vis>r^--^ l$/^^:^^'C-^-^:x.-$'?^250r269'^ 
Rooms, food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other Hb 41.254. 2:452 (2.446) 41,436 
GrdsTrevenuesr-y^-^^^'ili'^-^^'S.'>^-^-^^.k^^^^^mMm^\msmMmi29\'.523m^2r452''^- Sr-̂ - '̂ (2,446)f^^-:'i-^.-29H705.3 
Less promotional allowances — (55.882) — —̂ . (55.882) 
Nineveriuesi^-x.--.r;;'.^-^_-^s#':g.-t^--'-g:-m-^f^^^^^^ 

•Dbrrdtiri"-;'Jexperises:i:.^^.#-t?--^:v-^^51'^-p-€l^JM.^iP 
Gasino 

Rqomŝ ^Qod, beyeragepar^^ 
M an agement; feejetpe rise'(rey eritie) '̂#'l^fer '̂'̂  
Depreciation and amortization 489. 

3M96 - - _— 38,496 
t6ii62^:M;w^M^?^^'tK-^M^^^.^.ts^'^^(;m2m 
84,227 1.450 (2,446) 92,693 

m37^;^m^k^ .^^m^^-^^y^ : s :^ :m^(^ im^ 
iTota l-,Qperatmg-expensesfiviv:f^&-'̂ .^?i- '̂̂ f^p^^ 

16,195 138 16,822 
;;983m.-^.^^1^5S8tl^-^^'fe'^(2t446)-i£^y-^S^-209;639j 

ODeratirigari"come[(Io"ss)^>!S-^^-=^l^%M'^J#?m^SI(^T338)1 
Interest expense, net (11,071) 
G î iJTdiî cxtliiigu isHriVerit o f̂  eb ' t -# ' ^«#^^^ ,^ ' ^^ 
perivaiive incdme 134 
E qulty}! n";inc6me(l pss)̂ of i siibsidia'ri es1^'^^'^§^^%^gl 018963 

(8.971) (214) — (20,256) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations before 
income taxes and rioncontolling interest 

' Income^laxuprovision);beneiit^ 

;a^a^:^i^^^^-^-g^^m^^^^T(roT896)'gI^ 
134 

Incoriie (loss) from conlihuining operations 
lncomc:(loss)Lof-:discontinued'.operalions^.fe.g:^,' 

(1.379) 17,687 650 (10,896) 6.062 

^^^^(^>i-23'^^fet^l(7fl92)^-.^^Ta9l':,^^l^^:^^^^feJ.'m'fe-^'(^n3rS)'l 4,744 10.495 ,401 . (10.896) 4,744 

• Net income (loss) 6.661 $ 11,787 $, 401 (12.188) $_ 6.661 

17 



For ihe.lhrce Monlhs Ended July 24, 2011 
Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent Guarantor 
Ohiigor) Subsidiaries 

Statgihent'bfQperatiofsrJ-^.>^-.r:;.^ _̂ ^̂ . r^^W^:^^. ,S^ '^J^:^i 

Non-
Guaranlor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Eliminating 
Enlries 

lsle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

^ 0 : ^ * ^ l ; . # ^ g : y ^ - g - r ^ r r^i::?- - :^^r :^-^ y^^g. -.̂ .£^3 
Revenues: 
c^irio ̂ -̂ ̂ .^.' - '^:w^. .m̂ R?̂ ":? ̂ - ^ ,̂  .7 z^^ ^ s ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ 
Rooms, food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other 15 ̂msi 
GrdssTeveTiubs->i.. k^¥;g-^:^.ra?^--..^ ̂ ;l .i^.C^B:l^'-S"^ n-51 
Less promotional allowances — 
Nef.reveriut^"i^ "•?i -ĵ  "fi.li '̂ '̂ T '̂̂ '%^^^^# ;̂ ,^^^..'^.M^-^^-^^l-51 

i-235T227W$r^ .̂.-.i'--'?ML.̂ $g^^ '̂̂^ ?;--^"sTT^23"5?227.^ 
37.93'i 2:420 (2.403) 38.099 

f̂ &273>l-5S'F .̂'̂  .̂ j 2r420^^^-.T-;f2.403)T^%- .̂ '̂ 4>273i326^ 
(45:722) — — "(45.-722) 

|:&227!436^%Sr^2.42Q^^^y^:^f2:403)^g::;^J^227{60^ ' 

Operati rig :"exlje"nsesrr̂ ,aî .?'̂ f̂ !̂r̂ -ŷ  
Casino 35.971 — — 3_5,971 

i:59BT7Bk.^^^;.^^^^.ri^^^.:fea->59!5T7i 
82,981 1,780 . (2,403) 95,247 

18.605 • . 138 — 19.176 
S'^r-^i;91S^a-g^-^'(2.403)II^:.S>^2Q9!9Mi 

G^ihg^ taxes 3^i',,^^^^'%:^^-^-;^^^^%.4^S::^ 
Rodms^food, beverage, pari-rnutuel andoiher 12.889 

• Klariagemeritifee'e.xpeme^frevenue):;̂ - .̂̂ ^^ 8T004 )j 
Depreciation and amortization 433 
fI^tal^op£ratirig^Deii^er-£^rfit-^J^^^ 15318 

S R e r a t i n g | i n c ^ e r ( L l s ) 3 E I ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 
1 nlerest ej< pense, net__^^ _ ^ 
{j^iri5on;extinguisiiiiieiitpf^eb't^qg^ 
Derivative Income (23J) 

i 2 l 3 5 S ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S ^ ^ 3 ^ I ^ ^ S i S r ^ ? 3 l 
(14.963) , _ (132) — (21_,582) 

j . ' t j . ' i j . a . M j ; , i , ' a j , ~ T T 
Equity;iri^incomeTf|Qrs):ofsiibsidi^esl^-t^^^^^g^^2^^ 
Income (loss) from confinuing operations before 

income laxes arid nonconlolling inierest (9:205) 
lncomeitax^(proyision)'benefit-?g'j-.-^y^':^.Sg-S^^gv:a?^^b:646?^ 

(̂231) 

Income (loss) from coniinuining operations 
lncome;(loss)iofiC 
Net Income (loss) 

7,395_̂  370 (2,680) • (4.120) 

^^(2;9i^^^^MlI)l^^^S^ilSnili9 

(1.803) $ (2,296) $_ 



Consolidafing condensed .statements of cash fiows for ihe three monihsended July 29, 201-2 arid July,24, 2011 are as follows (In 
Ihousands): 

Three Months Ended July 29. 2012 

StateriWnt.orGli^Fib?^^ir?g'^?^^T^^l^ 

lsle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Pareni 
Obligor) 

Giiaranior 
Subsidiaries. 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminaling 
Enlries 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinns, Inc. 
Consolidated 

^ ^ . $ ^ - ^ - ; A > ^ ^ \ - : : t ; ^ ^-^;;ii. - - • ^ ^ ; " . >^?^'j^.;^'-1 
Net cash provided by (used in) operaiing 

activities 40.143 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing 
activities 

N'et 
(1.473): 

S'et • iiicfeasel (decrease); itilcashland fcashx '^A^M'^^MW'^M-' ' ¥ M ^ 

mim\va^^^mm&-^.^.^':S:^^^-tW^^Mmm 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the 

period 

5,597 (9.757) 3.917 (1.716) 

ga6:2^^K^fe25i te i"^tf | ;^S?i la^2 
39.365 50.749 4.347 94.461 

easHra1ld..ra1;h^eqlii^alerit:s:a^end[oftKeTe^oBl;a$^^29^2^^ 

Three Months Ended Julv 24, 2011 

Stat'eirierit"6fGasH>FlowSv.a^?gi;^^J^'^^ 

lsle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Obligor) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries -

' Non-
Guarantor 

-Subsidinries 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc: 
Consolidated 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activilies 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing 
activities ^̂  

Net!iricrcJise";(Secfease51ihlcash.aritJ-xasli'%^^^.^^^| 
|ftfeqi:ii?ale"nt.sM-C#-^gW^^^i#S:^. l ^ i S i ^ X ^ 
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of the 

period 
CashandLca.shLequiyaients;al.end or itheipenddr:v#'^-i"g 

22,500 

62.105 9,121 75,178 
lM$im^52J833'^$:^:^.J5:220k%$fe^rft.^'VS,::;-f^$&r-j?£-6^ 

14, Commitments and Contingencies 

Development Projects—Construction continues on schedule for our lsle Casino Cape Girardeau development. We currently estimate 
Ihe cost of the project ai approximately $135,000 and anticipate opening by Noveriiber l,r26!2; subject to regulatory approval. To 
date, we have incurred capilal expenditures, including capitalized iriterest, of approximately $76,439. 

On Augusi 20, 2012, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court affirmed,the decision ofthe Pennsylvania Gaming Conrol Board to award a 
Calegory 3 resort gaming license to Ihe NemacolinWoodlands Resort ("Nemacolin") in Farrnlngton.Penrisylvania. We have an 
agreement with Nemacolin to complete the build-out oflhe casino space and provide management services of the casirio; We are 
currenlly finalizing our consiruction plans and preparing to receive formal bids forthe conslmction ofthe facility, while vve work with 
the Perinsylvania Gaming Control Board through the reriiainder of the licensing process. We currently estimate the cost oflhe project 
to be at least $50,000 and constmction is expecied to take nine to twelve months once we begin. 
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Legal and Regulatory Proceedings—We and our wholly-owned subsidiary; Riverboai Corporation of Mississippi - Vicksburg. are 
defendants in a lavvsuit filed in the Circuit Court of Adams County,.Misslssippi;by.Silver Land,,Inc.. alleging breach of contract in 
connection wilh our 2006 sale of casino operations in Vicksburg, Mississippi, to,a.thlrd.party. In January 2011. the court ruled in favor 
of Silver Land and in September 2011 ihe court awarded damages of $1^979. We,filed a ridtice of appeal in November 2011. While 
the outcome of this mailer is still in doubt and cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty, we have accrued an estimated 
liability. Including interest, of $2,067. We intend to continue a vigorous and appropriate appeal of this judgment. 

Our vvhoily owned subsidiar)'. Lady Luck Gaming Corporalion and several jdint venture partners have been defendants in Ihe Greek 
Civil Courts and the Greek Administrative Courts in similar lawsuits brought by the country of Greece. The actions allege that Ihe 
defendants failed to make specified payments in connection with the gaining license bid process for Pairas, Greece. Although It is 
difficult to detennine the damages being sought from the lawsuils.'the actidri°may seek damages up to that aggregate amount plus 
interest from the date ofthe action. 

In the Civil Court lawsuit, the Civil Court of First Instance ruled in our favor and dismissed the lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed lo 
the Civil Appeal Court and. in 2003, the Court rejected the appeal. Greece then appealed to theClvil Supreme Gourt and; iri 2007, the 
Supreme Court ruled that the matter was nol properly before the Civil Courts and should be before the Administrative Court. 

In Ihe Administrative Court lawsuil, the Administrative Gourt of Firsl Instance rejected Ihe lawsuit stafing that it was not competent to 
hear the matter. Greece then appealed to the Administralive Appeal Court, which court rejected the appeal in 2003: Greece then 
appealed to the Supreme Administrative Court, which remanded the matter back to.lhe Administralive Appeal Court for a hearirig on 
the meriis. The re-hearing took place in 2006. and in 2008 the Administrative Appeal Court rejected Greece's appeal on procedural 
grounds. On December 22, 2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece appealed ihe ruling to the Supreme Administrative Gourt. A hearing 
has lentatively been scheduled for October 2012. 

The outcome ofihis matter is slill in doubt and carmot be predicted with any degree of certainty. We intend to continue a vigorous and 
appropriate defense to the claims asserted In Ihls maitcr. Through July 29:2012, we have accrued an estimated liability including 
Interest of $13,145. Ouraccrual is based upon management's esliriiate ofthe original claim'by.the plairitiffs for losl payments. We 
continue to accme interest on the asserted claim. "vVe are unable to estimate a total possible loss as information as to possible 
additional ciaims, ifany, have not been asserted or quantified by the plaintiffs at this time. 

Weare subject to ceriain federal, state and local environmental protection; health and safety laws, regulafions and ordinances that 
apply to businesses generally, and are subject to cleanup requirements ascertain of our facilities asa result thereof We have not made, 
and do not anticipate making maierial expenditures, nor do we anticipate incurring delays with respect to environmental remediation 
orprotection. However, In part because our present and future development sites haye,;in some ca.ses, been used as manufacturing 
facilities or other facilities that generate materials that are required to be reriiediated under environmental laws and regulations, there 
can be no guarantee thai addilional pre-existing conditions will not be discovered and we will not experience maierial liabilities or 
delays. 

We are subject to various contingencies and litigation matters and have a number of unresolved claims. Although ihe ultimate liability 
oflhese coniingencies. this litigaiion and these claims cannoi be delermlned at this time, vve believe they will not have a material 
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operatidns or cashrfidvvs. 
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALVSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report contains statements that we believe are, or may be considered to be, "forward-looking statements" within the 
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation f^eform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this 
report regarding the prospects ofour industry or qur prospects, plans, financial position onbusiness strategy, may constitute forward-
looking statements. In addition, forward-looking statements generally can be identified by tiie use of forward-looking words such as 
"may," "will," "expect," "Intend," "estimate," "foresee," "project;" "anticipate," "believe,-!' "plans," "forecasts." "continue".or "could" 
or the negatives of these terms or variations of them orsimilar terms. Furthermore, such forward-looking statements may be included 
in vanous fdings that we make with the SEC or press releases or oral statements made'by or vifith the approval of one ofour 
authorized executive officers. Although we beUeve that the expectations reflected in these forward-look ing statements are reasonable, 
we cannot assure you that these expectations will prove to be correct. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain known 
and unknown risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that could cause actual, results to differ materially from those reflected in 
these forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue, reliance on any forvvard-looking statements contained 
herein, which reflect management's opinions only as ofthe date hereof Except.as rcquired by law, vje undertake no obligation to 
revise or publicly release the results of any revision to any forward-looking statements. You are advised, however, Jo consult any 
additional disclosures we make in our reports to the SEC. AU subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to 
us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained in this reporl. 

For a more complete description ofthe risks that mav affect ourbusiness, see our Annual Report on Form 10-K forthe year 
ended Aprir29, 2012. 

Executive Overview 

We are a developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and related lodging and entertainment facilities In regional 
markets in the United States. Wc have intentionally sought geographic^diversity to limit,the risks caused by weather, regional 
economic difficulties and local gaming authorities and regulations: We currently operate casinos In Mississippi, Louisiana, 
Missouri, lowa, Colorado and Florida. We also operate a hamess racing track at our casino in Florida. 

Our operating results for the periods presented have been affected; bolh positively and negatively, by current econornjc condlfions and 
several other factors discussed in detail below. Our historical operafing results may not be indicative ofour future results ofoperalions 
because of these factors and the changing coriipetitive landscape iri each of our markets, as well as by factors discussed elsewhere 
herein. This Managemenl's Dlscussiori and Analysis of FinanclaKCoriditidri and Results of Operations should be read in conjuncfion 
with our Annual Report on Form 10-K forthe yearended April'29. 2012 and by giving consideration to the following: 

Items Impacting Income (Loss) from Continuing Operaf/on5:77 Significant items impacting our income (loss) from confinuing 
operations during the fiscal quarters ended July 29. 2012, and July 24, 2011 are as follows: 

Flooding—Due to fiooding along the Mississippi River, five ofour properties were closed for a portion ofour first quarter 
ended July 24, 2011. A summary ofthe clo.sure dates and subsequent reopening Is as follows; 



Da ye'ripbft̂ "̂  1 ovva ̂  
Caruthersville, Missouri 

^ 

Number Davs 
' Closed 

^^-Api-illf5?^20Ul^^^,4^MaVn^20ia.^-^^w--a:-,..,^<-.f,^.'rj^-'V^ 
Closing Dale Reopening Dale 

LuIa;^N1ississippii, • ' ' ^ f . - . l ^ . - . . ' 

May 1.2011 
!flayl3H2Ml^^ 

• !^ l iez ,^Miss i^[ t^ i 'T^^4- i .^- :^r 'y->^^^r :^^^ 
Vicksburg, Mississippi May 11. 2011 

May 13.2011 
ifJuri?3:>20TSI^^ 

12 
- ^ -!•• 

September 2. 2011 91(B) 
i^Juneil7;-'2014SiiLs^ 

May 27, 2011 
.^^r .^- ; :^ ' c i^: ••^41;'.^^: t.H 
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(A) Six days of closurc in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 and nine days of closure in the.fourth quarter of fiscai 2011. 
(B) The second casino barge reopened on September 2, 2011 after flood damage vvas remediated. 

Increased Competdion— From time to lime, new or expanded facilities by our competitors impact our results. For example, 
competition from a new casino in Kansas opened during February 2012 negatively impacted our Kansas City casino and 
expansion by a competitor in February 2012 has negatively impacted our Pompanocasino. 

Income Tax Provision(Benefit) — During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, we recorded a valuation allowance reducing our 
deferred tax assets as a result of evalualing Ihe expected riet realjzable value ofour deferred tax assets, including our nel 
operating loss carry forwards. The iinpact of reversirig approxiriiately $1.1 million of valuation allowance during the first 
quarter of fiscal 2013 has been to reduce our overall effeciive tax rate for continuing operations from 37.8% for the quarter 
ended July 24, 2011 to 21.7% for the quarterended July 29, 2012. 

Discontinued Operations 

Agreement to Sell BUoxi—During March 2012, we entered into a definitive agreemeni to sell our subsidiary, vvhich owns 
and operates our casino and hotel operations in Biloxi for $45 million subject to regulatory approval and other customary 
closing condiiions. We expect this transaction to close by the end of calendar 2012. 

Revenues and Operating Expenses 

Revenues and operating expenses for the three months ended July 29, 2012 and July 24, 2011 are as follows: 

Three Months Ended 

(in thousands) 
Jnly 29, 

20i2 
July 24, 

2011 Variance 
Percentage 
Variance 

RevemJes:T^^£^S^^^^-^^-^^ .^r# 'a- .^ .01i .^^^i^^^J^ . i !^^ 
Casino .$ ' 250.269 $ . -235:227"$ 15,042 6.4% 

Food beverage, pari-mutuel and other 32:806 29:627 3 179 10.7% 
FW'Cross>ev'^ues;rm?;3i"i3^»i"-iW.^/^' '-^L^j^^ 

Less promotional allovvances (55.882) (45.722) flOT60) 22.2% 
^ei^reveriOes^- '̂ •^• f^^ '^^ '^ '^^ 'W^^mi 1235:8235 •227i604t IM}9^ m i 

'(3pcmin'S:exomses:,'^Pt£,Tf':€-^^^^ 
35,971 2,525 7.0% Gasino 

rGainirigJiaxes JSfe .̂aei.tr:fev.% '̂̂ ^^IJ^Bgl 
38,496 

r6lT62S#^ 
.i;773 
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Casino —Casino revenues increased $15.0 million, or 6,4%. for the three months ended July 29. 2012.as compared to the same period 
In fiseal 2012. Casino revenues for our properties closed due to flooding In fiscaf2012 increased $13.5 million, or 31.8% forthetliree 
monlhs ended July 29. 2012. as comparcd lo ihe same period in fiscal 2012. In addition casino revenues increased S1.2 million at our 
Pompano property and $1.0 million at our Walerioo property. 

Casino operaiing expenses Increased $2.5 miillon, or 7.0%. forthe three months ended Juty 29, 2012, as compared to Ihe 
same period In the prior fiscal year. Due to fioodlng-related closures In Ihe prior year, casino operating expenses for our properties 
.closed in fiscal 2012 increased $1.9 million, or 27.9% forthe three months ended July 29. 2012. as compared to the same period in 
fiscal 2012. 

Gaming Taxes —Siaie and local gaming laxes increased $2.1 million, or 3,5%, forthe three months ended July 29, 2012, as coinpared 
to the same period in the prior fiscal year consistent with the increases in casind revenues. 

/?oom5—Rooms revenue and expense remained stable for the three months ended July 29, 2012, as compared to the same period In 
the prior fiscal year. 

Food, Beverage, Pari-Mutuel and Other ~ ? o o d . beverage, parl-mutucI and olher revenues Increased $3.2 million, or 10.7%, for ihe 
three months ended July 29. 2012. as compared to the same period in the priorfiscal year. Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other 
revenue for our properties closed due to fiooding In fiscal 2012 increased $2.0 million, or 45.4% forthe Ihree monihsended July 29, 
2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2012. 

Food, beverage, pari-muiuel and other expenses increased $0.2 million, or 1.5%, forthe three months ended July 29, 2012, as 
compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year. Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and pther.expense for our properties closed due to 
flooding in fiscal 2012 increased $0.2 million, or 20.9% for the thrce months ended July 29, 2012, as compared to the same period in 
fiscal 2012. 

Promotional Allowances —Promoiional allowances increased $10.2 million, or 22.2%, forthe three monlhs ended Juty 29, 2012, as 
compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year. Promotional allowances forourproperties closed due to fiooding increased $5.0 
million, or 50.0% forthe three months ended July 29, 2012, as compared loathe same period in fiscal 2012. During the first quarterof 
fiscal'2013, we implemented our new cuslomer loyalty program. Fan Club'®, at five ofour properties. As of July 29, 2012, Fan 
Club'® has been implemented at nine ofour properties, with roll-out to remaining,properties expected by the end ofthe fiscal year. Fan 
Club'® allows customers greater choice in how to use Iheir points for cash, free play or food. 

Maf-ine and Facilities — Marine and facilities expenses decreased $0.4 million, or 3.0%, forthe three months ended July 29, 2012 as 
compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year. Marine and faciiifies expense for our properties not closed due to flooding 
decreased $1.1 million, or 10.0% forthe three monihsended July 29, 2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2012 primarily 
refiecting cosl savings from operating one vessel in Lake Charies and decreased spending for repairs and maintenance. 

Marketing and Administrative — Marketing and administrative expenses increased Sl.O million, or 1.8%, for the three months ended 
July 29, 2012 as compared to the same period In thepriorfiscal year. Markeiing and administrative expenses for our properties not 
closed due to flooding increased Sl.6 million, or 3.2% forthe Ihree months erided July 29, 2012, as compared to the same period in 
fiscal 2011 reflecting increased marketing expendilures designed to increase niarket share and customer trials. 

Corporate and Development — Duringihe three monlhs ended July 29, 2012. our corporate and development expenses were $8.5 
million compared to $12.3 miliion for ihe three months ended July 24, 2011. The decrease is primarily the result of decreased 
incentive compensation of SLS million and decreased ln.surance costs of $0.8:mlllion cdmpared to the same period of fiscal 2012. 

. 2 3 



Depreciation and Amortization —Deprecialion and amortization expense for the Ihree monihsended July 29. 2012 decreased S2.4 
million, as compared lo the same period in the prior fiscal year, primarily due lo certain assets becoming fully depreciated. 

Other Income (Expense) and Income Taxes 

Interest expense, interesi Income, derivative expense and income tax (provision) benefit forthe three monlhs ended July 29. 2012 and 
Julv 24, 2011 arc as follows: 

Three Monlhs Ended 

(in thousands) 
July 29, 

2012 
July 24, 

2011 Variance 
Percenlage 
Variance 

\niyesi'expinse%.-^'^^}^Af.m^^^ 
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Interest Expense — Inlere.st expense decreased $1.4 million for the three monihsended July 29, 2012, as compared to the same period 
in the prior fiscal year. This decrease primarily refiecis the capitalization of Interest associated with the consiruction ofour new Gape 
Girardeau casino. 

Liquidity and Capitiil Resources 

Cash Flows front Operating AcUvities - During the three monihsended July 29, 2012, we generated $40.1 million incash fiows from 
operating activities compared to generating $22.5 million during the three monlhs ended Jiily 24, -2011. The year over year increa.se in 
cash flows from operating activities is primarily the result of increased cash flows froni operafioris as five ofour properties were 
closed for a portion oflhe fiscal 2012 first quarter due to fiooding. Additionally, during fiscal.2013 wc collected insurance 
receivables of $7.4 million related to fiooding during Ihe first quarter of fiscal 2012. 

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities - During the three monlhs ended July 29, 2012, we used $43.5 million for investing activities 
compared to using $15.1 million during the three monihsended July 24, 2011. Significant Investing activities forthe threemonths 
ended July 29, 2012 included capita! expenditures of $43,0 milllori. of which $27.7 million related to Cape Girardeau! Significant 
Investing activities for the three months ended July 24, 2011 included capital expenditures of $14.6 million, ofwhich $4.1 million 
related to Gape Girardeau and Nemacolin. 

Cash Flows used in Financing AcUvities — During the three months ended July 29, 2012, our net cash flows used in financing 
actlvities.were used primarily to repay our outstanding long-tenn debt bf $1.5 milhon. During the three months ended July 24, 2011, 
our net cash fiows used in financing activities were used primarily lo rcpay our outstanding long-term debt of $14.4 million. 

Availability of Cash and Additional Capital - At July 29, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of $89.4 million and marketable 
securilicsof $24.6 million. As of July 29, 2012. vve had nd outstanding borrovvings urider our revolving credit and'S493.8 million in 
term loans outstanding urider the seniorsecured credit facility. Our line of credii avallabilltyat July 29, 2012 was approximately $277 
million as limited by our leverage ratio. . " 

On August 7. 2012, wc completed the Issuance and sale of $350 millioii'df 8:875% Senior.Subordlnated Notes due 2020 (the "New 
Subordinated Notes") in a private offering. We received net proceeds of $343:000:for,ihis Issuance after deducfing underwriting 
discounts. Through Augusi 22, 2012, we have repurchased and retired $338.2:mili[on of our$357.3 million, 7% Subordinated Notes 
with proceedsTrom the issuance ofthe New Subordinated Notes; Weiritend'to use the remaining net proceeds from the issuance ofthe 
Nevv Subordinated Notes, together with cash on hand or bdrrpwingsiunder ourCredit Facility, to redeem the remainder ofour 
outstanding 7% Subordinaied Notes on or before September 7, 2012. 
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Following completion ofthe issuance ofour Nevv Subordinated Notes and the retirement ofthe 7% Subordinated Notes, the maturities 
ofour Credit Facility are excnded to March 25. 2016 and March 25, 2017 for.the revolving line ofcredit and lenn loans, respectively. 
based on the terms ofthe Credit Facility indenture. 

As a result ofthe above Iransactions. we expeci lo incur additional expense,relaled to the write-off of deferred financing costs, 
issuance costs and other relaled fees of approximately $3.0 million. Including $1.0 million in non-cash charges, during the second 
quarter of fiscal 2013. 

Capital Expenditures and Development AcUvities—As part of our business development activities, historically we have entered into 
agreemenis which have resulled in ihe acquisilion or development of businesses or assets, These business development efforts and 
related agreemenis typically require Ihe expenditure of cash, which may be significant. The amount and timing of ourcash 
expendilures relating to developmeni acfiviiies may vary based upon ourevaluallon of curreni and future developmeni opportunities. 
our financial condilion and the condilion of Ihe financing markets. Our development aclivities are subject to a variety of factors 
including but not limited to: obtaining permits, licenses and approvals from appropriate regulatory and other agencies, legislative 
changes and, in certain circumsiances. negotiating acceptable leases. 

Construciion confinues to proceed on our lsle Gasino Cape Girardeau development. We anticipate opening by November 1, 2012, 
subject to regulatory approvals. We currently estimate the cost ofthe project at approximately $135 million and have incurred capital 
expenditures of $76.4 million, including capitalized Inierest, througli July 29, 2012. We expect to incur the hiajorily ofthe remaining 
capital expenditures for our Gape Girardeau casino on or before December 31, 2012. 

On August 20, 2012, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court affirmed the decision ofthe Pennsylvania Gaming Conlrol Board to award a 
Category 3 resort gaming license lo Ihe Nemacolin Woodlands;Resort In Farmington,,Pennsylvania. We have a development and 
management agreemeni with Nemacolin to build and operate a,casino. We are currently finalizing our constmction plans and 
preparing to receive formal bids for Ihe construction ofthe facility, while vve work with the Pennsylvania Gaming Coritrol Board 
through the rcmainder of Ihe licensing process. We currenlly estimate the cosl of the project to be at least $50 million arid construction 
Is expected to take approximately nine to iwelve months once we begin, 'fo date, we have Incurredcapllal expenditures, including 
capilalized interest, of$i.2 million. 

Historically, vve have made significant investments in property and equipmenl and expeci Ihat qur operations will continue to demand 
ongoing Investments to keep our properties competitive. During the three months ended July 29, 2012, vve have incun'ed capital 
expenditures at our existing,properties of$l 1 million. Forthe balance ofthe current fiscal year, we estimate additional capital 
expenditures'at our existing properties lo be approximately $40 million excluding our Cape Girardeau development. Currently in 
process are several capital projects primarily focused on refreshing our hotel rqom'lnventory as well as additional Improvements to 
our Black Hawk and Lake Charies properties.' and rebranding our of Vicksburg property to a Lady Luck. Additionally we expeci to 
make several other Improvements to our properties including additional Farmers Pick buffets and other food and beverage outlets as 
vvell as ongoing mainlenance capital. The tiriiing, completion and ainount of addilional capital projects will be subjecl to improvement 
of economic and local market conditions, cash fiows frorii our continuing operations and borrowing availability under our Credit 
Facility. 

Typically, we have funded our daily operations through net cash provided by operating activities and our significant capilal 
expenditures through operating cash fiow and debt financing. While we believe that cash on hand, cash flow from operations, and 
availabJe borrowings under our Credii Facility will be sufficient to support our working capital needs, planned capital expendimres 
and debt service requiremenis for the foreseeable fuiure, there is no assurance that these sources will in fact provide adequate funding 
for our planned and necessary expenditures or that the level ofour capilal investments will be sufficient to allow us to remain 
competitive in our existing markets. 

We are highly leveraged and may be unable to obiain additional debt or equity financing on acceptable lerms if ourcurrenl sources of 
liquidity are not sufficieni or if we fail to stay in compliance with the covenants ofour senidr secured credit facility. We will continue 
to evaluate our planned capital expenditures at each ofour existing locations in light ofthe operating performance ofthe facilities at 
such locations. 
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Critical Accounting Estimates 

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared In accordance wilh US", generally accepied accouniing principles that require our 
management lo make estimales and assumptions that affect reported amoiints and related.disclosures. Management identifies critical 
accounling estimates as: 

• those that require Ihe use of assumptions about matters that are inherently and highly uncertain at the time the estimates are 
made; 

• Ihose estimates where, had vve chosen different estimates or assumpiions, Ihe resulting differences would have had a 
material impaci on our financial condition, changes in financialcbritlltiori or results of operalions: and 

• those estimales ihal, if they were to change from period Id period, likely would result In a material Impact on our financial 
condition, changes in financial condition or resulis ofoperalions; 

For a discussion ofour significant accouniing policies and estimates,- pleaserefer to Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalenients pi"esented in our 2012 Annual Report 
on Form 10-K. There vvere no newly identified significant accounting estimates'In'the firstquarter df fiscal year 2013, nor vvere there 
any material changes to the critical accounting policies and estlmates'set forth In our 2012 Annual Report. 

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices,, including interest rates, commodity prices and 
equity prices. Our primary exposure to market risk is interesi raterisk associated with our lsle ofCapri Casinos. Inc. seniorsecured 
credit facility ("Credit Facility"). 

We have eniered into interest rate swap and cap arrangements wiihaggregateriotional value of $150.0 million as of July 29, 2012. The 
swap agreement effectively converts portions ofthe Credit Facfiity variable debt;tb a fixed-rate basis until the swap agreement 
terminates, which occurs during fiscal years 2014. • ' ' 

Subsequent to our fiscal quarterended July 29. 2012, we issued $350.0 million of 8;875% Subordinated Notes and began a process to 
redeem and tender our $357.3 millidn 7% Subordinated Notes. When completed, these transactions will increase our fixed interest 
rate on $350 million ofour outstanding debt by 1.875%. " • 

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES . • _\ -

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and iShief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of 
our disclosure controls'and procedures (as such tennis defined in Ruies']3a-15(e) andU5d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934) as of July 29, 2012. Based on this evaliiatlon, our Chief Execuiive Offi cer. arid (thief Financial Officer have concluded that, as 
of July 29. 2012, ourdisclosure conti-dls and procedures were effectjyejri recording, processing,'summarizing and reporting, on a 
timely basis, information required to be disclosed by us in the repbiiswe.file or subriilt underthe Exchange Act of 1934 and such 
Infonnation is accumulated and communicated to management as^appropriate to~ âllow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 
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CHANGES IN INTERNAL GONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

There have been no changes in our iniemal controls over financiai reporting during the fiscal quarter ended July 29. 2012. that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal controls over financial reporting. 

PART 11—OTHER INFORMATION 
ITEM I. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

A reference Is made to the information contained In Footnote 12 ofour unaudiled condensed consolidated financial statements 
included herein, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

We are not aware ofany material changes to the disclosure regarding risk factors presented In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
thefiscal year ended April 29,2012. 

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITV SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 

We have purchased our common stock under slock repurchase programs. These programs allow for Ihe repurchase of up to 6.000,000 
'shares. To date, we have purchased 4,895,792 shares ofour common stock under these programs. These programs have no approved 
dollar ainount, nor expiration dates. No purchases were made during the three months endedJuly 29, 2012. 

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 

None. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE 

Not Applicable 

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 

See the Index lo Exhibits following the signature page hereto fora list ofthe exhibits filed pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation S-K. 
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SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the requiremenis ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on Its 
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

Dated: Augu.sl 31, 2012 Isl DALE R . : B L A G K 
Dale R. Black 
Chief Finaiicial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Aulhorized Officer) 
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E.XHIBIT 
NUMBEH DESCRIPTION 

31.1 Certificafion of Chief Execuiive Officer pursuant.to Rule 13a—r4(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial OlTicer pursuant to Rule 13a— 1̂4(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. 

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuanl to 18 U.S.C^ Section 1350. 

101 The following financial statements and notes from the lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Quarterly Report on Fonn 10-Q 
forlhequarterendedJuly 29, 2012, filed on August 31, 2012, fonnalted in XBRL: (I) Consolidated Balance 
Sheeis; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations; (ill) Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income; 
(iv) Con.solidaied Statements of Stockholders' Equity; (v) Consolidaled Siatements of Cash Flows; and (vi) Notes 
to Consolidated Financiai Statements, tagged as blocks of text. 
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EXHIBIT 31.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-l4(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

1. Virginia M. McDowell. Chief Executive Officerof Isle of Capri Ca.sinos. Inc.. certify that; 

1.1 have reviewed this quarterly report on Fonn 10-Q of Isle ofCapri Gasinos, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, ihis report does not conlain any untrtie slatement ofa material fact or omit to slate a material fact 
necessary to make the siatements made in light ofthe circumsiances under which such statements were made, not misleading wilh 
respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial .statements, and other financial informafion included in this report, fairiy present in all 
material respecls the financial condition, results ofoperalions and cash fiows ofthe registrant as of and for, the periods presenled In 
this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying ofllcer and I are rcsponsible for establishing and maintaining.disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control overfinancial reporting (as defined In ExchangeAct 
Rules I3a-15(f)and 15d-15(0) fortheregistraniandhave: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to.ensure that maierial infonnation relating to the registrant, including its consolidaled subsidiaries, is made known lo us 
by others within those eniilies, particularly during Ihe period in which this rcport is being prepared: 

(b) Designed such Internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness ofthe registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofthe end ofthe period covercd by this report based on such evaluation; 
and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change In the registrant's intemal conlrol over financial reporting that occurred during the regLstrant's 
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or Is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's intemal control over 
financiai reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial 
reporiing, to Ihe regisirarifs auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal conlrol over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, suminarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, vvhether or not maierial, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrani's 
intemal control over financial reporting. 

Date: August 31, 2012 Is/ Virginia M. McDoweU 
Virginia M. McDowell 

Chief Executive Officer 
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EXI11BIT31.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE I3a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

1. Dale R. Black. GhiefFlnancial Officerof lsle of Capri Casliio.s. Inc.. certifythal: 

1.1 have reviewed this quarterly report on Fonn 10-Q of lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.: 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue slalemeril of a material fact or omit to slate a material fact 
necessary to make ihe siatemenis made in lighl of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with 
respeci to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financiai siatemenis. and other financial information^included in this report, fairly present in all 
material respecls the financial condition, resulis of operations and cash fiows of the registrant as of and for, the periods presented in 
this report; • • 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing andiinalntaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15dTl5(f)) forthe registrant and have: . , 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused siich disclosure controls arid procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material informafion relating to the registrant," Iricluding Its consolidated subsidiaries, Is made known to us 
by others within those entitles, particulariy during the period in vvhich this report Is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal conlrol over financiai reporting, or caused such intemal conlrolover financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepied accountirig principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls aridiprocedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness oflhe disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; 
and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change In the regisirant's intemal conlrol over financial reporting that occurred during the regisirant's 
most receni fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is rcasoriably likely to materially affect, the registrant's intemal control over 
financial reporting; and - ^"• 

5. The registrant's othercertifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of inlemai control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and ihe audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions); '̂  

(a) All significant deficiencies and maierial weaknesses in the design or operaiion of intemal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affecl the registrant's ability to record, process,summarize and report financial infonnation; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, ihat Involves managemeni or other employees who have a significant role In the registrant's 
Intemal control over financial reporiing. 

Date: August 31,2012 Isl Dale R. Black 
DaleR.Black; 
GhiefFlnancial OfTicer 



EXHIB1T32.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT 10 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

In comiection with the Quarterly Report of Isle ofCapri Gasinos, Inc. (Ihe "Company") on Form 10-Q forthe period ended July 29. 
2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Ihe dale hereof (the "Quarteriy Report"), l, Virginia M. McDowell. 
Chief Execufive Officer oflhe Company, certify, pursuanl to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that: 

(1) The Quarterly Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; 
and 

(2) The Informalion coniained In Ihe Quarterly Report fairiy presenls, in all material respecls. the financial condilion and results 
ofoperalions ofthe Company. 

Dale: August 31,2012 /.s/Virginia M. McDowell 
Vlrglnia'M. McDowell 
Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.2 

^ CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.G. SECTION 1350 

in connection vvith the Quarterly Report of lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the "Company") on Fonn 10-Q for the period ended July 29, 
2012 as filed with the Securides and Exchange Conimission on Ihc datehereof (the "Quarterly Report"), I. Dale R. Black. Chief 
Financial Officerof the Company, certify, pursuant to IS U.S.C. Section 1350. that: 

(1) The Quarteriy Report fully compiles vvilh the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; 
and 

(2) The informalion contained in ihe Quarteriy Report fairly presents. In all material respecls. the financiai condition and results 
ofoperalions ofthe Company. 

Dale: Augusi 31. 2012 /s/DaleR: Black _ _ _ ^ _ ^ _ ^ ^ 

} 

DaleR, Black 
Chief FiriancialOfficer 
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ISLE OK CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLl DA lEUBALAiNCE SHEETS 

( I n t h o u s a n d s , e.xcept sha re i i nd pe r .share a m o u n t s ) 

Ociober 2S. 
2012 

Apri l 29. 
2012 

(uDuuiIiiecl) 

^ES^I^IMMMM W'-I"- ^•'-'- ^ •••' •^^tvssffs-^,^^!"^^^" K « ^ ' ^ , 

Current a'sseis: 
%:£im¥?%^^'JS^S^''i 'i:>^5l479^}S-'^^^-94-:46n 

24,277 24,943 
^yj;Casti'ahd^casli:ei:iuiv'alenl5"£Hi''-#''^--^ ^ " ^ - ^ ' ^ S A ^ ^ ' ^ ^ ^ ' 

Marketable securities 
i ^ - j s u 

'̂Accounts receivabie.-''nef:f.S-^w^-j^-^. •':;;^-.jg.-ai-tj-yy»^^gg;^^'!y^^ 
insurance receivable 

M T m ^ ^ h ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M.S.007..> ^^W^^6:94 H 
7.497 

l^_jIncoine,laxes rcceivable^-g^j" •K-rhr:;a^''^'^.a^pj?^..fe^g ^li^J-^^:?J^Vi^-:l4^723i.t;^W>a:^^2M6lH 
Deferrcd income ia.\es 615 627 

Assets held for sale 
^#^. iT6ial : 'c^ '^Hl 'assets 'M^#i:^^^^#f '^-f 

45,557 46.703 
i S ' ^ ^ ^ - ^ t | 8 7 : 2 0 S g ; ^ : . t ? ^ - ^ 2 Q 2 i 2 S 3 V l 

Property and equipment, net 
Othenas^tF ' - ;W^;-^^-^f^- . . -^^ 

1,009,406 950,014 
s :— 

Goodwill 
l'Olhe-r;imaii^ible.ifeei.!i.<nelV-.mJferg^;.^^^fei^;i^^M'-l^ 

330.903 330.903 
'..^.•..••^-'^.'^'."^^^:m^mi.mu6m'6i:'-^,;:j'^.''s^m6i5S6?: 

Deferred financing costs, net 18,246 13.205 

7,469 9,428 
•̂̂ Re~stricted 'cash'and 'iii vestmenisF^si'^-^S^j 

Prepaid deposits and other 

feli Woaî ig îsf . f ^^ f t r€^^ r^^> i fem^^^ i^Wl^t^^1Sff^-.]^;627^315fl$:I^m7^;970-

T^KKW'^TrTVTT: 
urrenf liabilities: J 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EOUITV 

Current mamrilies of long-tenn debt 
Kii:yACMdnisplv'ablS-$^^M^-^<i^'1 

5.406 S 5,393 

Acemed liabilities: 
M M ^ c P S v ^ ^ d ' ^ ^ X ^ ^ ^ - ^ ^ ^ m ^ m ^ m 

25,168 19.522 Property and other taxes 

^ , l i 5 i g ^ ^ . ^ ^ A ^ > 4 ^ i ; t ^ i ^ ^ : t ^ ^ '-;^^?ff f-f S^l 4- .099k^^-^^:^9:2 96^ 
Progressive jackpots and slot ctub awards 15,136 14,892 

^::g.@-g^.m^^M8:04la-'C^:WH^a!^4^362'j 
40,777 40.549 

^m'J:Li3bilitigslel3iedri'o'3.ssetsHcidif6r'^Ie^f^^^ 
Other 

Long-term debl, less current maturities 

Deferred incoiiie laxcs^f^ -^ 

fWfMwmms'wm'^:'^m^s.^imi952¥._K'tm'm56m6i 
-1.177.065 1.149.038 

^ ^ ^ ! ^ f ^ ^ : ^ : S : - ^ ^ F ; ^ ^ ^ > a - 3 5 i 8 0 4 3 ' ; ^ ' ^ ! ^ ^ 3 6 : 0 5 7 ' i 
32.162 33.583 Other accrued liabilities 

Stockholders' equity: 
^'^PrefeiTrd'5t6ck.'S!Ql'i)'ai?'aiu^;2!QpQiQ00 slfares^^^ 

Commonslock, S.Ol par value: 60,000.000 shares authorized; sharcs issued: 42,066,148 at October 28, 
2012 and 42 066,148 at April 29. 2012 | 421 421 

^gGIaS''B:coiiimolstock.-SiQifp^>rvai5t^3ip00;Q0QlhaTes-au^ 
Additional paid-in capital ' 244.656 247,855 

K--'S^^"S,.E..a-?S;f'•-i(26:650)i^^#.alf26;658)1 
_ (544) (855) 

#^^^:'J^tt#tmil'2i'7;S83^>a.:-v:^'220;7.63i 

tet'ainffdcaniin gs (deficit)'^ 
Accumulated otHcr comprehensive (loss) inconic 

Treasury slock. 2,577.155 shares at October 28. 2012 and 3.p83.8CTj£April 29 2^ (31,040) (37 143) 

• 7;i:mm!m^^^i^^^w^fmm^tm^WW^r^i s6:843tŜ t:¥;̂ ,ii s3!62oi 
S 1,627.315 S 1,574.970 

tj^jTotal^Siockholders ^ equiiv3l-^i'g^- ' ^ ^ " ^ ^ 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 

See notes to ihe consolidaled financial statements. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASLNOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OFEIMTIONS 

(In thousands, except .share und per share amounts) 
(Unaudiletl) 

'rhr^e Monlhs landed SU .Xlonihs tnded 



October 28, Octnbcr 23. Ociober 2». 
^ ^ ^ Z0I2 loii JIII2 

Octohf r 2.1. 
2011 

3 
Casino 5 234;648 $, 239,707 S 484.917 S 474.934 

Food, beveraae. pari-mutuel and other 30,437 30.723 63,243 60.350 
, lasurance recovenes^. •*^4;,'̂ f '̂V.';?.."i,SriffiX-;>^^Lyg '̂,.̂  '...f>->r'\ J i i^i.Bf.-:^.::.i^ti^..:s-^L:'-' i^ .-.- .£-.^i.i I'J 

Gross revenues ^ 273,413 278.960 ^ ^ ^ - " ^ . _ ^.^^\^^^ . 
ft,.:^l^:^T-esspromoiional.allowaces^-^^^^ 

Net revenues 223,207 231,426 459.030 459.030 
O p e n i l n i g e x p c 7 g « ? - ' < ^ - € ; ! ^ f " ^ ^ i l ^ ^ ^ T ^ ^ Ml^'^W^: IM. ^̂ .̂ ^^&i^-^Mi&^^^x.dwm^^rm^;^ 

Casino 36.802- 38,172. 
~rn 

75,298 74.143 
.n.r-'rsf . ^ ^ 5 9 : 4 3 5 ^ ^ U ^ : ^ 1 2 0 : 2 4 7 J - U . ^ ^ 1 U 81952^ 

1.929 . 3,554 3.848 
f, Gammt; taxes', ^'^^^^•gj. a . -^yp.^" '^- -^ ..^i^ag^^^f X;ig:^»i 

Rooms. 1,781 
m ^ 9 n i m m m ^ m ^ v 5 9 Q ; ^ - m ^ : \ 9 : 3 2 K : ^ M & ; ; ^ m 4 3 ; ? l 

13.888 * 14,933 . 27,588 29,059 
|i-;FQo'cl!*bCT?rag"c;l]an:riftriuclf̂ ^̂  

Marine and facilities 
g56^64a^^^58f594^^^?rK':£:i-B;420a:^:-.^^jiir5:5^ig 

10,777 9,327 19.250 21,593 
^|Mrrk'etitmVd*3dininist?aliv?;^-^^t^Wr^m^^4^^^! 

Corporate and devetopmenl 
^PJeQ-penirig-expase-^-r^-^^-.-'^^l^^ym^^aT^^-^W^^^g 

EJcprccialion arid amortization 
m'm&nw>m^tx^\34\s^^^ ^^m^^ 

E.^Toial.Qperaiing ext>enses ^ r ^ ' J ^ ^ S ^ r 
16,850 .I9;646 , 38,822 

I207i052^ 
33.672 

^2Tl!653^g.-:>IU4r6^'69.lS-^^Ma21^564S 
Operating income 

Ui^^c^r^^^^^MM^. . ^^^m^M^^m 
16 155- . - -t9.773 , . "^^'^^^ _.. , J'^-'^^^-. 

.^.^.•--^^l^Wff2P:985V^^;m%JiU21^87.7,)'jr..^^^.:f42.4l6)^.^r:%-fflf43,702)i 
Interest income, 

^ D ^ ^ : ^ i i W i i i ^ ^ ^ : r g ^ n ^ ) ^ g ^ ^ k ^ > ^ . i : > ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 
131 .192 306 435 

E^m^^^&3w^:M^i0^u2m il^f le^l §?fHii&^' 

Incoine (16^) fr5in-comifiuing'opa^tioi\1befo'^:'income'tHgs^,^:M:-m^ 
Income lax (provision) bcDCfit 

• IiiconTeX105s)'from contimiing.Qpa''aliotisr 
Incoiiie from di.scontinued operalions. net of income taxes 

, NeFincome(ioss)W#X&-^l^:#^W^ 

1,182' 622' (!36) 2.183 
•̂ Erf4:-34 i ^ ^ - ^ T P ^ t ' m o W . ' ^ w i w m f w ^ M - ^ m m i 5 S9)1 

(2.312) 1^ (427) (395) (191) 
.'^il!ls§y£^(6T653)l$^^-5&:;g(i:457-i^s;^avt.^:i:::8g$gj^mi->j'(3:-78oj1 

•,"".J«!H5J,'„ » J . i I L . - i , -L. IKl^J.^ - U ^ , , J".'.".' '.(.'•.-I , ,LLl ,V' -"J j i l*!! ! V 

IncoiTJe (loss) per:CQmmon sharcibasicand dilutive: jHggs'W^ 
Income (loss) froni continuing operations 

|\i;lncome trom discontinued.operationsn'et of iiicomeUaxe-'i^-
Net income (loss) 

^ ^ ^ E ^ M ^ ^ ^ M ^ M E S M ^ ^ ^ ^ m 

^ ^ M ^ M M S E ^ ^ S S M ^ ^ 

(0.11) •$ 
(0.06)111^1 
(0.17) $ 

(0.03) S O.OI S (0.09) 

(0.04) :S — S (0.10) 

m^smmm.^ .^^^ :m^kM:^mA m 
Weighted average basic shares 
^i^fih\^d'a1.-rrlErdili;ttdshTes'^e%^l^-^-JE%^ife^¥ 

39.336.134 38 753.049 39 177,208 38 515.099 
;^f39;336.M34^^g»#^i38:-753:049.^-'g,^39M92.075^/v:.B8?5r5!099.^ 

See notes lo the consolidaled financial statements. 

ISLE OF CAPRI GASINOS, INC 
CONSOLIDATED STATEM FJMTS OF COMPREHENSIVEINCOME (LOSS) 

(In thousands,'e.\cept share amounts) 
(Unaiiilitcd) 

Tlirrc Monlhi Kiidrd Six .Momhi Endrcl 

Nct-in£oiiig ( l o s s T ^ : ^ . ^ ^ • m : ^ i ^ ' S ; i ^ ^ ^ s k 

OcKibcr 2K. October 23, Ociobcr 28. October 2,1, 
2012 ;̂  2011 2012 2011 

!653)ls^^n;457.K^S%:^u:ig^8F;-$i3^^f3!780^ 

Unrealized gain on inierest rale cap contracts, net of income ia.x provision of SO and' 
SS for the three and six months ended Ociober 28. 2012. respectively, and S20 
andS23 for the three and six months ended Ociober 23. 2011. respectively 

.Utner^comprehens ivc, ineome^^ i gp".,y-^^^"-^ 
^ 34 14 39 

Comprehensive income (loss) $ (6.504) S (1,005) S 319 $ (2.905) 

Sec notes to the consolidated financial statements. 



ISLE OK CAPRI CASINOS. INC. 
CO.NSOLIDA'I ED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITV 

(In thousands, except .share amounts) 
(Unuiidiled) 

Accum. 
Olher 

Shares of Addilional Relainnl Comprehensive Totul 
Cemmnn Cnmmon Paid-in Eaniinc^ lacomc Treasury Smckhnlders" 

Stock Slock Capiul iDeru'lil (Lois) Slock Equit)' 

Bajance:^^pnL29.^20f2E1^-:^l/^}t2:066.n'48l^5ll^^ 
Net income 

Issuance of restricted stock from 
treasurv stock 

' iM'juu'w-.'i •̂•-,•̂ iJ'.a•sv~•fi'Kfl'̂ iBSi•̂ SJ::sJ:l̂ fi::,,Sli.'̂ î̂ iSi-\̂ •7A.. h Stock.compensaiion,e.xpensep^g£rg^.^j^'j.^^^^e 
Balance, Ociobcr 28, 2012 

(6,103) 
^"2:9041 

— — 6.103 

42.066.148 S 421 S 244.656 S (26.650) $ (544) $ (31,040) $ 186,843 

See notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In thou.sands) 
(Unaudited) 

Six .Months leaded 

Octnlicr 211. 
2012 

October 23, 
2011 

•o^JgTating'^tiV-iOrs-^^^-^^i^^S^-^J^^''^ mm^M^is^m£^^^;^^^^mm;^^^'-mM 
Net income (loss) (3.780) 
Adjustinenislo.recQnciienet iiicoine(loss)^to nei; cash.proviuedby.operatmji'aclivities:.!g'af^g%"'#T^^T;y---^ 

Deprecialion and amortization 
g?^Am6niatioW:6fdgfelTed'fiiranciiirco'sism?r^'m^^g^ 

33.672 43.334 

Aiiionization of debt discount 
^ D g j ^ d i i i ; ^ ^ ^ 6 s l r ^ ^ # A # - | k ^ l ^ € ' ^ . 

^ ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ ^ - ' ^ L g # r ^ g > t ^ ^ T O r 3 6 9 ^ i ^ r £ ^ ^ ^ ; ' a ; 9 0 9 : i 
102 lUb 

^ ^ ^ ^ 4 2 7 ) F ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ 2 l 5 0 5 ) l 
4,439 Stock compensation expense 

ffS^ludtion'^allbwan6c-y-^r^-i^.l#'^1^ 
2.904 

(310) (29) Gain dn derivative instniments 
^^(G3in)^loss.6iKdis'posal;Qfa1s'e\s^jS';^^?^ ^j&,^£:^m.^yri^^ ^ . ^ ^ i m - M M ^ ' i m ^ f m 
Changes in operating asseis and liabilities: 
1- .vSalcs (purchases).oi.tradint!seeuntiesi§ii^-?;.^{j .-^vj,.,j,._ î i ).'.u,^ii'^T-!-i,^'->-'yva,''imi V";J ' " - -^5 ' "JT '»^T\ '1 ^:^^rl'^i:.5:.!^.,^..^-%'6.66n..:L.\-^iS.^fe^l4;933)] 

Accounts receivable 

Income tax receivable. 

(L131) 1,329 

(2.562) 541 

19.047 1,153 
F3 Prepaid exjitmses''and;othci^iasset.s^:^^ 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

r«*. Net cash provided by,QperatinK activilies *̂ ir-lg*-ffl ^£l&avm.^;a5.6?526..^'^£E^^O33;409g 

I 'riv tol i iTgrgc tiviti la: •' .""S.-=tg nĝ ^ gi-^"gi:^#t§ 
t^irctiasc ofproperty and equipnient 
Purchase .of-intanfiiole. asset \^^ '^•!S^^^^¥i^"^^^^•^:;^„^, 

^mMmmmmi hi^^m^Mm^^^MmmMmi^M 
(89,519) (34,326). 

^.^^v»egj^^%.-^^f£f^:.f.^^^.^f5.ooQ)..^.jj^>^L-.ri&.-r^,i 
(M2) 107 

^m^^sjs^m^:^^^^»mt9^m\m;in.^^am\9)\ 
Restncted cash and investments 
Net cash used-nrinyestincactiviiies^^^^'#^'iffj.'*'jt'*pj^^^i%^§ 

Financing activMies:i^''K?rTr4^^'W^Sy>ti^:j T,^^m^m^^.)^'m^&,^:^^-wm 
Principal payments on debt 
Net IwiTOwii '̂(repayme"i]ts)^oii •liiie of c reUi iy i ' ^^T^J 

(10,067) (2,780) 

Paymeni of deferred fitiancing costs 
^mimi^:^^mmM'^£S3. ^imij^i:^x^^&A^tsm 

; i \ . ^ " "?w«r 
(8.410) (394) 

IM^MM':M'.::^^-^mMM^<£-:i't:^^ Procetfdsil'roJii'cxercisc'of stock'̂ 'optionsJJ'i'̂ '̂ A^ 
Nel cash provided by (used in) financing activities 19.523 (8,161) 



Nel decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1S.9S2) _ (8.971) 
Gash^and-^ash^cquivalenisl'begiiiniiigofpeno-d;.?^^^^^ 
Cash and cash equivalenls, end of the period S 75.479 S 66.207 

Sec notes lo the consolidated financial siatements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS. INC. 
Notes Io Consolidated Financial Statements 

(amounls in thousands, e.vcept share and per share amounts) 
(Utiaiidited) 

1. Nature of Operations 

Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in February 1990. Except where otherwise noted, the words '^ve," "us," "our" and 
similar temis,-as well as "Company," refer to IsleofCapri Casinos, Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. We area developer, owner and operator of branded gaming 
facilities arid'relalcd lodging and enienainmeni facilities in markets ihroughoul the Uniled Slates. Our wholly owned subsidiaries own and operate founeen 
casino'gamiiig facilities in the United States located in Black Hawk, Colorado; Lake Charles. Loiiisiana; Ij,ila, Natchez and Vicksbiirg. Mississippi; 
Kansas Ciiy.Boonville and Carulhersville, Missouri; Beilendorf. Davenpon, Marquette andi.Watcrioo. Iowa; and Pompano Beach, Florida, Subsequent to 
the end of the quaner, we 0[>ened our new gaming facility in Cape Girardeau, Mis.souri, on October30, 2012 and completed the saleof our Biloxi. Mississippi 
casino on Novemt>cr 29. 2012. 

2. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying conden.'ied coiLsolidated fmancial slalements have been prepared in accordance with the mles and regulations ofthe Securities and 
Exchange Commission ("SEC") and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica for tnicrim financial 
reporting. Accordingly, certain infonnation and note disclosures nonnally included in financial siatements prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United Siatcs have been condensed or omilled. In managcmmts' opinion, the accompanying interim condensed consolidated financial 
siatements include all adjusmienis, eonsisiing of nonnal recurring adjustments, necessary, for a fair statement ofthe results presented. The accompanying 
interim condensed consolidated fmancial .staiemenis have been prepared without audit. The results for inlerini periods are not nece.s,sarily indicative of rc.sulis 
tliai may be expected for any other inlerim period or for the ftill year These condensed consolidated financial .slalements should t)e read in conjunction wilh the 
coiLSolidaied financial statements and nolcs ihcrelo included in our Annual Reporl on Fonn 10-K î or the year ended April 29. 2012 as filed wilh the SEC and 
all ofour Olher filings, including Cunenl Repons on Fomi 8-K. filed wilh the SEC after such date and through the date ofthis report, which are available on 
the SEC's website at ^ '̂v,̂ •̂.sec.gov OY our website at wv.-w.islccorp.com. 

Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April. Periodically, this system necessitates a 53-week year. Fiseal 2013 isa 52-week year which commenced on 
April 30, 2012 and fiscal 2012 was a 53-weck year, which commenced on Aprir25,20l I. with ihc fourth quaner having 14 weeks. 

1 he condensed consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those ofour subsidiaries. All significani intercompany balances and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. Cenain reclassifications have been made to prior period financial .statements to conform to the current pen'od 
presentation. We view each propertj- as an operating segment and all such operaiing segments have bcen'aggregated into one reponing segment. 

We evaluated all subsequent events through the date ofthe issuance oflhe consolidated financial staiemenis. Other than the sale ofour Biloxi casino operations 
(See Noie 3) and the Credit Facility Amendement (See Nole 5). no maierial subsequenl events have occuireti that requircd recognition in the condensed 
consolidaled financial statements. 

3. Discontinued Operations 

During fiscal 2012, we entered into a definitive agreemeni to sell our Biloxi, Mississippi casino operations for $45,000 subject to cenain working capital 
adjuslments and regulator)'approvals. During ihe three monlhs ended October 28. 2012, we recorded a S 1.500 valuation allowance refiecting a credit against 
the purchase price to satisfy our obligalion to repair the property after Hurricane Isaac, as required by the purchase agreement. Tlie 

balance sheel items related to Biloxi have been classified as held for sale and ihe results of operations are presenled as discontinued operations. This 
transaction was completed on November 29, 2012. 

The results ofour disconlinued operations are summarized as follows: 

Disconlinued Operatons 

Three Mnnlhi Ended S\\ Monlhs Ended 

October ZH. October 23, Ocinber 28. October 2.1, 

http://wv.-w.islccorp.com


20i2 • 2011, 2012 20lj 

'NeUcvenifcstf^:T^J;i^;'-:-?T-i^----^^ 
Preia.\ loss from discontinued operations '(2.312) . ... _ [ ^ ^ ^ } . - _ _ , ^^^^ ,̂ .̂ ,. _.-,.. • ^iv'-'^^l. 
lnc<JmetixtJ^nbfit'ln^discbfitirmafwrati^^ 

;LO.SS from discontinued operalions (2.312). " (427) • " (395) (19!) 

The as.sets held for sale and liabiliues related to a.ssets held for sale are as follows: 

October 2S, 
2012 

Accounts receivable, net S. 479 
, Prepaid .e.\pe_nsesand:otherassets.&'^^fe?€^^;p^!.';^gSjW'J 

Total current assels 2.057 

Tolal assets 45.557 

Currcnt liabilities. 
|^Ac^lmtspayable^ya^7#-rV-jJf#^-:^;-fV^ 

Other accrued liabiliiies 
Ma.toTarc-uirenf-liat^iliti^--:¥^^^^^:g^i;^11-^^:^i E8,041^ 

4, Flooding 

Flooding along the Mississippi River caused five of our properties to close forportions ofthe tlirec and six months ended October 23,2011. A sutmnary of the 
closure dales and subsequent reopening is as follows: 

Numbtr Days 
Closing DalC; .-, Kcopeninc Dale Cloied 

Davcnpwtf ' lbwamiy" '^ ; f r^"^F^: i^gi^£m^^l^ 
Caruihcrsvillc,'Mis.souri May"l.-201l May 13,2011 ' 12 • 
L'ula:'Missi5sii ipij^^-'^^'gVi\l^r#-^^.^^j^^ ^M^MMH 

Natbhez?MissisJjippi'>=^'^l^:^".1^,^^:C^W'#^M^4r^^ 
Vicksburg, Mississippi -May 11.'2011 

iM"aYV7^201' 

l Ju t i e ;3P201 ' l ^ . ^^^ -^ i : ^p^^^^nT^ 
September2.2011 ..^'ffl_. 

i^une^l?.r2Ql^l>^ i ^ ^ - ^ ^ ^ ^ q ^ m ^ 
May 27. 2011 16 

(A) Six days of closure in ihe first quaner of fiscal 2012 and nine days of closure in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. 
(B) The second casino ba'rge reopened on September 2, 2011 after fiood damage was remediated. 

During fiscal 2012, wc settled all of our claims with our insurance carriers and collected the insurance receivable recorded at April 29, 2012 during the six 
monlhs ended October 28, 2012. 

5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-lerm debl consists ofthe following: 

Sgi:iiorSea?a!CrediiFacilitv"^^;U-^T^,',--t?-.^#y'.^,^j^.a '^W. 

Ociober 28. 
2012 

April 29. 
2012 

m - ^ ^ j . ^ ^ M ^ m ^ ^ . ^ . 3 : i s ^ - ^ r i ^ ^ : ^ s ^ : 
Revolving line ofcredit, expires March 25, 2016, interest payable ai least quarterly at eilher LIBOR and/or 

prime plus a margin 38.000 

8.875% Senior Subordinated Notes, interest payable semi-aiuiuallyJune 15 and December 15 350,000' — 
f/,% Semor^Subordinated Notes: interest pavablelsemiTannually;March|tfaiid;Septemberdm'^W^^tT,'.^^-^.^^fei^^ 
Odier ' . 3,839 4,130 

i f e ^ ^ ^ ^ > ^ ^ ^ ^ % ^ - ^ ^ ^ ' ^ m ^ •••• • • ^ ^ ^ ^ - ^ ; i f ^ h l 8 2 , 4 7 . I ^ ^ ; ^ ^ l ^ i 5 ^ ^ 
5.406 5,393 



Credii Faciliiv • Our Senior Secured Crcdit Faciliiy, as amended ("Credii Faciliiy"). consisis ofa i;300,000 revolving line ofcredit and a 5500,000 tenn loan. 
TheCredit Facility is secured on a first priority basis by substantially all of our assets arid guaranteed by ail ofour significant subsidiaries. 

Our net line ofcredit availability at October 28. 2012, as limited by our maximum senior secured leverage covenant, was approximaiely 5199,000, after 
consideration of 527,000 in oulstanding surely bonds and letters ofcredit. We pay a commitment fee relaled to the unused portion ofthe Credit Facility of up 
lo 0.625% which is included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated siatemenis ofoperalions. The weighted average eO'eciive inieresi raie ofthe 
Credit Facility for the si.\ monlhs ended Ociober 28, 2012 was 5.11%. 

The Credit Facility includes a number of alTinnaiive and negative covenants. Addiiionally. we must comply wilh cenain financial covenants including 
maintenance of a senior .secured leverage ralio. a total leverage ratio and 

minimum interest coverage ratio. The Credii Facility also restricts our ability to make ceriain investmenis or distributions. We were in compliance wilh all 
covenants as ofOctober 28, 2012. 

In November 2012, we amended certain provisions ofthe Credit Facility lo; 1) give us more fiexibility to incur additional indebtedness, in certain 
circumstances, 2) increase our flexibility to incur asset sales, 3) modify our maximum allowed leverage covenant and 4) allow for ihe armualizaiion of 
EBITDA during ihe first year ofoperalions on new build projecis. 

7.75% Senior Noles — In March 2011. we issued S300.000 of 7.75% Senior Notes due 2019 at a price of 99.264% ("7.75% Senior Noies"). The nci 
proceeds from the is.suance were used to repay term loans under our Credii Faciliiy. The 7.75% Senior Noles are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by 
substantially all of our significani subsidiaries and certain olher subsidiaries as described in Note 13, All of the guarantor subsidiaries are wholly owned by 
us. The 7,75% Senior Notes arc general unsecured obligations and rank junior to all ofour seniiar secured indebtedness and senior to our senior subordinated 
indebtedness. The 7.75% Senior Notes arc redeemable, in whole orin part, al ouroption at any time on or after March 15, 2015, with call premiums as 
defined in the indenture goveming the Senior Notes. 

The indenture governing the 7.75% Senior Notes limits, among olher ihings. our ability and our restricted subsidiaries ability to bonow money, make 
restncted payments, use assets as security in olher transactions, enter into transactions wilh affiliales, pay dividends, or repurchase stock. The indenture also 
limits ourability to issue and sell capilal .stock of subsidiaries, sell a,ssets in excess of specified amounts or merge wilh or into other companies. 

8.875% Senior Subordinated Notes — On August 7, 2012, we completed the issuance and sale of S350,000 of 8.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2020 
(the "New Subordinated Notes'") in a private offering. We received net proceeds of 5343,000 for this issuance af̂ er deducting underwriting fees. The New 
Subordinated Notes are guaranteed, on ajoinl and several basis, by each our subsidiaries thai guarantee our Credii Facility, fhese New Subordinated Noles 
are general unsecured obligations, rank junior to all ofour senior Indebtedness and are redeemable, in whole or In part, at our option at any time on or after 
June 15, 2016. wilh call premiums as defined in the indenture goveniing the New Subordinated Notes. As required by the temisof a registration righls 
agreement related to the New Subordinated Notes, we filed a registration statement for an exchange oITer of these New Subordinated Noies wilh the Securities 
and Exchange Commission on September 25, 2012.,which was declared efTedive on October 3. 2012. 

We repurchased and retired all ofour 5357,275. 7% Senior Subordinated Notes with proceeds from the Lssuance ofthe New Subordinated Notes aud cash on 
hand. 

Following completion oflhe issuance ofthe New Subordinated Notes and ihe retirement ofthe 7% Subordinated Notes due 2014. the maturities ofour Credii 
Facility arc extended lo March 25. 2016 and March 25, 2017 for the revolving line ofcredit and icnn loans, respectively, based upon the Credit Facility. 

As u result ofthe above iransaclions, we incun^cd expenses related to the write-off of defened financing costs, issuance costs and other related fees of 
approximately S2,500, including 51.000 in non-cash charges, during the second quarterof fiscal 2013. 

In November 2012. pursuant tothe exchange offer declared effective on October 3. 2012. wc exchanged all of the unregistered New Subordinated Notes for 
new New Subordinated Notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933. as amended. 

6. Earnings Per Share 

The following table sets forth the computation of ba.sic and diluted income (los.s) per share: 

Tlirce Months Ended Six .Months Ended 

Oclober 2H. October 23. Ociober 28. October 23. 
2012 2011 2012 2011 

Income (lossi applicable to common shares: ^ _ ^ ^ 
b.^lE^i^e(ib^s)>romc^ominuiife-op'ei^^i5fis^4r^bJ^^^ 



Loss from disconlinued operalions (2.312)- (427) (395) (191) 

^mmM^:%^ 3'.'w-̂ s'-f-•• :^!^^ •^..-^'-ji^r t "iS'-^r-.^^^p-;. yT . j -^ - ig t ; - ^^ j 

Net income (loss) S .(6.653) S _ (1.457) S 8 S (3.780) 

Denominator: 
!^DenoiniBt"Qr.'foTb^siceaiTiinp^:(loss)'perfshar^ 

Effeciof dilutive securities 
^f- ' |^E;^"p|g^^e^^k'ogIl5ns^'-•^!4^^-^#-1^.^:^^j#Mj^^^M^I 

ggj9;336;l34f^":^>^38;°753,049:^^g^39rl;7.7.2Q8r?..--3S;515;099 

^ 1 ^ . 8 6 7 ^ ' ^ ^ ' ^ - ^ ^ ^ 
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share - adjusied weiglitcd 

avcraue .shares and assumed conversions 39.336:134" 38.753.049_ 39.192.075 38.515,099 

•Basic earnings (loss) pershare: 
.5-.-Income Qoss) from continuing operations'^ . ^ , ^ ^ ^ ^ i - ' ^ ^ ^ , m i 0 ^ \ £ } ^ „ i 

(0.06) (O.OI) (O.OI) (O.OI) Loss from discontinued operalions 

•'Ngtlm:c^if(lgirsi^»^^^Mr^'ffiJ^.lr^tfe'^^^fii^l^ }^immi(it\7E^mi^M:it)sm^n^'^f^^^M^^^s^^^^^ 

Dllulcd.cammflsTlp^s) .pe^j .sha^e:^?P^^J£^:^^r^^^^^^^^P,^^ 
. Income (loss) from continuing operalions 

t^^g[iJLossJfrom'Bis'cdriiliiucd''c)pFi3noris '̂'̂  P I 
S fQ-'0_^ (003) S 0 01 S (0.09) 

^^Q:06)i^jge^-gi?(OVQl')lJ^,^W'<:(0:of)?".>gi:^'.?>g(Q!or3 
Net income (loss) (0.17) $ (0.04) $ (0.10) 

Our basic eamings (los.s) per share are compuled by dividing net Income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares oulstanding for the period. Slock 
options representing 1,009.160 shares, whichare anil-dilulive, were excluded from the calculation of common sharcs for diluted Income per share for both the 
three and six monlhs ended October 28,-2012. Due tothe loss from conlinuing operations forthe three monlhs "ended Ociober 28, 2012, stock options 
representing 30,236 shares, which are potenlially dilutive, were excluded from ihc calculation of comnion'shares for the diluted loss pershare for thai period. 

. Due tothe loss from continuing operations for the three and six months ended. October 23. 2011, slockoptions representing 22,045 and 38,074 sharcs, which 
are poienlially dilutive, and 1,169,710 and l.069,'710 shaies, which are anii-dilutive,,were excluded from ihe calculation of common shares for diiuled toss 
per share for that period. 

7. Stock Based Compensation 

Under our Amended and Reslated 2009 Long Term Siock Incentive Plan we have issued rcsiricted stock units, restricted stock and stock options. 

Restricted Stock Units—During ihesix monihsended Ociober 28, 2012," we granied restricted stock units ("RSUs") conlaining market performance 
conditions which will detennine the ultimate amount of RSUs, If any. to be awarded uplo 1,585.713'shares. Any RSUs eamed will vest 50% three years 
from the grant date and 50% four years from the grant date. The fair value of these RSUs is determined ulilizing a lallice pricing model which 
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considers a range of assumpiions mcluding volatiiiiy and ri.sk-frcc tnieresi_rales. Tlic aggrcgatc compensalion cost related lo these RSUs is $4,669 to be 
recognized overlhe vesting periods. As of Oclober 28. 2012. our unrecognized compensalion co.si for these RSUs is S4,326. 

Resiricted Stuck—During the six monlhs ended October 28, 2012, we issued 330,634 shares of restricied stock with a weighled average grant-date fairvalue 
of 56.03 to employees and 176,078 shares of restricted slock with a weighled-average grant date fair valueof 56.53 to direclors. Restricied stock awarded to 
employees under annual long-term incenlive grants priinarily vests one-third on each anniversary ofthe granl date and for directors vests one-half on the grant 
dale and one-half on the first anniversary oflhe grant date. Our cstiinale of forfeitures for resirictcd slock for employees is 5%, No forfciiure rate is estimated 
for directors. As of Ociober 2S, 2012. our unrecognized compensalion cost for unvested restricted stock'is S3.251 with a remaining weighted average vesiing 
period of 1.4 years. 

Slock Oplions - We have issued incenlive stock options and nonqualified stock options which have a maxiinum term of 10 years and are. generally, vested 
and exercisable in yeariy InsiallmenLs of 20% commencing one year after.the date ol^grant. Wc cunentiy estimate our aggregale foHellure rates at 11%. As of 
Oclober 28. 2012. our unrecognized compensation ccst forunvestcdstockoptions was 5128 with a weighled average vesting period of 0.7 years. 

8. Inierest Rale Derivatives 

We have cniered Into various interest rate derivative agreements in order to manage market risk on variable rate term loans outstanding. We have an interest rate 
swap agreeinent with an aggregale notional valueof $50,000 witha maiurity date in September 2013. As of October 2S, 2012, all of our interest rate cap 
conlracls have matured. 

The fair values of derivatives included in ourconsolidated balance sheet arc as follows: 

Type of Drrivative Instrumenl Balance Sheet Locution Oclober 2B. 2012 April 29. 2012 
lrilerest''rate';5'tt'^c(miraets";f^^!^'i^^^;^'^-^^"''.^Aca^ 
Interesi rate .swap conlracts Other long-term liabiliiies 2.493 



'i'he interest rate cap agreements met the criteria for hedge accounting for cash fiow hedges. As a result, ihere.was ho impaci on our consolidated statement of 

operalions from changes in fair value oflhe iniercst rate cap agreements. The loss recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) for our interest rate cap 

agreements is recorded nel of deferred income tax benefits ofan immaterial amouni and S8 ns ofOctober 28. 2012 and April 29, 2012. respeclivcly. The 

change in unrealized !o.ss on our dcrivatlvesqualifying for hedge accounting was an Immatenal amouni for the three and six months ended Ociober 28, 2012. 

The change in unrealized loss on our derivatives qualifying for hedge accouniing was an immaterial amount and S26 for the three and si.x months ended 

Ociobcr23, 2011, respectively. 

Our interest rate swaps no longer meet the crileria for hedge effectiveness, and therefore changes in the fair value ofthe swaps subsequenl lo die date of 
ineffectiveness in February 2010, are recorded in derivaiive Income in the consolidated staicmeni ofoperalions. The cumulative loss rccorded in other 
comprehensive income (loss) through the dale of ineffectiveness Is being amortized into derivative expense over the remaining term ofthe individual interest rate 
swap agreements or when the underlying iran.saeiion is no longer expecied to occur. As ofOctober 28, 2012. the weighted average fixed LIBOR inieresi rale of 
our inierest rale swap agreemeni was 3.995%. 

The toss recorded in olher comprehensive incomc (loss) ofour interest rale .swap agreements is recorded net of defetred Income tax benefits of S327 and S506, 

as ofOctober 2S. 2012 and April 29. 2012. respectively. 

Derivative income related to the change in fair value of Inieresi rate swap conlracls is as follows: 
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Three iMonlhs Ended 
Oclober 2(1. 

2012 
October 23, 

2(111 

Six Months Ended 
October 28, 

2012 
Oclober 2.1, 

2011 

t3cnvauvejncometg,'Kl^;-;;:V^.?-'..4.-^;y.;.i^^j^3i^ l-i\if^S'^^-'^^929^jS»'^i^^u7&5^S-:^Tim.^Snm75 

Derivative incomc realized as.soclaied with the amortizalion ofcumulativc loss recorded in olher comprehensive incomc (loss) for the interest rale swaps 

through ihe date of inelTecliveness is as follows: 

Three Monlhs Ended Six Monlhs Ended 

October 28, 
2012 

Oclober 23, 
2011 

^Hi^MI^BIl l^^^I^^^^^^Sa; glH9; 
2011 2012 2011 

252 178 Change In deferred taxes 
yrj','gs 

503 
k^:t-^^:67(ii^:^'^-^^^mt'475^-^^'^'--^^m39i Derivative i n c o n i e s ; ^ ^ 

The amouni of accumulated other comprehensive incomc (loss) related lo interest rale swap contracts and inierest rale cap contracts maturing within the next 

iwelve months was S544, net of tax of 5327. as ofOctober 28, 2012. 

9. Fa i r Va lue 

The fair value ofour interesi swap and cap contracts are recorded using Level 3 inputs at the present value ofall expected future cash fiows based on the 

LIBOR-based swap yield curve as ofthe date ofthe valuation. 

The following lable presenls the changes in Level 3 liabilities measured al fairvalue on a rccuning basis fur ihe Uiree months ended October 28. 2012: 

Three .Mnnlhs Ended Si» Mnnlhs Ended 
Oclobe 

Inlercsi Kale Hedjies 
Oclober 211. 
• 2012 

October 23. 
2DI1 

Ociobcr 28. 
2012 

October 23. 
2011 

Realized gain.s/(losscs) 413 

Ending Balance S 

rfft^592)-^SIl^&-;^.:^(2.493)T?Sl£r.l>^v-'̂ fl5;004)1 
929 785 1.367 

^.^M^-t- ' ;^ i#^-7^-^ 'a#^>^#^a-vqj(-26j l 
(3.663) (L708) $ (3,663) S (1.708) S 
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Financial Instrumenls - The estimated carrying amounts and fair values ofour other financial instruments arc as follows: 

October 28. 2012 Apri l 29, 2012 

Carrviim 
Amount Kair Value 

Carrjing 
Amount Kair Value 

FlffSn«^l'a"src'ts^-;-_^^:a--4-tg^.f^^^%LM#?l<"^ m^:u^^ff^:m^^^^¥^^^^-^^i'^r^'^:^-£:^-mm^ 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Mpetable'securilies' .-T % r \ i ^ 

75.479 75.479 94.461 94.461 

Resiricted cash 
^24v27.7ia^>m^^-^-rf»24:27.7^:-f^^lg^-^J24:943^-.?J^.%i^-tV-24:943l: 
12.916 12,916 12,551 12,551 
«9;6»^:^^4^^96^^-#f-.:i:^-.L293'T-;.:^.^^a?H293'^ 



Fin^iaMiahllirie?:^-r#-ito;r ^ - ^ ^ . - 4 ! ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ n^^'^gT?T^'?-^"'gy^.y'•;>---.'^"fy^.'4> .'•"'i.'^': :.-̂ '.̂ i 
Revolving line ofcredit ^S .̂̂ l̂ -̂ OO S 35,340 S — S — 

7.75% Senior notes 298.132 320.492 29S.026 308;S29 
f7%Sen ioau l^ rdmat t idno tes^ :a^ :^^^^ l . ^ :^1^4 ;^^ ! : i ^ ;^^^^ 
8.875% Senior subordinated notes 350,000 374,063 N/A N/A 
blKe^lont r - te^nn 'debt j - ; . :<a :^^i ; :4 ; .g :^ '^Ai^ 
Other long-lcnn obligalions 16.489 16,489 16.556 16,556 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate ihe fair value ofeach class of financial instruments for which it Is practicable to estimate that 
value: 

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and notes receivable are carried at co.sl. which approximaies fair value due to their short-term maturiiies. 

Marketable securities arc based upon Level 1 inputs obtained from quoled prices available in aclive markets and represent the amounts we would expect to 
receive if we sold these markelable securities. 

The fair value ofour long-term debt or olher long-lerm obligations is estimated based on the quoted market price ofthe underiying debt issue (Level 1) or. when 
a quoted market price is not available, the discounted cash fiow offuture payments utilizing curreni rates available to us for debt of similar remaining 
mamrities (Level 3). Debl obligations with a short remaining maturity arc valued al the carrying amounl. 

to. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

A deiail of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is as follows: 

Iniercst rate.cap.conmicLsi^;^>^< ^ j ^ ^ ^ ^ 
^ October 28. 2012 April 29. 2012 
3^,^t^^SM'$.^f^^fm^'^^S%'^^^J^?#(' l '4)1 

Inieresi rate swap contracts (544)' (841) 
^^^^f^§$%^T^-'a'.-#gW"(544:ili5^SW^^^."(855)l 

The amount ofchangc in the gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) relaled lo derivaiive instruments is as follows: 
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Type of Derivaiive Instrumenl 

Three .Months Ended Six Monlhs Ended 
Oclober 28. 

2012 
October 23, 

2011 
October 28, 

2012 
October 23, 

2011 

Interest rate.capconiracfq:,'^ ,-! ^^TMrn^^^^^^^^^^mm^ 'A j^ , f i i ^?^Ms^;^%^diE^'mst^.^^^&T^:^v4'W.smfB.^m^39} 
Interest rale swap contracts 

- - --"' ^^- ''•-^ '̂ •' <--^i^3gM--.^. î -.-g- '•'S mis ' '•^-ri^^l^^-.gJ'.ii^^* E 
149 418 297 836 

m'49W^SW-'m^^'m452^;S^Wv:K'%^m^^$U^^MM^7-5l 

11. Income Taxes 

Our efTectlve income lax rales from continuing operations forthe thix:e and six months ended October 28. 2012 were 2t.4% and 25.1%. respecilvely, of pretax 
income. Our effective income lax rates from conlinuing operations for the three and six monlhs ended October 23. 2011 were 37.7% and 37.8%. respectively, 
of pretax Income. Our incomc ta.\ provision (Iwncfit) from continuing operations and our effective rate are based on .statutory rates applied to our incomc 
adjusted for permanent differences and to account for changes In valuation allowances. Our actual effeciive rate will fiuctuate based upon the amount ofour 
prelax book incomc, permanent differences and other ilems. including fiucluaiioiis in valuation allowances, used in the calculalion ofour income tax benefit. 

A summarj' ofour income lax provision from continuing operalions is as follows: 

Three Months Knded Six .Monlhs Ended 
October 28. 

2012 

State taxes 
pg?naalt\tifferenc^^^^m^;^a>%t^;,C-•X^:-J:.^^•.m;0-^^l^ 
Tax credits 

October 23, 
2011 

October 28. 
2011 ' 

October 23, 
2011 

^( •m3ms^:MM:^(57mst : ;^ : /^ 'ns9msmr^^(2 io2(^ 
(218) (129) 29 • (418) 

(355) (370) (Z10)_ (596) 

Valuationallowance 1.013 — (53) 
TiKMietix'tbUicfitVWvisionn'.'^'cb^ 

12. Supplemental Disclosures 

Cash Flow— For the six monlhs ended October 28. 2012 and October 23. 2011, we made net cash payments for Interest of 538.059 and 542,225, 



respeclivcly. Additionally, we made income tax payments of $2,892 and 5371 during the six months ended Oclober 28, 2012 and Ociobcr 23. 2011. 
respectively. 

Fnr the six monlhs ended October 28, 2012 and October 23. 2011, the change in accrued purchases of propeny and equipment in accounts payable incrca.sed 
by 53.074 and SS90. respectively. 

Forthe six months ended October 28, 2012 and October 23, 2011, we capitalized interest ofS2,l05 and 5296. respectively, primarily related to construction 
of our casino in Cape Girardeau. Missouri. 
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13. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information 

Certainofour wholly owned subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and several basis, the payment ofall obligalions under our 
7.75% Senior Notes and 8.875% Senior Subordinated Notes. 

The following wholly owned subsidiaries oflhe Company are guarantors, on a joint and several basis, under the 7.75% Senior Notes and 8.875% Senior 
Subordinaied Notes; Black Hawk Holdings, L.L.C.; CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc.; IC Holdings Colorado, Inc.; IOC-Black Hawk Distribution Company, 
L.L.C; IOC-Boonville, Inc.; lOC-Canilhersville. L.L.C; lOC-Kansas City. Inc.; IOC-Lula, liic; IOC-Natchez, Inc.; IOC Black Hawk County, Inc.; IOC 
Davenport. Inc.; IOC Holdings. L.L.C; IOC Services. LLC; IOC-Vicksburg, Inc.; IOC-Vicksburg, LLC: Rainbow Casino Vicksburg'Partnership, L.P,; 
IOC Cape Girardeau, LLC; lsle ofCapri Beilendorf Marina Corporation; Isle ofCapri Beltendorf, L.C; Isle ofCapri Black Hawk Capital Corp.; Isle of 
Capri Black Hawk, L.L.C; lsle ofCapri Marquetic, Inc.; P.P.I. Inc.; Rivcrboal Corporation ofMississippi; Riverboat Services. Inc.; and St. Charies 
Gaming Company, Inc. 

Consolidaling condensed balance sheets as of October 28. 2012 and April 29, 2012 are as follows (in ihou.sands): 

AsnrOctober28.2012 

Ralance Sheet 

UlenfCapH 
Cautios, Inc. 

, (Parent 
Obrigor) 

Guaranlor 
Suhsidiaries 

>'on-
' Guarantor 
Subsidia'riei 

Canialidaling 
and 

CUminatioi! 
Enlries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos. Inc. 
Cnosollditrd 

n^s^^^g^^?t>^^$^j^!^3-6;374i^$^^^126:M04>r'^BSr4/:->29^-509^Sg 
(51.706) (446 

32,279 
g:^2:574^^--^%^26! 

779l"^$;..^;^187:20Si 
,025) 

- • . : 

Intercoinpany receivables 
tfivestinenls"iii¥ijb'sidiarie5^'^^|^.,K^^^^^ 

708.620: 

8,868 

•:(210.889) 

Property and equipment, net 
Oiher;asseis^r.^fi^-jg!^5-::-;;^Pa f^ 
Tolalassets S 1-415,942 

968.259 

S' 1,235,772 ,S 32;656 S (1.057 

m)i 
—. 1,009,406 

,055) S 1.627.315 

û̂  C u n e n t l iabi l i i ies $ 

lrilcVcbmpailv:Vairables;,frv-^^g^^4iarf^>.!p-%t£fe^-^iri^ 
49;605 •$. - 101,199 $ 

TSM. mjm:^5i^m 
32.927 S (4, 779) $ 178,952 

1,177,065 3;035 Long-term debl. less curreni malurilies 1,I73;632 

Siockholders' equity 

iroialTl^bililie<a^'srock^Tac^lqOity^ 

• 398 ' — _ 
rySl4l97.7.-jl'^V'i-^26:27SM^-V:-^j84'.455j 

186:843 (15,646) 648.175 
Il!235t7;72'^?r3ji>32;65 

(632, 529) 186.843 
C'(P,057;055)'M$::"#l=627i3f5| ^ g S ^ l W _ 5 ^ g S I 

A s o r A p r i l 2 9 . 2 0 l 2 

Iluluncc Sheet 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 

.OliliGn'n 

'eun^i%^^etsm.^:.rm'^r--i-m^:^^^^^m-m--.i^ms^rm52m2mis 
Intereornpany, rece ivab les 6 7 3 , 8 4 9 

Coniolidxtini; 
and IsleofCapri 

Eliminiline Casinos. Inc. 

l':ntries Consolidated 

^:r20:7,l'i:^'si-5:Tjl29;324;^SI'.^-;C-^fn'(284)'Ss?^^202b283'l 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

.Non-

Guaranlor 

.Suhsidiuries 

iK^«I^grt^iK'gub'sidi^-rig^^^-l^fe'4.ri.-'^^\^^i1^^'!;^j.i^^ 
property and eqiiipment. net 
Oilier.as?ets'^^%:7-^j;^g;--^^l^^_-a^--:j^>? 

(176,882) (50.942) (446,025) 
i 6 - i ^ 4 2 ^ ' : ^ ( 2 9 m 5 ) J ^ ^ : m ^ ' ^ a m m ( 6 r 4 : 6 2 9 ) ^ X ^ ^ ^ ^ 

9,194 908.586 32.234 
f(5;524)^f.^^^-384?4i59."L: ^ E ^ ' 

950,014 

M^^^^MMIEHMZ^M^MM^^ 
Tolal asseis $ 1.374.475 S l.207;089 S 27,825 S (1.034.419) . $ . 1,574.970 

Curreni liabilities' S 

• j j ' ^ . - ^ '•-i:SS 

37;509. S 89,213 S 29.690 $ 
S ^ ^ : f e ^ W ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ - v ^ ^ V ^ t ^ 

(296) J 156,116 . 

Long-term debt, less cunenl maturities 

Stockholders' equity 

1 145,301 

I S3,620 

3,264 473 — , • . . 'i'"*^'*^^^, 

m7n75%m^i^Mi4:445U^f:/T^n6:52\p,^''V'mn6H96i. 
631,412 . _. _ (16.7R3) (614.629) 183.620 

(I-otaliliabiliiieTa?i^st6HRoldeFS^eS^iiy^^J^i^\lfi^^$^ 
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Consolidaling condcn.sed siatements ofoperalions forthe ihreeand six monlhs ended October 28. 2012 and Ociobcr 23. 2011 areas follows (in ihousands): 

Kor the Three Alonihs Ended October 2S. 2D 12 

Slalcnienl of Operations 

Isle of Cnpri 
Casinus. INC. 

(Pareni 
OhligDrl 

Cansolidalins 
.\nn- and Isle iifCapri 

Cuaranlor Cuaranlor F:iimiiiiling Casinas. Inc. 

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries " Enlries Copiulidalcd 

R^veiitsgsr!*-:?^ '̂ ? ^ x i M ? ^ a ^ i / r - g vm 
Casino S — S 234.648 S ~ . ^ _ . . ^ ^ . . .^^'*;^^ . 
RirornlT^fo'od.'b'g;'e?ag£?pffi-Vumelatrd^ihe^^^^^ 

Grossrevenues " 165 2731242 2.260 (2,254) 273.413 

Netrevcnues 165 223;036 2,260 (2,254) 223,207 . 

Operating expenses: 

Gaming taxes — 58.619 — . — 58.619 
Rooms)ffo6d.\b^ct^R6,^paH-^mnmel:an^ 
Management fee expense (rcvenue) (7,671) 7,671 — — — 

Total operating expenses 5;1I0 203,325 871_' - (2.254) 207.052 

Operating income Ooss) (4 945) 19,711 1,389 —- 16,155 
i ^ ; ^ ; ^ r ? x p e i 5 e ^ n - - e i ' ! ^ g ^ ^ - ^ ^ ^ - t - ^ i 5 V ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ l & ^ ^ 7 l ^ ^ 
Derivaiive Income 176 — —̂- —- 176 
E q u i l V ' ! m ; i i i c o i n e : ( l o s s ) o f s u b s i d i a n e s F ^ S ^ : - l ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ g ^ ^ 8 H ' 6 9 1 ^ S ^ 
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income 

taxes (9,728) 11,223 1,151 (8.169) ' (5,523) 
i r comTtgxXproV- i s l ^ - f i ) ' b e t e f i i ' - ^^^ , ^^^ |§^ i^ j ^^^^^^^^ 
Incoine (loss) from contiautning operations (4,341) 7.432 ' ^737 . (8.169) (4,341) 
litcomT(lors)of:disc6ntiiuied'S^fationlg^^l^^^^^i:^ 
Net income (loss) S ' (6;653) S 4,823 S 737 S. . (5:560)" S (6.653) 
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For the I'bree .Months Ended October 23. 2011 

Suietnenl of Operalions 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinns. Inc. 

(Pareni 
Olitii,cir) 

Guaranlor 

Subsidiaries 

Non-

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

Coasolidatinji 
a n d 

Elitntnitine 
Entries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

. Consolidaled 

Casino S — S 239,707 $ — 5 — S 239.707 
R5;;;^is^food.--b'̂ vVra.^^-^^-:5iTtgel'̂ '̂d:SbJ^^^^^ 

Gross revenues _ ^ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ^ 1 ^ 278.496' ' 2.571 (2,247) 27S.960 

Net revemies ^ ^ _ 140 230;962 ,2,57L (2,247) 231.426 

Operating expenses: m ^ - i : m s b o 2 ^ m ^ ^ ! d s ^ ^ ^ m ^ m ^ ^ ^ : M 3 s t i 7 2 M 
Gaming taxes — 59.435 — — 59.435 
Rwms|fWd.̂ b"e7eî ai:erpmimlituel-aî ^^^ 
Management fee expense (revenue) (8.161) .8.161 — — — 
Dei6'r^3li6haiid-ambrtiratioJiJ^m>^^^-^:-^¥ll^%:^M^ 
.Total operaiing expenses 1;355 209,780 2.765 • (2.247) 211,653 

Operating income (loss) (1,215) ' 21,182 (194) — . 19,773 
l^ib^re'^^e-^^ptn'is^eyir.it.a^^^i^li^^^^ 
Derivaiive income 260 — — -~ 260 
Equim- in i i i comc. ( los5) .o f ; subSid ianc5gg^ i^^^ ;^^^^^^m3i8Q5 | | ^B^: 
Income (loss) from conlinuing operations before incomc 

taxes 
j n c ^ ^ M ^ / ^ ^ I i o r ^ b ^ ^ f i t ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

(3,491) 
^ 2 t 4 6 W ^ ^ 

^^;^a^. ta '4k ' j^^4:M^(3i8Q5)^^>4aiL-: i^ 

5.993 (349) .(3,805) (1.652) 

Income (loss) from continuining operations _________ (1.030) 4,023 (218) (3,805) (1.030) 



fs'ei income (loss) (1.457) S_ 
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3.050 S (218) S (2.832) S (1.457) 

Stalemenl of Operations 

IsleofCapri , 
Casino.s. Inc.'' 

(Parent 
Obtisor) 

Kor Ihe Six Monlhs Rnded October 28. 2012 

Guamntor 

Subsidiaries 

Non-

Guaranlor 
Subsidiaries 

Con sol id a I ine ' 
and 

Eliminaling 

Enlries 

Isle ofCapri 

Casinos. Inc. 

Consolid alcd 

Rc^ues:/^a£^.^-^1^!^.^4^;f^^.^^^^lj^^a^ 
Casino - r - • ' $ 484,917 . J — S •— s 484.917 
Roomsl'tood,^ be'v'cragc';'pm^m^'cl ̂ d ;oih'cr^4.'^'^^*^?^';»^^ 
Gross revenues 

l^?i^34i^: :v^^^#^79;849*£i; ' ' ' : ̂ ^4^7M|M^-1J^^( -^^70Q)^^g^^ '3 t80-20lg 
565.118 341 564.766- 4.711 (4.700) 

iTrog!^88)^i^^M#t;^^i^ls^X-%ig:^'^^i^^wi Lip^pfomb'iioii'rd allowances)^^3;fj^"i;^^ 
Nel revenues 341 458,678 4.711 (4.700) 459,030 

^ . j ^ ^ ^ : . i i # ^ ^ ' - ' ^ ^ : a k ^ ^ ^ - ^ ^ : . ^ ^ , ^ ^ ; P A - ^ i ^ ^ 
Operating expenses: 

Gaming taxes 
' -a-iJ-j. • ••j'j.^.tf-'jJiAi'.'Ayjaf'rej'f-j-jv.v. •• ^,'^!'!>Ai-'_i^ , i ;Mi^A_.- . 
Rooms.'.food.^faeveragcjpantmutuerand oiher^?-gfri(a.^gfeJ^rif 
Management fee expense (revenue) 
bg^reciat l6t i^^d^ii ioS^^ktio{i1-^^^#jt^Mg^-- '^^ 

120.247-

i i^ ;230in.A 
(I6;-108) .16,108 

mi^EL^^&^ij^2^m:C'^Mm:2m^^m!^-'^i'^^i^3r^n 
(4.700) 416,691 

Operaiing income (loss) 
l n t e f « L c x p e i | ^ l ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ l̂ iss^A 

(6,284) 46,371 2.252 42,339 
M24: '199)y:^ 'V?. : (17459)^ . ,^^??^!{452)^^^^.^g: - .^ : - :^giv^ 

'310 — • — —• ' 310 Derivative incomc 
nVJ':»'ir-.'n.T."-'-JiJ^'"!';,''.'i'";'-'?v1"'.• I. j . -u.wjv 

Equityjn income (loss) of subsidianesf 
Income (los,s) from continuing operations before income 

taxe.s 

^Q65#a ' : : "^JM^^S^#^n '^ ,^^^^ : ' T^(\ 9 ;065)^i 'H^^IJ^ 

(li; i08) .-" .28,912. 1,800 (19.065) 539 

^g^MOU)! r(io;9S3)g^i 
Income (loss) from continuining operations 
,.J,.^'l-JJ''WL'j'.;t-? i''.["-'^.'.^.Mji'"r-.r»!:.v-j£re?'ifcfe'S^ ' t J ' j . i^g ' -^^ '—ay^ Incoine/ioss).of.discontinued:operations-^g^;^y.-ma^^ 

Net income (loss) $ 

403 7,929. 1,136 (19.065) 403 
i ( 3 9 5 ) ^ i ^ ^ U l v 3 1 7 ) i : l - ^ ^ ^ . > ^ . - ^ . v ; ^ - ^ l i 3 1 7 . ^ . . . | g ^ ^ ( 3 9 5 ) l 

8 $ • 16;612' $ 1,136 $ (17,748) S 8 
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For Ihe Six Monlhs Ended Ociober l i . 2011 

Slatement nf Operations 

Isle nf Capri 

Casinos. Inc. 
(Parent 

Oblianr) 

Cuaranlor 

Subsidiaries 

Non-
Cuaranlor 
Subsidiaries 

CoRsnliditlng 
and 

Eliminaling 
Enlries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos. Ine. 
Cnnsnlidaieil 

Revenu^s!-^^-g^-^f-^1f . I^M^^a^gT. t^^ . ; t . -^^ '-^r^'^^i:;^?^^^''^^ggi-?g^s'^' 
Casino 
Rooms'ifdod.^b'everaRe^iS'arirtiiuii^f'aii'd o^^ 

— -S 474.934 . S — s 474.934 
S76;720M^^'Sg£'4:991ffi^^;.i'^(4:650)iar:f:^^37;.352l 

Gross revenues 
Less, promotional i allowances 
Net revenues. 

291 :551,654 4,991 (4;650) 552.286 

291 458.398 4.991 (4,650) 459.030 
^wm^^: 'm^^M^m^^ .m^: jm^^v^ i^wH 

Operating expenses: 

118,952 — — 118.952 Gammg taxes 
Rooms.Mnotlf.bevera.gcpan-mutuel and olherf-pst.'..! 

— I I '^^yff- — — I l o . y ^ z 
!g^^^2i^S36^i^liil-68;05;4Etr"^ ^.-4TiQ7^/-;:-.M(4i650)"^|^^, j-jj89:647^ 

(16.165) 16,165 — : — — 
• '•'- '^'^''::^,'\'f)(n^m^^^7-,544'^'.-:4.sm&^^^27e:mt>r^f^^^ ^ai-38;822l 

'fi f^l^\ 4 1 4 S'sR A i^SI C4 (,'^n\ A l \ •̂ (•Â  

Manageniem fee expense (revenue) 
Depreciaiion'arid a'niortizaiioJijf ^ j j^p^jayj i^^^ ' i^^ '^ 

Total operating expenses (4.650) 421.564 

/ i ; T U - i \ .1-1 c . I r . -,,- - — - -Operating incomc (loss) 
Inierest .expense: ne l I -_^^^ :v . ' ^ J^^ .g#-H^f^^^-^ 

(6^12) 43.540 308 — 37,466 
yj f^(12f8^) l^ ;^^(3Tr52)f l r ' )^ ;^J . t287)M.4" .^ '^ 

29 — — — . 29 Derivaiive Income 
Equity'iniiKoiiie^(loss)'ofsubsidlane.s'Hfe^>^Wi';ri^ 

_ _ _ ^ y — — — • 2 9 

I^«^6^86M.^^^' i^^mt'^^^^>^:.^;ff i<;^yte^(6^l86)M^-^i;^^^ 
income (loss) from conlinuing operations before income 

laxes 
iBCT»g'jax'(isfovisioi]) barefit^-rV!^?''^. :f..^--^i^csi 

(5.772) (12695) 13.388 2\ (6,4S6) (5.772-
%:-rmi 



Income (loss) from coniinuining operalions 
Income (loss) of discontinued operati6riS'..r-J,T^^^"*^ 

Net incomc (loss) - S 

(3^589) 

(3,780) $ 

^ 5 0 7 (2.021) (6.486) (3.589) 

i(V^l7M:jnX7^C-^-:-jm ^ '^^-:SBST,^gm^^^9li\ 
7.150 S (2,021) S (5.129) S (3.780) 
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Consolidating condensed slalements ofcash flows forthe three monlhs ended October 28, 2012 and October 23, 2011 arc as follows (in ihousands): 

Sh Months Ended October 28, 2DI2 

Statement of Cash FIOHS 

Iste of Capri 

Casino.s. Inc. 

(Pareni 

Oblieor) 

Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

,Von-
Guaranior 
Subsidiaries 

Consol idatin; 
and 

Elimioaiinn 
Entries 

Isle ofCapri 

Casinos. Inc. 

Consolidated 

^ 5 t 9 2 2 ^ $ a , ^ ^ i 2 2 5 ^ S ^ f W ? ^ - P ^ S K ^ 5 6 ! 5 2 6 g 
_(8M31) (6-1.42) 34,770 <95.03l) Net cash provided by (used In) Investing activities '(35.228) 

Ne't-cash'tin̂ da.b'v:fu_£gjn),fihmcing-'km-ities?4̂  
Net incrcase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ^ (32.034) 11.273 1.779 ^̂ ^̂  (18.982) 

• ^ ' I M : : " . ? : i.^?^*^.:."'ii'-i^i!7i;fi:i-i:i-v;'i;rli,'i^fcii: Cashand cash^equivalenisaibeginrimg Qf.ihejperiod^ 

Cash and cash equivalents al end oflhe period 
&39a65| f 5 0 ] 7 , 4 9 ^ 

7.331 62.022 S 
m4i347^m-rymai~w^iwm:46ii 

6,126 5 — S 75,479 

Statement of Cash Flosss 

Six Monlhs Ended October 23. 2011 

7-*3 

IsleofCapri 
Casinos; tne. 

(Parent 
niiiicnrl 

Guarantor 

Subsidinries 

Non-

Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolid a ti OK 
and 

Ui 01 in alios 
Kniries 

IsleofCapri 
Casinns. Inc-
Con sol Id a ted 

Net'casb"providcd by (used iii) opefating^actiyiiiSs ̂ '̂̂ m̂̂  
Net cash provided by (used in) invesiing activities 

4(42iS32)?'-5^ir45;O46.€^S-^v?^l^I95^Sf^^^#^^SsC^3>V33?409:3 
24.482 (32,762) (1.030) (24,909) (34;219) 

^(7j8Stjg,K^B(-2l?lQ6)^^:tf?^K0S3)^?:jJU.gg-24^9Q9^^^rJ(8|16ll] Wee cash,pro'v;ide"dibyi(used;in)rfinancihi; /aclK-ities ,̂: 
Net increase (decrease) m cash and cash equivalents 
Cashand cash ,equiyalait5;ai,bcfiummg,ofiheipenod1 
Cash and cash equivalents at end oflhe period 

3.769 (8.822) (3.918) — (8,971) 
a^a^i^;3^952g^gfegtMi62no5^^:;:4^^9;i2i^;i4:^',^^ 

$ 7.721 $ 53,283 $ 5,203 S — $ 66,207 

14. Commitments and Coniingencies 

Development Projecis—We opened our Isle Casino Cape Girardeau on Oclober 30, 2012 wilh an estimated cost of 5135,000, To date, we have incuned cash-
based capital expcndimrcs, including capitalized interest, of approxhnatcly $108,980. 

On August 20, 2012. the Pennsylvania Supreme Court affimied ihe decision oflhe Peimsylvania Gaming Conrol Board to award a Category 3 reson ganiing 
license in the Nemacolin Woodlands Reson ("Nemacolin") in Farmingiori, Pennsylvania. We have an agreement wilh Nemaeoiin to complete the build-oul of 
the casino space and provide management services ofthe casino. We currenlly estimate the projeci cost to be approximaiely $57,000 to 560.000 and wc expect 
loopenL^dy Luck Nemacolin during summer 2013. To date, we have incuned capital expendin-es, including capitalized interest, of approxiinately 51,400. 
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Legal and Regulator)' Proceedings—We and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Riverboat Corporalion of Mississippi - Vicksburg, are defendants In a lawsuil 
filed in ihc Circuit Court of Adams County, Mississippi by Silver Land, Inc., alleging breach of contract In eormection with our 2006 sale of casino 
operalions in Vicksburg, Mississippi, lo a third party. In January 2011. the court nilcd in favorof SilverLand and in September 2011 ihe court awarded 
damages of 51,979. Wc filed a notice ofappeal In November 2011. ^Vhlle the outcome ofthis matter is stlH in doubt and cannoi be predicted wlih any degree 
of certainty, we have accrued an esfimaled liability, including interest, of $2,093. We intend lo continue a vigorous and appropriate appeal of this judgment. 

We have been named as a defendant in a complaint filed In the Cireuit Court for Broward County, Florida. The complaint alleges we sent unsolicited fax 
advertisementsin violation ofthe Telephone CoiLsumer Protection Act of 1991, as amended by the Junk Fax Prevention Act of 2005 (die "TCPA"), and seeks 
to certify a class action. The compiainl seeks statutory' damages for alleged negligent and willful violalions oflhe TCPA, allomeys" fees, costs and injunciion 
relief The 'ICPA provides for siaiuiory damages of S0.5 for each violation (51.5 for willful violalions). Discovery is currenlly underway and we intend lo 
vigorously defend ourselves. This mailer Is subject lo additional di.scovcry and other legal proceedings and while the ullimaie outcome is unknown, we have 
accrued 51,000 as our cunent estimate oflhe mosl probable ouicome ofihis matter. 

Our wholly owned subsidiary. Lady Luck Gaming Corporation and several joint venlure partners have been defendants in the Greek Civil Courts and the 
Greek Administrative Courts in similar lawsuits broughl by the country of Greece. The actions allege that the defendanis failed to make specified payments in 
connection with the gaming license bid process for Pairas. Greece. Although il is difficull to detennine the damages being sought from the lawsuits, the aciion 
may seek daniages up to that aggregate amounl plus Iniercst from ihe date oflhe aciion. 

In the Civil Coun lawsuit, the Civil Court of First ln.siance ruled in our favorand dismissed the lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed to the Civil Appeal Court 
and. in 2003, the Coun rejected the appeal, Greece then appealed lo the Civil Supreme Court and. in 2007, the Supreme Court ruled that the matter was not 



pioperly before the Civil Couns and should be before ihe Administrative Court. 

in the Administralive Court lawsuil. the Administrative Court of First Instance rcjecled the lawsuil .slating that It was not competent to hear the maiiei, Greece 
then appealed to Ihe Administralive Appeal Coun. which coun rejected the appeal in 2003. Greece then appealed to the Supreme .Administrative Coun, which 
remanded the matter back lo the Administrative Appeal Court for a hearing on the merits. The re-hearing took place In 2006, and In 200S the Administralive 
Appeal Court rejected Greece's appeal nn procedural grounds. On December 22. 2008 and Januar>' 23. 2009, Greece appealed the ruling to the Supreme 
Administrative Court. A hearing was held during November 2012. The Suprctne Adminislraiive Court requested both parties file briefs wiihin 90 days. 

fhc ouicome ofihis maner Is still In doubl and cannoi be predicted with any degree of cenainiy. Wc iniend lo continue a vigorous and appropriate defense to 
the claims asserted in this matter. Through October 28, 2012, we have accmed an estimated liabiiily including inieresi of 513.448. Ouraccrual is based upon 
managemenl's estimate oflhe original claim by the plaintiffs for losl payments. We continue lo accrue interest on the asserted claim. We are unable lo astimate 
a total possible ioss as infonnation as lo po.ssible addilional claims, ifany, have not been as.serted or quantified by the plaintiffs al this time. 

We are subject lo certain federal, state and local environmental protection, health and safety laws, regulations and ordinances thai apply to businesses 
generally, and are subject to cleanup requirements at certain ofour facilities as a result thereof We have nol made, and do not anticipate making material 
expendilures. nor do we anticipate incurring delays wilh respect to environmental remediation or protection. However, in part because our present and future 
development sites have, in some cases, been used as manufacluring facilities or other faciliiies that generale materials that are required to be remediated under 
environmental laws and regulations, there can be no guarantee that additional pre-existing conditions will not be discovered and we will not experience maierial 
liabiliiies or delays. 
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We are subject to various coniingencies and litigation maners and have a number of unresolved claims. Although the ultimate liability oflhese coniingencies, 
this litigation and these claims cannot be delermined al this time, we believe they will nol have a maierial adverse effect on our consolidated financial po,sition, 
rcsults ofoperalions oreash flows. 
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ITEM 2. ISIANAGEiMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALVSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Viis report coniains statements thai we believe are, or may be considered to be. "forward-looking statements " wiihin the meaning ofthe Private 
Securities Liiigation Reform Acl of 1995. .All statemetits other than .statements of historical fact included in this report regarding the prospects ofour 
iinlu.slry or our prospects, plans, fmancial posilion or business strategy, may constitute fonvard-Iooking siatements. In addiiion. forward-looking 
Slatemenls generally can be identified by the use offonvard-looking words such as "may, will. " "expeci. " "iniend, " "estimate, " "foresee. " 
"project. " "anticipate, " "believe. " "plans, " "forecasts, " "continue" nr "could" or the negatives of these tenns or variations of them or similar 
terms. Furthermore, such forward-looking slatemenls may be inchided In various filings thai we make wilh the SEC or press relea.ses or oral 
stalenienls made by nr with the approval ofone ofour authorized executive officers. Allhough we believe that the expectations rejlecied in these 
fonvard-Iooking slalements are reasonable, we cannot asstae you that these expectations will prove lo be correcl. Tliese forward-looking siatements 
arc subjecl to certain known and unknown risks and uncertainties, as well as assimiptions thai could cause actual rcuilts lo differ maleriallvfrom 
those rejlecied in these fonvard-Iooking statements. Readers are caiitinned nnt tn place undue reliance nn anv fonvard-Iooking statement coniained 
hercin. which refiect management's opinions only as of the dale hereof. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligalion to revise or publicly 
relea.ie the rciulls ofany revision lo any fonvard-Iooking siatements. You arc advi.sed, however, to consult any addilional disclctures we make in our 
reports to the SEC. .411 subsequent writien and oral forward-looking slatemenls altribuiable lo us orpersons acling on our behalf are expressly 
t/ualifed in their entirely by the cautionary .slatemenls contained in this report. 

Foramorecompletcdescriptionoftherisks that may affect ourbusiness. see our Annual Report on Form lO-K for the year ended April 29. 2012. 

E.\ecutivc Overview 

We are a developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and relaled lodging and entertainment facilities in regional markels in the United States. 
We have intentionally sought geographic diversity to limit the risks caused by weather, rcgional economic difliculties and local gaming authorities and 
regulations, Wc cunenily operale casinos in Mississippi, Louisiana, Missouri, Iowa, Colorado and Florida. We also operale a hamess racing track at our 
casino in Florida. 

Our operaiing results for the periods presented have twen affected, both positively and negatively, by euneni economic conditions and several other faciors 
discussed in detail below. Our historical operating results may not be indicative ofour fuiurc rcsults ofoperalions because ofthcse faciors and the changing 
competitive landscape in each ofour markets, as well as by faciors discussed elsewhere herein. This Managemem's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial 
Condilion and Results of Operalions should be read in conjunclion with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for ihe yearended April 29, 2012 and by giving 
consideration to the following: 

Items Impaciing Income (Loss) from Continuing Operalions— Significani ilems impaciing our Incomc (loss) from confinuing operalions during ihe fiscal 
quarters ended October 28. 2012. and Oclober 23. 2011 are a.s follows: 



Cnnslruciinii Disiruplion — During fistal 2013 we have been remodeling our main hold lower ul our Lake Charies propeny and the casino at our 
Vicksburg propeny. As a result, certain areas of these properties may nol be accessablc to our customers during the construction period rcsulling in a 
loss of revenues. 

Increased Competition — From time to time, new or expanded faciliiies by our competitors impact our resuhs, For example, competition from a new 
casino in Kansas opened during February 2012 negatively 
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impacied our Kansas City casino and expansion by a competitor in Febmary 2012 has negatively Impacted our Pompano casino. Expansions by 
Arkansas based compeiiiors have negatively impacied our Lula property. 

Flooding—Due to fiooding along the Mississippi River, five of our properties were closed for portions ofthe six months ended October 23. 2011. A 
summary ofthe closure dates and subsequent reopening is as follows: 

Davenport.^Io wa -.T̂*i jff- .̂-gjgf î- ĵ̂ te.î -saE^aK: 
Camlhersville, Missouri 

Closing Dale. Reopening Date 
Number Days 

Dosed 

May:i;201l May 13,2011 . 12 
^l?[;i^^;20ia#--.n'^ime3!^2011-^^1^^S-^-fir^-^^ 

- 91(B) 
I J u l a . ^ M i s s i i ^ i p p i ^ i ^ J : ^ ^ ^ - : ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ ^ ! ^ ^ ^ - ' ^ ^ ' 

NatcH '̂;:! Mississippi ̂ 4 } ^?^ 
Vicksburg. Mississippi 

September 2, 2011 
^Mav.7?20Hm?#^Jmrea7.^20H^^MS.i.:?'Mg 
May n, 2011 May 27, 2011 16 

(A) Six days of closure in the finst quarterof fiscal 2012 and nine days of closure in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. 
(B) The .second casino barge reopened on September 2. 2011 after flood damage was remediated. 

Income Tax Provision(Benefit) — During die fourthquarter of fiscal 2012 we recordcda valuafion allowance reducing our defened tax assets, as a result of 
evaluating ihe expected net realizable value ofour deferred lax assets. Including our nel operaiing loss carry fonvards. Our aclual efTectlve rale will ilueiuaie 
based upon the amount of our prelax book Income, permanenl differences and other itenis, ini:luding fiuctuafions in valuafion allowances, used In the 
calculation ofour Income lax benefil. 

Dl'icnntimied Ojieraiions 

Saleof Biloxi—During March 2012. we entered intoa dcfiniiivc agreemeni lo sell our subsidiary, which owns and operates our casino and hotel 
operations in Biloxi for 545 million subject to regulatory approval and other cusiomary closing condiuons. Duriiig the three monlhs ended 
October 28,2012, we rccorded a 51.5 million valuation allowance renectin'ga credit againsl the purchase price lo satisfy our obligalion to repair the 
property after Hurricane Isaac, as required bythe purchase agreement, Thi.s transaction was completed on November 29. 2012. 

Revenues and Operating Expenses 

Revenues and operafing expenses forthe three and six months ended October 28, 2012 and October 23, 2011 areas follows: 
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Three .Months Ended. 

(in Ihousands) 
Ocinber 28. Oclober 23. Percentage 

2(112 2011 Vanance Variance 

RgvcnuVsl ̂ i^-.:sC-§K,5-.5?^^?'--^^^'si-"^ ' ^ i m 
Casino 

^RoQmsm<'^^!5ll^arttc^^^k^&^^#^!^^^g 
Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other 

234.648. S 259.707 $ (5.059). -2.1% 
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59,435 (816) . -1.4% 
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|?Mliriri£^d^f^^i;s"i?.°^^-^^5^^r%g#^^ 
Markcfina and adminislrafive 

-ConKJJ^i^^iPdevelopmHt-^^^rV? JM: : - ' : ; . : . ^ r ' M ^ ^ ^ - ' t ^ ^ m I ^ i } 7 7 B i ^ 4 

n3^8^K:^^-^ i '4 :933: :^ '^ : s r^ ;>: r iw5)- r - - - ' : - ' ^ -^ . j 
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. 9;327-/-..ls:^', -̂ '^-L4501^^' 
27 2.627. • 

-3.6% 

Preopening expense 2.654 N/M 
\ 'Dypreciation and a"m"drti-ia"lioii'''''i'"',̂ .]^-''̂ ^^-^ -vî ',!̂  

Total operaiing expenses 

i6-85oMg^^-..-.:/^.=-t9i646^,^,:-^,z:--%i:i(2:796):f-'^- -^r:;^^fi4:2% 
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Sii Months Knded 
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2011 Variance 
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Marketing and administrative 

19,321 

114.420: 
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Preopening expense 

115.541 (1,121) 
:^2-l':593l l ^ ^ ^ ' ? % ^ ' - ( 2 : i 4 i ) - ^ ^ ^ •TW-mi2x2m It 0:9%' 

i^Dcprecianonand:amonizalionr:TT...'^j^^^ffl^,4^^?' 
3.341 

^S-33:672 | 
63 3,278 N/M 
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Total operating expenses 4161691 $ 421,564 (4.873) -1.2% 
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Casino — Casino revenues decreased 55.1 miilion, or 2.1%, for the three monlhs ended Ociober 28. 2012. as compared 10 the same period In fiscal 2012. 
Casino revenues were Impacted by construcfion dismption at our Lake Charles and Vicksburg properties, which had decreases of 51-5 million and $1,6 
million, respectively, as comparcd 10 the same period in fiscal 2012. Our Lula and Kansas City properties had decreased casino revenues of $1.4 million and 
51.3 million, respectively, as a result of increased competition. In addition casino revenues'increased 51:1 million at our Pompano property and 51.0 miltion 
al our Waterloo property. 

Casino operafing expenses decreased 51.4 million, or 3.6%, forthe Uiree monlhs ended October 28. 2012. as compared to ihe same period In the prior fiscal 
year, commensurate with casino revenues. 

Casino revenues incrcased SIO.O million, or 2.1%. for the six months ended October 28, 2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2012. Casino 
revenues forourproperties closed due to flooding in fiscal 2012 increased $10.3 milllori, or 10.9%. Casino revenues increased al our Pompano and Waterloo 
properties of 52.2 million and 52.0 million, respectively, offset by decreases in casino revenue al our Lake Charles and Kansas City properties of $1.9 
million and S2.1 million, respectively. 

Casino operaiing expenses Increased 51.2 million, or 1.6%, forihc six monlhs ended October 28, 2012, as comparcd tothe same period in ihc prior fiscal 
year. Casino operating expenses forourproperties closed due to flooding in fiscal 2012 lncrea.scd 51.3 million, or 8.5%. for the six months ended Oclober 28, 
2012, as compared to ihe same period in fiscal 2012. 

Gaming Taxes— State and local gaming luxes decreased 50.8 million, or.1.4%, and increased $1.2 million or 1.1%, for the ihreeand six months ended 
Oclober 28. 2012. respectively, as compared to the .same period in the prior fiscal year consistent with the changes in casino revenues. 

Rooms — Rooms revenue and expense remained stable for the three and six monlhs ended Oclober 28, 2012. as compared to the same period in the prior 
fiscal year. 

Food. Beverage. Pari-Muiuel and Other— Food, beverage, pari-muiuel and other revenues decreased $0.3 million, or 0.9%, for die three nionths ended 
October 28. 2012. as coinpared to the same period in the prior fiscal year. 

Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and olher expenses dccrea,sed 50,4 million, or 3.9%, for die three nionths ended October 28, 2012. as compared 10 the same period 
in the prior fiscal year. 

Food, beverage, pari-mumel and other revenues increased 52.9 million, or 4.8%, for the six months ended October 28, 2012. as compared to the same period 
In the prior fi.scal year. Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other revenue forourproperties closed due to flooding in fiseal 2012 increased 51.3 million, or 
12.9% for ihe six month.': ended October 28, 2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2012. 



Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and other expenses decreased 50,2 miilion. or 1.1%. forthe si.x months ended October 2S, 2012, as compared to the same period 
in the prior fiscal year. Food, beverage, pari-mutuci and oihcr expense for our properties closed due to flooding in fiscal 2012 Incrcased 50.2 million, or 7.2% 
forthe six months ended October 28, 2012, as compared to the .same period In fiscal 2012. 

Promoiiomil Allowances — Promotional allowances increased S2.7 million, or 5.6%, forthe three monihsended Ociober 28, 2012. as compared to the same 
period In the prior fiscal year. 

Promotional allowances increased 512.8 million, or 13.8%. forihc six monlhs ended October 28. 2012, as comparcd lo the same penod in thepriorfiscal 
year. Promotional allowances for our properties closed due to fiooding increased $5.2 million, or 23.6%. for the six months ended Ociobcr 28. 2012. as 
compared to the same period In fiscal 2012. During the first quarterof fiscal 2013, we implemented our new customer loyalty program. 
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Fan Club", at five ofour properties. As ofOctober 28, 2012, Fan Club *' has been impiemcnicd at nine ofour properties, with roll-oul lo remaining properties 
ccpecied by the end ofthe fiscal year. Fan Club* allows cusiomers greaterchoice in how to use their points for cash, free play or food. Iniplemeniafion of Fan 
Club* as well as changes to our promofions also resulled in increased promotional costs. 

Marine and Facilities — Marine and facilities expenses decreased $ 1.0 million, or 7.0%, for the dirce monlhs ended October 28. 2012 as compared to ihe 
same period In the prior fiscal year, primarily reflecting cosl savings from operating one vessel in Lake Charles. 

Marine and facilities expenses decreased 51.5 million, or 5.1%, forihc six months ended October 28, 2012 as comparcd [oihcsairie period In the 
prior fiscal year. Marine and facilities expense forourproperties not closed due lo flooding decreased $2!5 tnillion, or 10.7% forthe six monlhs ended 
Ociober 28, 2012, as compared lo the same period In fiscal 2012 primarily reflecting cost savings from operaiing one vessel in Lake Charies and decreased 
spending for repairs nnd mainlenance, 

Markeiing and Administrative — Markefing and administrative expenses decreased 52.1 million, or.3.6%. for the three months ended Ociober 28, 2012 as 
compared to the .same period in the prior fi.scal year primarily reflecting year our year reductions in Insurance costs. 

Markeiing and adnunistrative expenses decreased Sl.l tnillion, or 1.0%, for ihesix months ended October 28, 2012 as compared to the same period 
in the prior fiscal year. Marketing and administrative expenses for our properties nol closed due to flooding decreased $4.2 million, or 4.8% for the SL\ months 
ended October 28, 2012, as compared to the same period in fiscal 2012 reflecting reductions in our insurance and, repairs and maintenance expenses. 

Corporate and De\'elopment— During the three months ended October 28, 2012, our corporate and development expenses were 510.8 tnillion comparedto 
59.3 million forthe three mondis ended October 23, 2011. The Increase is priman'ly the result of debl refinancing costs of $1.5 million and increased legal 
expenses of 51.0 million in the quarter, oITsei by lower insurance cosisand stock compensation expenses. During the .six monlhs eiided October 28,''2012. 
our corporate and development expenses decreased 52.3 million compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year, primarily due lo decreased insurance 
co.sls of 51.6 million. decrca.sed slock based compen.saiion expense ofSl'.4 million and an.unfavorable franchise tax selllemenl ofSO.5 million In the prior 
year, offset by debt refinancing expenses in the cunenl year of 51.5 million and incrcased legal expense of $1.0 million. 

Depreciation and Amortisation — Depreciation and amonizalion expen.se forthe three and six nionihs ended October 28, 2012 decreased S2.8 million and 
$5.2 million, respectively, as compared lo the same period In ihe prior flscal year, primariiydtie to cenain assets becoming fully depreciaied. 

Other Income (Expense) and Income Taxes 

Interest expense.«inieresl income, derivaiive income and income lax (provision) benefil for ihe ihree months ended October 28. 2012 and October 23. 2011 are 
as foliows: 

(in thousands) 
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•Oclober 23, 
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Income lax (provision) benefit (136) 2,183 (2,319) -106.2% 

Inieresi Expense — Interest expense remained relatively fiat for the three months ended October 28, 2012, as compared to the same period in the prior fiscal 
year. This change primarily reflects the writc-otT of defened financing costsof 51,0 inillion, oO'sei by the capitalization of inieresi associated with ihe 
constmction of our new Cape Girardeau casino. Inieresi expense decreased 51.3 million for Ihc six monlhs ended Ociobcr 28. 2012, as compared lo the same 
period In the prior fiscal year. This decrease primarily reflects thecapitali-/atlon of interest a,ssociated with the construciion of our new CapeGirardeau casino. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows from Operating .Activities - During the six monlhs ended October 28, 2012, we generated 556.5 inillion in ca.sh fiows from operating activities 
compared to gcneraiing $33.4 million duringthe six momhs ended Ociober 23, 2011. The year over year increase in cash flows from operating activilies is 
primarily ihe result of fiveof our properties being closed fora portion of fiscal 2012 due lo flooding. Addiiionally, duringthe six monlhs ended October 28, 
2012, we collected insurance receivables of 57.5 million related to flooding during fiscal 2012. 

Cash Flows used in Inventing .Activities - During the six months ended Oclober 28, 2012, we used 595.0 million for investing activities compared to using 
534.2 million during the six monlhs ended October 23. 2011. Significant invesiing activities for the six months ended October 28, 2012 Included capital 
expenditures of SS9.5 million, ofwhich $60.2 nullion related to Cape Girardeau. Significant investing activities for the six months ended October 23, 2011 
included capital expenditures of $34.3 million, of which $12.4 million related to Cape Girardeau and Nemacolin. 

Cash Flows used in Financing Aclivities— During the six monlhs ended October 28. 2012, ournct cash fiows provided by financing activities were S19,5 
million, including $38.0 million in borrowings under the revolving line ofcredit, debt repayments of $10.1 milUon and payments for defened financing costs 
of 58.4 million. Duringthe six months ended October 23. 2011, ournct cash fiows used In financing activities wcrcu.sed primarily to repay our outsianding 
long-lerm debt of S7.8 million. 

Availabilit)' of Cash and Addilional Capilal - Al October 28. 2012, wc had cash and cash equivalents of $75.5 million and markelable secun'ties of $24.3 
million. As of Ociober 28, 2012, we had 538.0 million in oulstanding bonowings under our revolving credit and 5492.5 million in lerm loans oulstanding 
underthe seniorsecured crcdii facility. Our line ofcredit availability at Ociobcr 28, 2012 was approximately S199 million as limited by our senior secured 
leverage ratio. 

On Augusi 7. 2012. we completed the issuance and sale of 5350 million of 8.875% Senior Subordinated Noles due 2020 in a private offering. We received 
nel proceeds of 5343 million for this issuance after deducting underwriting fees. We repurchased and retired our 5357.3 million 7% Senior Subordinated Noles 
due 2014 with proceeds from the issuance ofthe New Subordinated Notes and cash on hand. 

Following completion oflhe issuance ofour New Subordinated Noles and the retirement oflhe 7% Subordinated Notes due 2014. the maturities ofour Credit 
Facility are exended lo March 25, 2016 and March 25, 2017 for the revolving line ofcredit and tenn loans, rcspectively, based on the Icrms oflhe Credii 
Facility. 
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In November 2012. wc amended certain provisions ofdie Crcdii Facility to; t)give us morc Ocxiblllty to Incur addilional indebtedness, in certain 
circumstances, 2) increase our flexibility to incur assel sales, 3) modify our maximum allowed leverage covenant and 4) allow for ihe annuallzation of 
EBI'l'UA during the first year ofoperalions on new build projects. 

Capilal E.xpendiiiires and Development Activities—As part of our business development acliviiies. historically we have eniered into agreements which have 
resulted In the acquisition or development of businesses or assels. These business development etforts and related agreements lyjiically require the expendinirc 
ofcash, which may be significani. The amounl and liming ofour cash expenditures relating to development acliviiies may vary based upon our evaluation of 
cunent and future development opportunifies. our financial condilion and ihe condition oflhe financing markcis. Our developmeni activities are subjeci to a 
variety of factors including but nol limited lo: obtaining permits, licenses and approvals from appropriate regulatory and other agencies, legislative changes 
and. in certain circumstances, negotiating acceptable leases. 

Wc opened our lsle Casino Cape Girardeau casino development on Ociuber 30. 2012. Wc have Incurred cash-based capital expenditures of $109.0 million, 
including capitalized Inierest. dirough October 2S, 2012. We e.xpect to Incurihemajoriiy of the remaining capital expendilures relaied lo this projeci on or 
before December 31, 2012, widi total project costs esfimaled al 5135 million. 

On August 20. 2012, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court aflmncd the decision ofthe Pennsylvania Gaming Conlrol Board to award a Caiegor)' 3 resort gaming 
license to the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort in Fannington, Pennsylvania. We have a development and management agreemeni with Nemacolin to build and 
opcraie a casino. We currently estimate the cosl ofthe project to be approximately 557 million to $60 million and expect to open Lady Luck Nemacolin during 
summery 2013. To date, wc have incurred capilal expenditures, including capitalized inierest, of $1.4 million. 

Historically, wc have made significani investments in propeny and cquipmcni and expect that our openilions will continue to demand ongoing Investments lo 
keep our properties competitive During ihesix momhs ended Oclober 28, 2012, we have Incuned capilal expenditures at our existing properties of 520.3 
million. For the balance ofthe cunent fiscal year, wc estimate additional capital expenditures at our existing properties to be approximately 580 miilion to $90 
million, including maintenance capital, final costs in Cape Girardeau and conslmction costs hi Nemacolin of approximately $20 million lo 530 million. 
Cunenily In process are several capiial projects primarily focused on refreshing our hotel room Inventory as well as additional improvements to our 
Black Hawk and Lake Charles propenies, and rebranding our of Vicksburg property to a Lady Luck. Additionally we expeci to make several olher 
improvements lo our properties including addilional Fanners Pick bulTels and olher food and beverage outlets as well as ongoing mainlenance capital. The 



timing, complefion and amount of additional capital projects will be subjeci to improvement of economic and local market conditions, cash flows from our 
conlinuing operations and borrowing availability under our Credii Facility. 

Typically, we have funded our daily operations through net cash provided by operating activities and our significant capilal expendilures ihrough operating 
cash flow and debt financing. While we believe that cash on hand, cash fiow from operaliuns. and available bonowings under our Credii Faciliiy will be 
suO'icient to supjiort our working capital needs, planned capilal expenditures and debt service requirements for the foreseeable"future, there is no assurance 
that these sources will in fact provide adequate funding for our planned and necessary expenditures orthat the level of our capital investments will be 
.sulTicicnt lo allow us lO remain competitive in our existing markets. 

We are highly leveraged and may be unable to obiain additional debl or equity financing on acceptable tenns ifour cunent sources ofliquidity are not 
sufficieni or Ifwc fail tostay in compliance with ihecovenanlsofour senior secured credii facility. We will continue lo cvaluale ourplamied capital 
expenditures ai each ofour cxIsiIng locaiions in lighl of the operaiing perfomiance ofthe facilities at such locaiions. 
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Critical Accounting Estimates 

Our consolidaied financial slalements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles that requirc our management to make 
esiimates and assumpiions that affect reported amounls and related disclosures. Management identifies critical accounfing esfimales as: 

• those that require the use of assumptions about mailers that are" inherently and highly uncertain al the fime the esiimaies are made; 

• those estimates "where, had wc chosen difTereni esfimales or assumpiion.s, the resulting differences would have had a material impaci on our 
financial condition, changes in financial condilion or results ofoperalions; and 

• those estimates that, if they were lo change from period to period, likely would rcsult in a material impact on our financial condifion. changes in 
financial condilion or results ofoperalions. 

For a discussion ofour significant accounfing policies and esiimates, please refer to Managements Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and 
Results of Operalions and Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statements preserited in our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K. There were no newly idenlified 
significani accounling estimales in the second quarterof fiscal year 2013," nor were there any maierial changes lo the crifical accounting policies and eslimales 
sel forth in our 2012 Annual Report.-

ITEM .3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUTMARKCT RISK 

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes In market rales and prices, including interest rates, commodity prices and equity prices. Our 
primary exposure to market ri.sk is interest rate risk associated with our IsleofCapri Casinos, Inc. .seniorsecured crcdii facility C'Credit Facility"). 

We have an inieresi rale swap agreement with a notional value of $50.0 million asof October 28, 2012. The swap agreement effectively converts portions of 
the Credit Facility variable debt to a fixed-rate basis until the swap agreement lerminales, which occurs in September 2013. 

During our fiscal quarterended October 28. 2012. wc i.ssued 5350.0 million of 8.875% Subordinated Notes and lendered our $357.3 million 7%. 
Subordinated Noles. These transactions incrcased our fixed interesi rate on'$350 million ofour oulstanding debl by 1,875%. 

The maiuritiesof our revolving line ofcredit and our variable rale term loans undcrour Credii Facilly have been extended to March 25. 2016 and March 25, 
2017. respecliveiy. Minimum annual principal paymenis under our variable rate lerm loans are $5 million. 

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Our inanagement. with Ihe participation of ourChief Executive Officer and'Chief Financial OfTicer, has evaluated the eO'eciivencss of ourdisclosure controls 
and procedures (as such lerm Is defined In Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) underthe Securities Exchange Aci of 1934) as of October 28,2012. Based on this 
evaluation. ourChief Executive Officer and Chief Financiai Ofllcer have concluded that, as of Ociober 28, 2012. ourdisclosure controls and procedures were 
eflective in recording, processing, summarizing and reponing. on a timely basis, informalion rcquired to be disclosed by us In the reports we file or submil 
under the Exchange Act of 1934 and such information Is accumulated and communicated to managemeni as appropriate to allow timely decisions rcgarding 
rcquired disclosure. 
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CHANCES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPOR IING 

There have been no changes In our internal controls over financial rcporting during the fiscal quarter ended October 28, 2012. that have materially affecled, or 
are rcasonably likely lo maierially affecl, our iniemal controls over financial reporting. 

http://ri.sk


PART 11—OTHER INFORMATION 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

A reference is made lo the infonnation contained in Footnole 14 ofour unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements Included herein, which Is 
incorporated herein by reference. 

ITE.M IA. RISK FACTORS 

Wc arc not aware ofany material changes tothe disclosure regarding risk faciors presented in our Annual Report on Fomi lO-K forthe fi.scal yearended 
April 29, 2012. 

ITEiM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 

We have purchased our common stock under slock repurchase programs. These programs allow for Ihe rcpurehase of up to 6,000.000 .shares. To date, we 
have purchased 4,895,792 shares ofour common stock under these programs. These programs have no approved dollar amount, nor expiralion dates. No 
purchases were made during the .six months ended Ociobcr 28, 2012. 

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 

None. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE 

Nol Applicahle. 

ITEM 5- OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 

Sec the Index to Exhibits following the signamre page hereto for a list oflhe exhibits filed pursuant to Item 601 of Regulafion S-K. 
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SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to ihe requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. the registrant has duly cau.sed this report to be signed on Its behalf by the undersigned 
thereunto dulv authorized. 

Dated: December 4. 2012 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

• /s/DALER. BLACK 

Dale R. Black. 
Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer and Aulhorized OfTicer) 

E.XHIB1T 
NU.MBER 

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

Dt::SCRIPTION 

Indeniure. dated as of .August 7, 2012. among the Company, ihe guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as tmstee (Incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ihe Cunent Report on Fonn S-K filed on August 9. 2012) 

Registration Rights Agreement, daled August 7, 2012, among the Company, die guarantors named therein and Credii Suisse 
Securities (USA) LLC, Weils Fargo Sccuriiies, LLC and Deutsche Baiik Securities Inc., as representatives oflhe .several 
initial purchasers named Iherein (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 4.2 lo the Cunenl Report on Form 8-K filed on August 9. 
2012) 

Firsl Supplemental Indeniure, daled as of Augusi 7; 2012, among the Conipany, ihe guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank 
National As.sociation. as tmslee (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 4.3 to ihe Cunent Repon on Fonn 8-K filed on August 9, 
2012) ' 



31.! Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant lo Rule 13a—14(a) underthe Securities Exchange Act bf 1934. 

31.2 Certification of Chief F-inancial Ofliccr pursuanl to Rule 13a—14(a) underthe Securities ExchangeAct of 1934. 

32.1 Certificafion of Chief Execuiive Officer pui-suanl to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350. 

32.2 Cenificafion of Chief Financial Officer pursuant lo IS U.S.C, Section 1350. 

IOI The following financial staiemenis and notes from the lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Quarteriy Report on Fonn 10-Q as of and for 
the three and six monlhs ended October 28, 2012, filed on December 4, 2012, fomiatled in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance 
Sheeis: (ii) Consolidaled Statements ofoperalions; (iii) Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income; (Iv) Consolidated 
Staiemenlsof Stockholders" Equit>'; (v) Consolidated Staiemenis of Cash Flows; and (vl) Notes to Corusolidaled Financial 
Statements, tagged as blocks of lexi. 
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EXHIBIT3I.I 

CERTIFICATION OK CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTTO RULE I3a-I4(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHA.XGE ACT OF 
1934 

I.Virginia M. McDowell. Chief Executive Officerof Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.. certiiy lhai: 

i. I have reviewed this quarterly repon on Fonu lO-Q of Isle ofCapri Casinos. Inc.: 

2. Based on my knowledge, this repon does not coniain any untrue staicrnenl ofa material faci or omil to state a material faci necessary lo make the statements 
made, in lighi ofthe circumstances under which such slalements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge ihe financial statements, and olher financial infonnation included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial 
condition, results ofoperalions and cash flows oflhe regLstrani as of. and for, theperiods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certilying officer and 1 are responsible for establlshliig and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange 
Act Rules I3a-l 5(e) and 15d-15(c)) and intemal conlrol over financial reporting (as defined In E.xchange Act Rules I3a-I5(0and 15d-l 5(0) for the registrant 
and have; 

(a) Designed such disclosurc controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures lo be designed under our supervision. Io ensurc that 
material infonnaiion relafing lo the regislrani, including its consolidaled suhsidiaries, is inade known to us by olhers wiihin diosc enfifies. particulariy during 
fhc period In which ihis report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such Iniemal control over financial reporting, or caused suchinlcmal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting'and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepied accounling principles: 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness ofthe registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness ofthe 
disclosure controls and procedures, as ofthe end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluallon; and 

(d) Disclosed in this repon any change in the registrant's iniemal control over financial rcporting Uiai occuned during the regisirant's most recent fiscal quarter 
thai has materially affected, or is reasonably likely lo materially affect, the registrant's inlemai conlrol over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrants other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our mosl receni evaluation of Inlemai control over financial reporting, lo the 
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significani deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operafion of interna! control over financial reponing which are reasonably likely to 
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves managemeni or olher employees who have a significant role in the registrant's iniemal control over 
financial reporting. 

Date: Deccmber4. 2012 /s/ Virginia M. McDowell ^ _ ^ _ _ _ _ _ ^ ^ 

Virginia M; .McDowell 
Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTHTC.VriON OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE I3a-I4(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCII.\.\CE ACT OF 
1934 

1. DaleR, Black, Chief Financial Officer of Isle of Capri Casinos. Inc. certify that: 

1.1 have reviewed this quarteriy reponon Fonu IO-Q of lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does nol conlain any untme statemenl ofa material fact or omil lo state a maierial fact necessary to make the staiemenis 
made, in light ofthe circumstances under which such siatements were made, not misleading wiih respeci to ihc period covered by this repon: 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial informalion included in ihis report, fairiy presenl in all rnalerial respecis the financial 
condhion. results ofoperalions and cash flows ofthe regislrani as of. and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying ofllcer and I are responsible for establishing and mainlaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange 
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal conlrol over financial reporting (as defined in ExchangeAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-l5(fl) for ihe regislrani 
and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure conirols and procedures, or caused such disclosurc controls and procedures to be designed under our supcr\'ision, to ensure ihal 
material infonnafion relating to the regisirant, including its consolidated subsidiaries. Is made known lo us by olhers within those cnfiiies, particularly during 
ihe period in which this rcport is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal comrol over financial rcporting, or eau.sed such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to 
provide reasonable assurance regardmg the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements forexlemal purposes inaccordance wilh 
generally accepied accounting principles: 

(c) Evaluated ihe etTectiveness ofthe registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about ihe effecfiveness oflhe 
disclosure controls and procedures, as oflhe end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluafion; and 

(d) Disclosed in this repon any change in the registrant's internal conlrol over financial reporting that occuntJd during the registrant's most recent fuscal quarter 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to maierially affect, the registrant's'internal control over financial reporting: and 

5. The regisirant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most receni evaluation of Internal control over financial reporting, to the 
regisiranl's auditors and the audit eommiltee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalenl functions): 

(a) All .significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of Intemal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to 
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial inforination: and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thai involves managemeni or olher employees who have a significant role in the registrani's intemal control over 
financial reporting. 

Date: December 4. 2012 /s/Dale R. Black 

DaleR. Black 
Chief'Financial Officer 



KXHIBIT 32.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PUUSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

In connection with ihc Quarterly Report of Isic ofCapri Casinos. Inc. (ihe 'Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended October 2S, 2012, as filed with ihc 
Securities and Exchange Commission on ihe datehereof (the "Quarterly Report"). I, Virginia M. McDowell. Chief Executive Officerof ihe Company, certify, 
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350, that: 

(1) The Quarterly Repon fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or i5(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934: and 

(2) The infonnation contained in the Quarterly Report fairiy presents, in all material rcspccts, the financial condition and results ofoperalions of the 
Company. 

Dale: December4. 2012 /s/ Virginia M. McDowell 

Virginia M. McDowell 
Chief Executive OOicer 



KXHIBIT 32.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

In connecfion with the Quancriy Repon of Isle ofCapri Casmos, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended Ociober 2S, 2012 as filed wilh die 
Securifies and Exchange Conunission on thedate hereof (the "Quarteriy Rcport"), 1, Dale R. Black. Chief Financial Officerof the Company, certify, pursuant 
to 18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350. that: 

(1) The Quarterly Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or i5(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The infomiation contained in the Quarterly Report fairly prcsents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results ofoperalions ofthe 
Company. 

Date: December 4, 2012 hi Dale R. Black 
Dale R. Black 
GhiefFlnancial Officer 


